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/é% Financial Highlights

MEME

Year Ended 31stMarch 8Z=B=+—HILFE

Results
e
2023 2022
—E—= B F %
RRETUTIIM HKS million Change
LASE VWl B EET Ao
Revenue A 6,341 6,501 -2
Gross Profit EF 3,012 3,071 -2
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest RETREWA ~ BERA ~ A
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, B e  BMEBRAKA 340 +82
Depreciation, Amortisation and Share EEENTAEBIER
of Losses of Joint Venture) (TEBITDAJ)
Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity AR A RERFE AEN (159) N/A
Shareholders of the Company =R (858) TiE A
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share BREAREF, (&HE) (14.9) N/A
(HK cents) (F&4L) ’ THEA
Total Dividends per o . N/A
3 % ﬂ%@\ ﬂ,%\ < — .
Ordinary Share (HK cents) SREBRARS (B TiE A
Year Ended 31stMarch 8Z=B=+—HILFE HK$ million B HE T
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BBEE

Asat31stMarch R=A=+—H
Financial Position

B AR
2023 2022
—E-= B _F %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEHET BETETT ADLLEE
Total Assets WEE 5,850 6,807 -14
Net Debt Balance BEF5E 197 232 P15
Total Equity Attributable to Equity 2~ Bl RIS H A FE(L#E 2985 3958 8
Shareholders of the Company A ’ ’

Year Ended 31stMarch 2023 BZ—E-_=F=HA=+—ALEFE
Sales Analysis by Location

HEBESTIRME)

34%

Hong Kong Operation
(Hong Kong SAR?,

55% Macau SAR* and
. . Exports)
Mainland China «-y p )
I:F' W ith ....................... . é;%s%i% .
(BEBRFRITHE -
BEASFRITHRE REHOD)
9%
2% A |
. E . Australla and
Singapore - ) New Zealand
H R N R F
Notes: “Hong Kong SAR” stands for the Hong Kong Special Administrative i [BEABINITHE] EPEARRNBEEBERT
Region of the People’s Republic of China. HE o
“Macau SAR” stands for the Macao Special Administrative Region of [RFHRITHRE] 5P EAREFBEIRFSRIT
the People’s Republic of China. HE o
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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

FRHRS

We improved the Group’s performance with
profitability during the 2022/2023 financial
year. In the year ahead, we will remain
focused on executing with discipline towards

the goal of delivering sustainable growth and

profitability.

BMR=-_B== “E--HBRFEXE
THREBHWERFEED - RF > RMSES
HIRBRERHT UEBERUTKFEERK#E
BHEREESD -

6

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
(SBS, BSc, MSc)

ZERE % (SBS, BSc, MSc)

Executive Chairman

HITERE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A PR 2 5]




/é% Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Vitasoy Group'’s revenue for FY2022/2023 dropped 2% in Hong
Kong dollar terms but rose 2% net of currency impact over the
previous year.

Despite surging input costs and utility expenses, we were able to
register a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$46 million,
reversing a loss of HK$159 million in the previous year.

As aresult of the Group’s improved financial performance, the Board
of Directors will recommend a final dividend of HK1.4 cents per
ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 28th
August 2023. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.3 cents per
ordinary share, this brings the total dividend for FY2022/2023 to
HK2.7 cents per ordinary share.

Profit stability in Mainland China, growth across
the Hong Kong SAR and overseas

Although our business in Mainland China stabilised with a growth
in profit from operations and a slight 2% decline in revenue in local
currency versus last year, we were able to register growth across our
other main markets.

In the Hong Kong SAR , we achieved double-digit growth in revenue
and profit from operations versus last year due to our core business
strengths and shoppers’ acceptance of our innovations as pandemic
restrictions were relaxed.

In Australia and New Zealand, we acquired full ownership of our
business, which grew revenues by 3% in local currency versus last
year, driven by incremental growth in our Oat Milk line and the
recently added plant-based Greek Style Yoghurt.

In  ASEAN markets, Singapore revenue dropped due to the
commoditisation of the tofu category and export challenges, while in
the Philippines our business grew strongly across all platforms and
channels.

REZZBZZ /ZEC=BRFE - #OHKEN
WA LUBHE ST E TR 2% » (BMBRERZE%A|
BREFLA2% -

BEEMBRAE QBRI AEEF - HBNHEE
$R 1S IR R FE(LE B M 46,000,000 7T » HEEF
75 159,000,000 TTHIEE ©

HRAEEVRREEMNE  EEEER-Z
TEENAZHNBRITHRREFRE LESR
IRERARESIREBER 1.484 - ERIPHR
EEREBERIIBWN —F== —F_=§
BEENREAEEESREBR 2.7 84 -

PEIAMESEFRE  FEISAT
BERBIEBRMER

PEIARMEBCESRE - KEBENEMER
LE SR ENBAREFIRR 2% AR
HitE BB NREFEHER

REBEBIITHE - BRNEBREIKRE - LXK
PMNBELEBEZURAFERAZIHEER
0 EBRAREEZNBREFERELBER
Eo

BN FH T RPN ERNETES
> EPRBNRVEHFTEENFENED
MIRERBELR  WAUSMEEHERE
FIBR 3% ©

RREEHE - KR ABRREBERBEML

R OEBEZREMAR T - MIFREAZE
BEMEERRIINEERBIIRFTEYHER
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Outlook for FY2023/2024

We have confidence in the long-term profitable growth trajectory of
our business.

In Mainland China, we will continue to focus on improving the
execution and expansion of our core VITASOY and VITA brand
portfolio with new marketing campaigns, while selectively identifying
and driving strategic innovation that has long term potential.

Inthe Hong Kong SAR and the Macau SAR, we will sustain the growth
of our core products while promoting product innovation, which
we believe is feasible given the high per capita consumption of our
portfolio products.

Our Australia and New Zealand business will fortify its leadership
position in plant-based milk and further develop the new plant-based
yoghurt platform.

In ASEAN, we will improve the performance of our tofu category and
scale up beverage sales in both Singapore and the Philippines, along
with our newly launched plant milks.

As a responsible company, we will also enhance our Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) performance and continue to
decarbonise our operations following the implementation of our
scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emission inventory.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A PR 2 5]
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/é? Chairman’s Statement

ETFE®E

A note of appreciation

| would like to express my gratitude to our Board of Directors,
management team, and staff for their diligent work and unwavering
faith in our business and long-term growth potential. | would also
like to thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their continued confidence in us.

Based on our portfolio of popular brands, product knowledge
and organisational capabilities, | remain confident in our ability to
generate profits and growth over the long term.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
20 June 2023
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GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REPORT/BUSINESS REVIEW

SRETTRRERMIBE KO E

In FY2022/2023, we returned the Group
to profitability and revenue growth net of

currency impact. We will continue to improve
our sales execution and the availability of our
portfolio, with the goal of sustaining profitable
growth in FY2023/2024.

R-IBZZ /“E_=UHRFE  MBREXR
HEg FXEERERFEIRKALEER -
B EERAEEHNTREAERHEER
B BEER-ZE-= /"ZE_MNHBFER
BFRAEER -

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
BEESEE

Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer

HITESBERETRAR
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Group revenue increased 2% net of currency impact, while falling
slightly by 2% in Hong Kong dollar terms due to Renminbi and
Australian dollar depreciation.

During the year, we successfully recorded a profit from operations
of HK$104 million versus a loss of HK$213 million last year, despite
increased raw material prices and utility costs. This result was mainly
attributable to effective cost rationalisation across our operations
and promotions in Mainland China, as well as higher government
subsidies received by our Hong Kong Operation compared with last
year. We also took selective pricing action to alleviate the increase in
higher raw material prices.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$46 million, compared with a loss of HK$159 million last year.
The result was in line with the profit alert announcement issued on
19th May 2023.

We remain confident about the long-term potential of the plant-
based market and our ability to grow. We will also maintain our
disciplined focus on our core fundamentals and expand product
availability to improve revenue and profit.

Group Chlef Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review
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JT 0 M A S AEE B 159,000,000 7T o ¥&E
—EC=FRATNABAMHNBRAEE LS —
g( °

EAHUENAATENRBEIRERENR

miED - BRATEUEEREEES TR0E
% BAERBERE  UWRSWARER -

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE &

11



CE

12

MEHE EREE

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

During the year, we updated our list of ESG priorities through an
extensive stakeholder engagement exercise, which was conducted
according to the double materiality assessment process.

We also made progress towards meeting the targets established in
our Vitasoy Sustainability Framework. This framework consists of
two pillars: “Making the Right Products” and “Making Products the
Right Way”.

The “Making the Right Products” pillar covers our commitment to
building a product portfolio commensurate with developing plant-
based products that have high nutritional value and are lower in sugar
and saturated fats, and with nutrition information clearly labelled on
the front of our product packaging. “Making Products the Right Way”
is our commitment to reducing our environmental impact through
a Group-wide emissions reduction roadmap, as well as reducing
water and energy consumption and eliminating manufacturing waste
to landfill. We also ensured our workplaces are safe and inclusive,
participated in social and environmental projects in the communities
where we operate, and encouraged our suppliers to improve their
ESG performance.

In FY2022/2023, we saw tangible results in our community projects
inthe Hong Kong SAR, Mainland China and Australia, which included
initiatives in rural revitalisation, health and nutrition, and farmland
rehydration.

In recognition of our ESG performance during the year, we received
an “A” grade in the MSCI ESG ratings and were also featured on
the Corporate Knights’ Global 100 Most Sustainable Corporations
list for the fourth consecutive year. In addition, our wholly-owned
subsidiary in Singapore - Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd.
(“Vitasoy Singapore”) - became a Certified B Corporation™ (“B
Corp”) in January 2023.

The benefits of plant-based foods and beverages for people and the
planet received positive attention during the year. This reinforced
our belief that Vitasoy’s growing range of plant-based products
and commitment to social and environmental considerations in our
business decisions will enhance our position in the market. Further
details on our ESG performance can be found in our FY2022/2023
Sustainability Report and the Corporate Governance Report section
in this Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

Group Chlef Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

RIR - HERER
ER ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁiigﬁﬂﬁmm&’ﬁﬂﬁ

ZENENSE  BEXNTRMRE HERER
BELNELEEM -

BEMNEEREMNTHARRERTRENER
FETREGER ZERUEEEENER]
RIRABENEER A MAZIERER

[SEBENER] DROFEBUENRER A
SEEEE REBERENENNERES I
HERBRERLEREREREN - [HRAE
ENEERE]D BEAEBROHRENTE 2
BRESBERGFER - B FHKRBEFEFEME
RMTHE - KATRERRMANTHESHAZER

EERM - 2HEENBABMERESER
THEREEERSHERE  HEREBEM -

SR CRCCBREFE  RMEEBS

U?‘TLBZE R Bl A it % BN B9 4L B TR B 19 RS

BEURMAR HhEERESY - RREEE
LR RHMKEIRE °

EFREANRE  HEREAREHEESTE
RMSCIERE - B RERTRPES A&
I B ¥ 4 55 1Y F A 32 Corporate Knights & R £
EAIFER R 10058 o thoh > FIMEMEE
ff & 2 B - Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd. ([#EfEBFEFT MY |) - R=ZZ2EZ=F— ﬂ/jf\ﬁk
# Certified B Corporation™ ( [ £z b2 ] )

FR - BNARREY AR IR REEE -
EXEBEEVENFRM-EURNES  UF
iR KM UEN R ANER RS - RRER
BHERBRERRAELRK S EMBERK
M TSN - EREMRE HEREREX
MEZHE  B2HEMN-—2== 2=
FEAUSEBRBERAREFEEERBE -
B o



/é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EITHRERKE EKEREE

Financial Highlights

In the following table, we present highlights of the Group’s financial
performance for the year ended 31st March 2023, with comparisons

against the year ended 31st March 2022.

Revenue

A

Gross Profit
EF|

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income,
Finance Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation,
Amortisation and Share of Losses of Joint
Venture)

EBITDA (Rt FIEWA ~ BAE A « FRBHL -
E - BEBARMLEE A RESEBAIRR)

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity
Shareholders of the Company
RATBERTE AEERF, (E5E)

Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share (HK cents)
SREARER, (F8) GE)

Gearing ratio

(RGeS

ROCE (Return on Capital Employed)
EREFRE

MBRE

ETERY %‘ﬁﬂaﬁ%ﬂzﬁﬁéﬁi_"_zizﬁ
ST+-HEFENPKEERE HEZE=
ZE=ZA=+—HIEFERMEL -

Year ended 31st March
HE=A=1+—HIFE

2023
—y——

—_———

(HK$ million)
(B¥BHET)

6,341

2022 Change - Net of
—E-_F currency impact
(HK$ million) Change 25 - MR
(B®EERT) o] EXRE
6,501 -2% +2%
3,071 -2% +2%
340 +82% +83%
N/A N/A

159 \ N
e B TEA
N/A N/A

14.9 \ N
$il B B
-1% point -1% point

26%

° 1% B 1% B0
9% +9% points +9% points

+9% B B

+9% B0 B
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Revenue

For the year ended 31st March 2023, the Group’s revenue decreased
2% to HK$6,341 million (FY2021/2022: HK$6,501 million) but
increased 2% net of currency impact.

Mainland China: -9% (-2% in local currency)

The business stabilised with a slight decrease in revenue of
2% compared with last year, as we continued to focus on our
fundamentals and core products.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and
Exports): +11%

Innovation-led growth complemented by the strong Vitaland
tuckshop business helped us rebound due to the post-pandemic
increase in the number of school days.

Australia and New Zealand: -4% (+3% in local currency)

In local currency we grew 3%, an increase that was mainly driven by
the strong VITASOY Oat Milk platform and the launch of our plant-
based Greek Style Yoghurt.

Singapore: -12% (-11% in local currency)

Our local tofu business was challenged by the growing
commoditisation of this category, while exports were affected by
weak consumer demand in overseas markets and high logistics costs.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year was HK$3,012 million
(FY2021/2022: HK$3,071 million), representing a decrease of 2%,
mainly driven by lower sales performance.

Gross profit margin increased to 48% (FY2021/2022: 47%), mainly
attributable to lower trade promotional expenses and higher
operational efficiency, partially offset by the impact of unfavourable
foreign exchange movements, sales mix and higher raw material
costs/utility costs.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses decreased 11% to HK$3,022 million
(FY2021/2022: HK$3,409 million). This was mainly due to effective
cost rationalisation in our operations; higher COVID-19 related
government subsidies; efficiencies in advertising and promotional
spending; lower impairment of property, plant and equipment;
lower write-downs of inventories; and the absence of non-recurring
expenses associated with the relocation of the Shenzhen operation
to the new facility in Dongguan, Mainland China in FY2021/2022.
There was no further impairment of goodwill in the Singapore
business this year.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses decreased 9% to
HK$2,024 million (FY2021/2022: HK$2,215 million), mainly due to
greater efficiencies in advertising and promotion spending, effective
cost rationalisation in our operations, and higher COVID-19 related
government subsidies.

Administrative expenses decreased 4% to HK$672 million
(FY2021/2022: HK$702 million), mainly due, as noted above, to
non-recurring costs associated with the relocation of the Shenzhen
operation in Mainland China last year.

Other operating expenses mainly included staff costs for other
supporting functions, sundry tax charges in Mainland China and
a management fee charged by a related party. These expenses
decreased by 34% to HK$326 million (FY2021/2022: HK$492
million), mainly due to lower impairment of property, plant and
equipment, lower write-downs of inventories and the absence of
goodwill impairment in the Singapore business this year.

Group Chlef Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

rEBEH
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3,409,000,0007T) + TEHNEMYLEETHE
RMAAES 2019 R P E H B BT # R 1R

n: BERTHSERSIHMZERS U BE

REREBRERY  #MRFERY 5 RAFEILE
BEBNR-T—— T _HREERFIIER
WBEREMITENFELEHEMAL  MEAFE
N SEFEW M — SR ERE o

TIBHE - ﬁ‘é%&“ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁi/J‘f)%é%’i‘%
2,024,000000T (ZB=— /TG HE
M 2,215,000,00071:  FEHRESERE
BXHMERS £ERNERSELZHUR
2019 BARSE S HAE R BUT i BRI ANFTEK ©

ITHE RRE D 4% ZE B % 672,000000 7T (=&

= —/—gzz BF IR HF ¢ 78 %5 702,000,000
(W0 Efrit) EBHREFREFE AT

ﬂllﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁiﬂ’\)#ﬁﬁlﬁ;ﬁ ST o

HihEeERTEEREMIERENE TR
R BRI E R EE R BEE S W ER
BEB - 258 AR 34% £ 815 326,000,000
T(ZE=Z— /ZZE-__FBREE: B8
492,000,0007T) * FERAYE - BERRER
B WREERSURANEEBENINKERE
R EFTEL -

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE &

15



CE

16

MEHE EREE

COVID-19 related Government Grants

InFY2022/2023, the Group received COVID-19related government
subsidies of HK$65 million (FY2021/2022: HK$20 million), which
were mainly related to COVID-19 financial assistance in support of
the Vitaland school business in Hong Kong and staff retention.

Group Chlef Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

2019 BikTmE S EEE BT EED

F_ZZZ/—E::MﬁEE’$$E§

SH209ERFESHEBBRNHMAEE
ﬁommmm(:;— S IEZHBEE
78 20,000,0007T)  TEREHEFEBMHEMK
#h ERRER - LR B TEAKFEmURERS 2019
BARFESHEIISEE) o

Subsidy recognised

TR,
2023 2022
—EB= —E-—F
Segment (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
S EB (B¥HRET) (BBEER
Hong Kong Operation
Eri 60 v
Mainland China 2
Bl A
Singapore 1
F 03
Others _
Hth
20

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance Costs,
Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation and Share of
Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$621 million, an increase of 82% year-
on-year, mainly driven by reduced operating expenses and higher
COVID-19 related government subsidies. The EBITDA to revenue
margin for the year increased from 5% to 10%.

Profit/(Loss) from Operations

Profit from operations was HK$104 million for the year, versus a loss
of HK$213 million last year.

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation

Profit before taxation was HK$49 million for the year, compared
with last year’s loss before taxation of HK$236 million.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

REFFEBWA - BERA - FFEH
E BHEBRARALESEQTBENET
(TEBITDAJ)

£ A AYEBITDA & 8 %5 621,000,000 7T @ 1% & 12
ng2% » TEMNEEE RS R2019BARE
SHEBBUTREEEIE MNATE - AR EBITDAL
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Taxation

Income tax charged for the year was HK$28 million (FY2021/2022:
income tax credited HK$75 million) with an effective tax rate of 57%
versus 32% last year, mainly due to lower recognition of deferred tax
credits in respect of prior years’ tax losses.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$46 million, versus a loss of HK$159 million last year.

Financial Position

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure primarily
through internally-generated cash as well as banking facilities
provided by our principal bankers.

Asof 31st March 2023, cash and bank deposits amounted to HK$555
million (31st March 2022: HK$622 million), with 62%, 27% and 6% of
our cash and bank deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars (HKD),
Renminbi (RMB) and United States dollars (USD), respectively (31st
March 2022: 40%, 50% and 3%). As of 31st March 2023, the Group
had a net debt balance (cash and bank deposits less bank borrowings,
bills payable and lease liabilities) of HK$197 million (31st March
2022: HK$232 million). Available banking facilities amounted to
HK$1,146 million (31st March 2022: HK$968 million) to facilitate
future cash flow needs.

The Group’s debt amounted to HK$753 million (31st March 2022:
HK$854 million), of which bank borrowings amounted to HK$525
million (31st March 2022: HK$490 million), bills payable amounted
to HK$92 million (31st March 2022: HK$176 million), and lease
liabilities amounted to HK$136 million (31st March 2022: HK$188
million).

The gearing ratio (total debt/total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company) decreased to 25% (31st March 2022:
26%).

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) being (EBITDA/
average non-current debt and equity) for the year was 18%
(FY2021/2022: 9%).
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Capital expenditure incurred during the year decreased to HK$154
million (FY2021/2022: HK$243 million), mainly due to normalised
investment to maintain and upgrade our production lines and
equipment.

There were no assets pledged or secured under loan and/or lease
arrangements.

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial KPls in its Sustainability
Report 2022/2023, which will be released in July 2023 together with
this Annual Report.

Tax Strategy

When considering tax, the Group gives due consideration to the
importance of its corporate and social responsibilities. More
specifically, the Group commits to paying taxes in the countries
where it creates value and ensuring it is fully compliant with tax laws
across all relevant jurisdictions. The Group also commits to following
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD) transfer pricing guidelines and to ensuring that the arm’s
length principle is always observed in transactions between Group
companies. In addition, the Group commits to being open and
transparent with tax authorities about the Group’s tax affairs and to
disclosing relevant information to enable tax authorities to carry out
their reviews.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on anticipating,
controlling and managing risks, and covering transactions directly
related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For synergy,
efficiency and control, the Group operates a central cash and
treasury management system for all subsidiaries. Borrowings are
normally taken out in local currencies by the operating subsidiaries
to fund their investments and partially mitigate foreign currency
risks.

Potential Risk and Uncertainties

The Company has implemented a comprehensive risk management
framework across the Group to consistently anticipate, assess and
mitigate key business risks, as well as a risk governance structure to
ensure risk ownership and proper oversight. In view of the rapidly
changing business environment, the Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department has stepped up its efforts to improve
key risk indicators, identify external emerging risks, and facilitate
risk reviews for key purchasing decisions. Details of these risk
management processes are covered in the Risk Management section
of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Review of operations ¥ E g

Mainland China rh ) (A0 3

Stabilisation of the business with a disciplined focus on core BEE TR O BB UEBTEER
fundamentals

(Rounded to the nearest million) 2022 % Change
(MEEAZRIBARE) —ECCF BOLLEE
Revenue from external customers (HK$ million) 3838 9%
RENEEZZWA GBEEET) ’

Profit/(loss) from operations (HK$ million) (340) N/A
2K /fm*”/ (Eﬁ,ﬁa) /%bﬁé} gﬁ:) ;F;Eﬂzj
Revenue from external customers (RMB million) 3157 2%
REMEEZTZBA (AREEHET) ’

Profit/(loss) from operations (RMB million) (280) N/A
LeEER, (BB (ARBEERT) T3 A
Revenuein local currency terms dropped slightly by 2% to RMB3,084 REMEBTENWRABRK2%E AR

million. 3,084,000,000 JT °

Our Mainland China operation registered an operating profit of EPMNAPEARAEERZSLCELEZNARE
RMB40 million versus an operating loss of RMB280 million in 40,000,000 7T ' MR =T=— = _BHF
FY2021/2022, mainly due to effective control of higher input costs EEEEIBE A AR 280,000,000t EEH
and operating expenses. REMEFBESNEMRR AR EEER -

We have successfully implemented a pricing strategy to partially KPR INTEBRE BRI BIEM B
alleviate input cost pressures and have strengthened our RES o WpnsR P R At SRS RE D o it
organisational capabilities in our Mainland China operation. MEBNEZNTISHEFTBLMAL o FhiEtm g
VITASOY retains strong leadership in the soymilk market. In our B FENESHREERRIMEETERAR
VITA brand, our core premium Lemon Tea range was the main B MRERREHRREEEIHEEE -

revenue driver, while sparkling tea and new fruit tea continued to
gain popularity.
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Hong Kong Operation

Strong innovation-led growth from on-the-go consumption and
school business

(Rounded to the nearest million)

(MEEAEREAEE)

Revenue from external customers

RESMEREE Z WA

Profit from operations
BERA

Our Hong Kong Operation made a strong recovery in FY2022/2023,
driven by effective field sales execution, improved traffic since the
removal of travel restrictions and an increase in the number of school
days for the Vitaland tuck shop business. Revenue grew 11% from
the previous year to HK$2,144 million.

We also grew our market share for soymilk, plant milk and tea,
despite already being the leader in these three categories. Successful
new innovations such as VITASOY CALCI-PLUS Protein Drink, VITA
Fresh Tea and Sparkling Peach Orange Tea have been well accepted
by shoppers, thereby generating incremental revenue.

Our operating profit grew by 10% in FY2022/2023. Excluding
COVID-19 related government subsidies, our operating profit would
have dropped by 13%, mainly due to a surge in raw material prices
and production costs, but partly offset by an increase in sales.
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Australia and New Zealand

Growth in the grocery channel driven by accelerated sales of our
Oat Milk platform

(Rounded to the nearest million)

(MBEAZREAEE)

Revenue from external customers (HK$ million)

RENEETZWA (BEEET)

Profit from operations (HK$ million)

7 /fm*” lﬁﬁzﬁgﬂ:)

Revenue from external customers (AUD million)

RENEET WA (RTEET)

Profit from operations (AUD million)
BeESER (BRTEBT)

Revenue increased by 3% in local currency during the year, despite
economic headwinds.

Profit from operations dropped by 89% in local currency, mainly due
to increased raw material prices and higher logistics and overhead
costs.

New products launched during the year, including VITASOY Café
Latte Oat Milk and the VITASOY Greek Style Yoghurt range, have
been well received by consumers.

During the year, we completed the acquisition of the remaining 49%
equity interest in our non-wholly owned subsidiary in Australia.
The transition and integration were managed effectively by our
competent local team, who will continue to drive the business via
core and new products.

BN R Fh AR
FEBIGRFHENIE » R R 5 1S
=
2022 % Change
—E-CF ERalnd )
607 -4%
78 -90%
106 +3%
14 -89%
BEEHHKEYR  FRANEHEETTENKRA
BR 3% °
LEhEMTTENEEZRHA 89% » TEHRK

AT EHERE LERA R DR & H b e A48 40 -

FRMEHOIER - EIE H M TEE 3T

%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂmﬁ%@%?\ﬂ /?ﬁﬁ/ﬁg%
70 o

FR BMTHBBRMNEZEWBRARRT
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Singapore

Commoditisation of tofu category and weak exports affected
the Singapore business

(Rounded to the nearest thousand)

(MEBEAERIEET)

Revenue from external customers (HK$ thousand)

REIERETZWA (BETT)

Loss from operation (HK$ thousand)

HeEpe OB T i)

Revenue from external customers (SGD thousand)

REIERET ZWA CREFT)

Loss from operation (SGD thousand)

REREE O TT)

Revenue decreased by 11% in local currency terms. This was due in
part to the commoditisation of the local tofu category, which caused
consumers to switch to more affordable options. Furthermore,
export sales to Europe, our main tofu export market, fell as a result of
weak overseas demand and increased logistical costs.

Operating loss decreased owing to lower advertising and promotion

expenses and sales-related transportation costs, partly offset by
lower revenue and higher raw material prices and utility costs.
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Business Outlook

Our Company is well positioned for long-term growth because of
the strong potential of the plant-based market, as well as the solid
foundation of our proven product platforms, market understanding
and organisational scale and capabilities. In the short term, however,
cost pressures will likely persist, as the price of raw materials and
utilities together with logistics expenses are expected to remain high.

Mainland China

The goal of our business in this market is to continue scaling up via
disciplined execution, ever-improving availability and selective
innovation. VITASOY will drive core product sales via a new
marketing campaign, while VITA will drive its product platforms
(Fruit, No Sugar, Sparkling) by leveraging on-the-go consumption.

Hong Kong Operation

As the Hong Kong SAR is our most developed market, we will
complement execution on our core products with continuous
innovation on both VITASOY and VITA brands, with a particular
focus on the rapidly growing fresh short-shelf-life segment.

Australia and New Zealand

The market for plant-based food and beverages continues to grow
in Australia and New Zealand ahead of other markets in Asia, thus
providing us with a unique opportunity to pilot new initiatives for
broader reapplication. We will continue to drive key plant milk
categories while strengthening the availability and range of our new
plant-based yoghurt.

Singapore

With the commaoditisation of the tofu category, we will continue to
drive cost efficiencies via product and organisational rationalisation,
while at the same time driving growth in the export tofu business and
beverages.

The Philippines

This market’s results are not consolidated but the joint venture
with Universal Robina Corporation, our local joint venture partner,
continues to perform strongly as a result of strong growth in the
still small plant-based milk category. We are now leveraging local
manufacturing and growth in both single serve and multi serve by
offering a range that has evolved from soymilk to the broader plant
milk segments of Almond Milk and Oat Milk. The increasing mobility
of on-the-go consumers and wider distribution will help us revive our
single-serve business.
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Conclusion

We continue to be in a very strong position to deliver long term
value and growth in our markets, due to our positive brand equity,
core product portfolio and innovation, all-round organisational
capabilities and international breadth in growing plant-based food
and beverages. Our goal is to continue scaling up in Mainland China
while adding incremental growth via execution, expansion and
innovation in our other markets. We will anticipate and mitigate the
increased cost pressures of logistics, raw materials and utilities to
gradually secure higher profitability.

| would like to thank our Executive Chairman and Board of Directors,
whose wisdom and guidance have been invaluable during the past
year. | would also like to acknowledge our staff and business partners,
who have performed with great dedication and agility during the
year.

Roberto GUIDETTI
Group Chief Executive Officer
20 June 2023
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Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is firmly
committed to a high level of corporate governance and adherence to
the governance principles and practices emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. These
principles and practices are regularly reviewed, enhanced and
updated by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) orits delegated Board
Committees to reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements
and corporate governance development. The Board would conduct
regular review on the implementation and effectiveness of those
policies embracing those principles and practices. The Board believes
that the high standards of corporate governance is the essential core
for sustaining Vitasoy Group’s long term performance and value
creation for our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

HMPEREEARAR ([RARF]) BFEK
FHEEER  YRAETIEAEAE  BY
M BE BEREAFZEARRARER - K
NEEEE ([ES8]) AHREZESEES
SEMR  BEALEHZERAURER - UR
RAEEENEEREREEELRRE -EFE
HESZERAURERNBER 2 BiE R MMET
R c ESEERE  SRENEEERHSE
PEEFEEARERER  XBZRR - 2RR
BEERAMBHEREEBES - DA IRERAE
R -

five out of the eleven directors are independent non-executive directors

T -REBETEARBYIHTES

two out of the eleven directors are female
T—RESEFMABLM

the Board has diverse mix of knowledge, skills, experience and expertise

chairpersons of major board committees are independent non-executive

roles of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer are

five Board meetings and nine Sub-board Committee meetings in FY2022/2023

NRFERTTRRESEERRNAAESEET

adopt and review a Corporate Culture Statements to always align with business

KRR ERELER  BXBRBEREBERARFT -

Board

Composition EERRASTINDRE B SRRER

EEFAEMK
directors
TEEEZE R IEYABYIHITES
separate
BTETEREETHRABRZARHEES
N —F_=F
ZEEER
average 99% attendance rate of meetings
SRTHHEREII%

Sesrler strategies and operating practices
Governance Practices
EEFREREM

proactive sustainability strategy and effective implementation

BB HERRRR R ERER

active participation into in-house training and continuing professional development

BESRARAAIPEFINARSHEXRR

clear roadmap for Board Succession Plan and Board Diversity

ESSSATTARESERE S TG H B AR R @ E
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March 2023,
complied with the code provisions and, where appropriate,
adopted the recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Culture

Vitasoy is one of the world’s leading producers of tasty nutritious
plant-based foods and beverages for over 80 years. In 1940, our
founder Dr. K.S. Lo was motivated to provide an abundant source of
affordable nutrition to help improve the lives of others. Since then,
we have built on his principles to champion sustainable practices
across our business. We are leading the transition towards more
sustainable plant-based nutrition. Our founding purpose continues
toinspire us today.

Vitasoy Culture Statement: Our Purpose, Values and
Behaviours

Our Purpose

To advance the world’s transformation towards a sustainable future,
through the amazing power of plants.

Our Core Values

We share the same three core values:

1. Integrity - Honest, trusted, loyal. We are reliable and
responsible partners.

2. Dedication - Committed, enthusiastic, with a “can-do” spirit.
We always give our best efforts.

3. Advancement - Striving, moving forward, always improving.
We aspire to advance ourselves and the Company.

Our Vitasoy Success Drivers (VSD)

We set six competency-based behaviour standards for all our
employees:

Customer Focus
Innovation

Quality Orientation
Strategic Agility
Collaboration
Accountability

ok wihdpE

By living our shared Purpose, Values and Behaviours, we create a
culture of high performance, build a better environment in which to
work and make positive impacts on each other.
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Alignment of Culture with Business Strategies and
Operating Practices

Vitasoy’s Executive and Leadership team set the tone and develop the
strategies for our Culture which is reviewed, aligned and endorsed by
the Board of Directors or its Board Committee/s on a regular basis.
The leadership team acts as arole model and cascades the Company’s
culture to all levels via various internal communication platforms and
systems.

Our core values are embedded in the Group Business Ethics Policy
and the Code of Conduct for employees and relevant stakeholders.
The Code of Conduct is clearly laid out in our Staff Handbook and
communicated to all new joiners. We provide refresher training to all
employees and relevant stakeholders on Business Ethics and Code of
Conduct on aregular basis to ensure strict compliance of all rules and
regulations when we do our business.

The Company’s talent acquisition, onboarding, performance
management and talent development processes for our employees
are all aligned with our Purpose, Values and Behaviours. Purpose,
Values and VSD training has been mandated to all new joiners during
their onboarding. Our Values and VSD standards are reinforced
during day-to-day work and employees are recognised by role
modelling our Purpose, Values and demonstrating positive VSD
behaviours.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The Board has established various committees to carry out
specified functions assigned by the Board of Directors which require
specialised areas of expertise. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day management power of the Company to the Executive Directors
and Senior Management of the Company. However, full delegation
is not allowed for some specific matters under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory
requirements, and the final decisions on those specific matters are
required to be made by the whole Board. A defined schedule of
matters reserved for Board decisions has been adopted by the Board
as follows:

ESE

EXEEEANAEBEREETH  YEK
VAR EEEREITHESERRATEGES
EEXEABER 2 HERE - ESFRAAQE

15 o A RIB(RAFRGI) - EHRA - B2
ERTASEMREZRRE » BOHESEAR
AHFEREXMARE Y EAHRBESENE
HEMFHERRTE - ESECHEMNNTHEZE
BR  JISAFESSFHREZSE

e Business direction and strategic plans

EHEF B R KRE RS
o ESG strategy
Direction and Strategy
75 6 B SR g

e Corporate culture

ML

RIE - HEREBRK

Oversight role of ESG
RIE - HERERZ
EEAE

Corporate Structure

TRER

Appointments and
delegation of authorities

EEREFEN

Financial Transactions,
Internal Control and
Risk Management
BERS - MEREE
REREE

Major merger, acquisition or disposal transactions

Bt WERHERS

Ensure the Company strategy is in alignment with ESG issues by taking
account of ESG opportunities and risks

BRZERE  LERERZEERER  BRAD FREEIRE
HEREREE—H

Approval and review of corporate culture statement

HEER RT3 (L EE R

Approval and review of ESG related policies

HAERBNRE HEREREBEEER

Reorganisation of group and capital structure
BEHEERERERE

Shares buy-back

B3 B El

Appointment or removal of Directors, Chief Executive, and Company Secretary
ERERBERES  THEBRAAWE

Appointment or removal of External Auditors

ZERBE R INEEZBAD

Set up and dissolution of Board committee

RINBHESEESS

Annual budget

FEHEE

Capital expenditure plans and management
EXRAXFTERER

Significant guarantee or indemnity
BRERIBEERE

Notifiable and connected transactions
BFAGREERS

Financial reporting

MRS

Dividend policy

BREBR

Internal Control

RSB

Risk Management

EEE
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The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance
practices as well as the Company’s mission to creating value for our
shareholders. The Board is responsible for developing the strategic
directions and overseeing the Company’s ESG matters and ensuring
the Company’s ESG strategy is aligned with and incorporated into
the Company’s mission, vision and long term business strategy. A
lot of focus and attention have been devoted to formulation and
execution of the Company’s strategic planning as well as integration
of ESG considerations into the strategic plans.

Strategic planning horizons are currently set for five years. The
Board has approved a Five Year Strategic Plan including the ESG
Strategy for the fiscal years up to FY2027/2028 in August 2022 and
has always been taking a proactive role in reviewing and revising
the Strategic Plan periodically in response to changes in the macro
economic, competitive business environment, ESG related risks and
opportunities and regulatory requirements. The Board is also actively
to define the Company'’s sustainability strategies and practices, and
to prioritize and allocate resources to achieve the long-term success
of the business and its sustainability.
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Board Composition

EETAM

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
ERERE

Executive Chairman

HITERE

Dr. the Hon. Sir
David Kwok-po LI

FEHESL

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFITES

Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND
FE

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFITES

Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE

REES%E

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFITES

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Stk

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFITES

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
EEEEL

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFITES

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BRRIL

Non-executive Director

FFTESR

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
BEARE

Non-executive Director

FEMITES

Ms. May LO
BHxER+

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
FEEISEE

Executive Director

HWITES

Mr. Eugene LYE
B LkE

Executive Director

WITES
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EE=

#El:l

The designation, position and brief biographical information of each ZEZECHE BURBEUARFBLESESE
Director, together with the relationship amongst each other, Senior EEAE TERRFEBRBRRZBESIIAR
Management or Substantial or Controlling Shareholder are set out FRIESNSEESEAE | —& - i FHH
in the “Directors and Senior Management” section in this Annual EENERTEE2ABRBEEZTIRETIERSE
Report. In addition, a list containing the names of the Directors and BEERZERAR ([BXXAT]) RRAA
their roles and functions has been published on the websites of The A uE www.vitasoy.com ©

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company at www.vitasoy.com.

Designation 7

« Independent Non-executive Directors < Non-executive Directors ° Executive Directors

BUFEHITES EHITES HITES
Gender 15l

« Male ¢ Female

2] z
Age Group FiR#H 5l

. 41-50 < 51-60 - 61-70 " Over70
70 BLE

Tenure of Office (Years) {E8i ()

‘

<19 . Over9
9Ll E
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Directors’ Core skills, expertise and experience

BE/IEREE  SENARSR
Accounting,
Audit,
Finance, Risk
management Manufacturing
General it it Food and Project
Management BER Legal technology Marketing Management
GRER RgER e R mERRE AEREREER

TEERRSE

Name #E
Executive Chairman BTER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BRERE
Independent Non-executive b=

Directors BIFAUTES
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po .

U ZEEET
Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND %4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell

NIGHTINGALE REERE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
Ms.May LO

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Mr.Eugene LYE

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4
ESTEL
FHiTES

ERRut

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE &

33



@9 Corporate Governance Report

EERRE

Board Independence EEEHIH

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in good ARARFRNESEBUMERFLEELARES
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The Board believes EVNEEHEE - EESMHEE 0 AQAERILE
that the Company has effective mechanisms in place to ensure MBS TRAAQARAEMNESNELBERER
independent views and input from any director of the Company BEMEETESS  LUZIDRRNEE MR R
are conveyed to the Board for enhancing an objective and effective M EEESEABHEFMRREZRZEE ([FIR
decision making. The governance framework and mechanisms are REZEE|) CHEEERMERREE - LUE
under regular review by the Board, through its Remuneration and REBK - FHRIREZEER T _=F<A
Nomination Committee (“the R&N Committee”), to ensure their M2 EMEET AT s ¢

effectiveness. The R&N Committee had performed the review of
such mechanisms in June 2023 as follows:

Key Features or Mechanisms Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

E RIS R AT RIRET K

Number of Independent Non-executive Directors Five out of the eleven directors are INEDs which is near to half of the

(INEDs) total Board members and also exceeds the Listing Rules requirement

BUEHITESEAY for INEDs to make up at least one third of the Board.
T—BEEPELERBIUFHNITES ?%?&%%‘%ﬁiéﬁ@%(ﬂﬁ—
¥ BB EMRARERYIHITESHESTSAIRI=92
—HER -

Nearly half of the Board members are INEDs which ensure that
independent views could be heard and be thoroughly considered
during the Board meetings and decision making by the Board.

MY BEEERERBUKHTES  BREESSERNESE
AERBREPENERR DI ZEBULER

Chairpersons of major Board Committees are INEDs.

TEESERESEITFEYRBIUFUTES -

The R&N Committee to assess and confirm The R&N Committee assesses the independence of a candidate for

independence of INEDs a new INED appointment and also the continued independence of
FRIREBZESTERERBE M EHITESER  existing INEDs on an annual basis. All INEDs are required to confirm
B inwriting annually their compliance of independence requirements as

set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
FNRIREEESTEHEB LR TESFERANE LM - UK
BETERAEBLFPTEENFER LT - FIEBVHHITES
EETERRAEET EMRAIE ISRFMEANBILMRE ©

Through the review by the R&N Committee and the self-declaration
of each INED, the Board could ensure the independence of each
INED.
ERFNRIEEZEENERRSBIUFATESNERER =
EENRRSBELIFRNTESNE LI -
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Key Features or Mechanisms

FERSRETLF

Time commitment of INEDs

BYFHTESARANKE

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET R

The R&N Committee reviews annually the time commitment of

each Directors, including INEDs. All Directors (including INEDs)

would confirm in writing their time commitment to the Company

annually.

SRR ZESEFEHNENES (BEBILIHITES) R
AR - 2REZ (BEBLHHTES) SFHEUEEER

HREEARQRENS AR o

The R&N Committee reviews and confirms that INEDs allocate
sufficient time to the Company to perform their duties and
responsibilities effectively. Directors’ attendance records for
meetings in FY2022/2023 are also disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

PRI R E RN BR B LN TESE IR EAFE TR
ATUBNETERERET -EENR T " _=GHF
ENEREELHETINEEERREPESE -

Long Serving INEDs (with tenure for more than
nine years)

BEZFNELINTES (EHEBAF)

In respect of the re-election of an INED who has served on the
Board for more than nine years, the Board and the R&N Committee
would take account of additional factors and reasons to justify why
they consider the long serving director is still independent so as
to ensure independent views and comments are sought from long
serving INED.

REZTBESSENTNELIPITESMS » ESTFHEFTMR
REZEERERTEREREABREIHZENESNABL -
RMERTEEZSEFNBE LI TESNBRARERTABY -

Director Nomination Policy

EERABK

The Policy sets out the selection and nomination criteria and
procedures for appointment/re-appointment of Directors.
Independence is one of the factors to be considered for
appointment/re-appointment of Directors, in particular for INED
appointment.

ZHRBEER ENEAEENTERREREEURRER - B
MREZREZR EFNEAES (RERBIFPITES) HEERZ

— o

The R&N Committee would take account of the independence
factor in accordance with the Policy before making
recommendations to the Board for approval of the appointment/re-
appointment of an INED.

TR IREEEE RN ESERIMAERE EFEEBLHITE
ENEEA  BEZBEZERBILIMERE -
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Key Features or Mechanisms

FERSRETLF

Directors Conflict of Interest Policy

ESFBRFREEK

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET R

The Company has policy and procedures in place to avoid any
potential conflict of interests and not to weaken the objectivity and
integrity of the Board for decisions making. Under the Policy, any
Director has to declare his/her directorships outside the Company,
interests in controlling company, public office appointment and
any other interests that might be considered prejudicial to his/
her independence and has to declare his/her interests in any
transaction in which he/she may have interest and abstain from
voting on such transaction.
AARCHEBEREF AR EMBENZEZR BT SHISHE
EFRENEBERBEMN o RIBZBER » AL EBXERR
HERAATUNNEERE - RERATPWES « ABETRE
MHEHMAREHAAEREABIENRG  WERBEAATEESH
B AR Z PR WHRZRZHERE -

Open Board Culture
HEANEEE L

INEDs in family businesses will generally play a more active role in
corporate governance area. Our Board culture under the leadership
of Executive Chairman, encourages questions and challenges from
directors in particular from INEDs who may hold different views
from the Executive Directors and Senior Management and their
comments and concerns will be closely followed up and addressed
by the Executive Directors and Senior Management.
REEEPNBLFITES—RENEEERFTEREERER
WIEA - EHTEFEEET  RMNESTSULEBES (LHR
BYFHTES) REBERERE  REUREHNTESRSEE
BAERETEEY  MPTESRSEEEASKEIRERIE
HEENERREE -

No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements to INEDs
BUFHTESARER THRREKEBHRAR

Director fees payable to Director, including INEDs, are fixed fees
without any discretionary element nor they are remunerated with
equity-based awards. Directors Fees are also determined by the
R&N Committee and the Board with reference to the roles and
responsibilities taken up by the Director and benchmarking against
peers.

BAES (BEBLFWTES) NESHEAEEHEE - WEE
AMEEE M TERSEUREAERNERE - ESWE T H
SRR AR EEHEEE S REEMRENACRBEURTE
BEMEBE o
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Key Features or Mechanisms

EERSR S

Access to independent professional advice
ESBUEXER

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET R

External independent professional advice is available to all
Directors, including INEDs, whenever deemed necessary.

MEEZEE MEES (BREBIIYTES) WUESHISBE LR
¥ER o

With prior consultation with the Chairman of the Board, Directors
would be reimbursed for any professional fees in relation to their
fulfilment of the roles and responsibilities.
EEAHESEIREAR ESUREHEABTRERETEE
HEREEEM -

Evaluation of Director’s independence mechanism

APEESRE N S

All Directors are encouraged to express freely their views and
constructive challenges during the Board/Board Committees
meetings.

RSB ESLEEE EEZEEER LEHREAZRR
EEEMECEE -

Regular board evaluation is conducted by external professional
consultant or the Company Secretary alternatively on a confidential
basis will help assess the effectiveness of the independence
mechanism by identifying any potential vulnerable weaknesses for
further improvement.
HMPEXERR AR MERBETHNENESESTERFEUF
RGN > B MEET R ZEAEE— S E -

The Board, through its Remuneration and Nomination Committee, EESCEREFMRRERZEESRTRRAE

had reviewed and considered that the abovesaid key features or

mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent views are JER

conveyed to the Board.
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Board Composition and Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The board diversity will be
achieved through a number of factors, including but not limited to
experience, professional qualification, knowledge, gender, ethnicity
and age. The Board Diversity Policy has been updated on 22nd March
2022 to expressly include the disclosure of targets and timelines for
achieving gender diversity at Board level. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee will review this policy annually and
monitor the implementation to ensure continued effectiveness
and compliance with regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practices.

Duringtheyear,the Board, throughits Remunerationand Nomination
Committee, had reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy, to ensure the
Board’s composition complies with the CG Code with an appropriate
mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant to the
Company’s strategy, governance and business and contribute to
the Board’s effectiveness and efficiency. The implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy during FY2022/2023 was considered
effective.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board
appointment and renewal have been, and will continue to be,
made based on merit as well as complementing and expanding
the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the progress
on achieving measurable objectives for gender and age diversity
annually and review such objectives, whenever applicable to ensure
it leverages diversity to contribute to the achievement of the
Company’s strategic objectives. The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee has established the measurable objectives for achieving
gender and age diversity up to FY2024/2025. The Remuneration and
Nomination has recently approved the new measurable objectives
for achieving board diversity up to FY2029/2030. As at the year
ended 31st March 2023, progress in achieving the objectives are:

AARRBDERTERES b zEE > WRAT
WREEEE s RBEEX BRI RERBHE
WHG B RIBIRIRRBA 2B URBEERFE XM
BEEERB O AERERAER - H
RREAZEENESEFRNERHIRFERST
{EWA st E R E2EEN BRMRNZEEZE
DR R R RER A 2 T R B EE BUR A B 2 5K B
BE -FMRIESZESCHEREZ=_ZE -~
CECAUREEEFMRIRFRZ UL TR
ERE - FHWRIEEZESHBMETNT T
E8E URZZE-A/ —ES=ZHHFEAE
BEEEHEZ L  RBEE-TE=-=F=A
=+—HLFER EBZEEEZEENT :

up for the years up to FY2024/2025.

28
U

Female representation during FY2022/2023 was 18.2% which has achieved the target of “not less than 18%” set

Gender RIBZZ /“Z_=0HEE  ZHENARER18.2%  WEEANEZ-T_N T _HHBEEME] [T
MR R18%] ZBZ -
Average age of the board members during FY2022/2023 was 68 which has achieved the target of “average age 67-
Age 70" set up for the years up to FY2024/2025.
Fik R-B-— /—E_CHREE  BERERENTIHIFRASH  YEEINE—_2-N —Z_HHREEME

7] [67Z27085] 2B& -

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has reviewed and
targeted to maintain the current level for female representation of
“not less than 18%” of the Board up to FY2024/2025. However, the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee will continue reviewing
the targeted female representation % over time as and whenever is
appropriate.

In considering the Board’s succession, the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee has already adopted a roadmap for the
succession plan up to FY2029/2030. The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee would identify and select the potential
candidates for Directors in accordance with the Company’s Directors
Nomination Policy and may engage independent professional search
firm to identify potential candidates for Independent Non-executive
Directors.

FHRREEEEECRNYRIESENESS
LHEH T RDR18%] 2 BEKF  HEZF
TR RBREE o AW HFMRREE
B (MES) TR ZERRBEFEZBIL -

HEBESSCHEAR  FHRRESZEEECERK
MEEEZROE BEE-E-h 2=
BREE - FHRESZESSHREALNTES
REBFRVERRBEEEZANE  YAREEREY
EXERNRANEEERLFIITES AR -
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Workforce Diversity

The Company believes that workforce diversity creates a dynamic
environment which leads to higher performance and improved
well-being. We are committed to upholding diversity of gender,
background, skills and experience across our workforce. In
FY2022/2023, we continued to track the gender ratio by business
functions, regions, and levels of employment. We reviewed the
progress quarterly to ensure visibility on gender equity, and heads
from functions and business operations were held accountable for
driving actions.

Further details on the gender ratio of the Group and initiatives taken
to improve gender diversity across senior management and the
wider workforce, together with relevant data, can be found in the
Sustainability Report 2022/2023, which will be published together
with this Annual Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for the
period from 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2023.
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Changes in Major Appointments and Other FEZERHMESZRE 2S5
Directorships

Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st March REBEE-_ZE_=F=ZA=+T—HLEEEREEXR
2023 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set out below: FHRAHILCEEERBSEBHIINT :

Changes in Major Appointments and Other Directorships

FERERAMESEHIE 2L

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE

REESE

- ceased to be member of The Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors on Innovation and Strategic Development on
30th June 2022.

- RSB EARAZSTHRMEHTHREEBAFREMERERERE -

- ceased to be director of Jardine Cycle & Carriage Limited on 31st July 2022.

- RIE-FEA=+—HBERNERBERABZIES

- ceased to be a member of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council on 1st June 2023.

- REBC=FAA-HREEBENRAZHERBREZESENRE -

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %c4

- appointed as an independent non-executive director of Eagle Investments HoldCo on 13th July 2022.
- RIZEZZHtA+=HEZ{TAEagle Investments HoldCo Z B FEHITESE °

- appointed as an independent non-executive director of Pacific Primary Health Care Holdings Limited.
- ¥EZE{EH Pacific Primary Health Care Holdings Limited 2 8 JF#11TEE o

— ceased to be director of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong) Limited on 28th February 2023.

- RIZET=F-AZH\HBMEELRITEHRENY (F8) BRAGZES -

- ceased to be chairman of the General Commlttee of The Hong Kong Club on 11th May 2023.

- REE-=FHRAT+-HBRAEESEZEEIE -

- appomted as an independent non-executive director of HSBC Holdings plc on 20th June 2023.

- RATECEFERACTHEZEREBEEERBRATZEILFHMITES o

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

EEEEL

- appointed as a board member of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority on 23rd October 2022.
- REEBECCETRASHZHEZERANANIEEERZESERNE °

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
fEESEE
- appointed as a non-executive director of Givaudan on 23rd March 2023.

- REEC=F-A+-HREARTEEIFIITES -
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TEERRE

HITERREBTHRAR

Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer

Theroles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer are clearly defined and separate with a very few
overlapping of roles and responsibilities in the areas of promoting
sustainable development, ensuring stakeholder communication, and
promoting corporate culture and uphold of integrity and honesty.

BTEFRREETHRARzACRBEC BES
ERED  REAREVHERRE BREOE
BE UREECECRREEERHAESS
HzABRBE LHRNER -

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

Executive Chairman

ERERE
BTER

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
Group Chief Executive Officer
[EESEE
SEETHRAR

- provides leadership to the Board

- ensures compliance with good
corporate governance practices
and procedures

.

sets strategic directions for the
Group

monitors Board effectiveness

.

promotes a culture of openness
and active contribution
amongst directors

provides continuous guidance
and mentoring to the Group
CEO

REEES
BRETREFLXERAESARE
F

RAEEHIERIEE T G
EFRETENN

REESEZHARKREES
£

B

- BEEETEREETHARN
i

.

)

- promotes social

responsibility goals and
long term sustainability
development

ensures effective
stakeholder communication

promotes corporate culture
of accountability, integrity
and honesty

- EBHEEFERERRE

AFERE

- BRERSENEREBE

REAMEM  EER
BB EEL

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

- formulates the Group’s strategic
plans under the strategic
directions of the Executive
Chairman

- implements the strategies and
policies approved by the Board

leads day to day management of
the Group

promotes and develops the
business and interests of the
Group

- provides monthly management
updates to the Board

REFTER ZRBEEER[
HEAREE 2 Kt

- Bl ES S E 2 KR RBEK
- BEREEAEER
- (BERBRAREERBE KA

- BANESERXEH 2EEE
wE
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CF

Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in FY2022/2023 to discuss and approve the
Group’s long term strategic plan; to review and monitor the financial
and business performance of the Group and each of its operating
units; to consider and approve annual budget, the financial reports;
to review and approve sustainability report and various corporate
governance and sustainability related policies and practices; and to
monitor and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
performance.

The Board and its Committees are supplied with full and timely
information in relation to the Company, which enables them to
discharge their responsibilities. There are established procedures
for Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the
Company’s expenses.

Directors have made active participation in the Board meetings,
Board Committees meetings and the Annual General Meeting during
the year.

2022
A aA /\)5] +A )\)5] A ;| 'f' H +=A
ESG AC ESG
RN AGM
AC
BM Board Meeting EE&E:
RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting HEfi R 22 ZEEE;

AC Audit Committee Meeting FZZEEEH

EEEER
EFER-B-= — - SHREENERE

REZH AmkiEAEE RBRBRE . &=
EREEAKERTEEEU M BREBX

B ZRNRENFERERMBRE S FHEM
BEUFARRBEREATXERRTEEARRER
BB ERRERER  YERRERAEERR
EERBEZRY °

EZERHAZESYERESARAMEHEE
# UETHE A2 ARERFHREES
HEEENERT  RETHBREREEMZHE
VEESR  BRAARQE -

FR ERVRBSHEESSER  EELEY
EEMRRBERE -

AC AC AC

ESG

ESG Committee Meeting

BC  my uwepmszsses

AGM  Annual General Meeting BRERBF AR
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Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings, E’\\ B/ CECCHREE RESENRNES
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit 2% FHRREREESeeR  ERETEee
Committee Meetings, ESG Committee Meeting and Annual General EORE UHENRERZEEEEENBRERAEEKX
Meeting during FY2022/2023 are as follows: SoHERERINT :
Meetings Attended/Held
HERE/ ERRY
Remuneration
and
Nomination ESG Annual Overall
Committee Audit Committee General Attendance
Board R Committee RE - HER Meeting Rate
Name i3 g REZEE BHZEE ERERE BRREFEAE BRLEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTESE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po L FEERT 5/5 1/10 5/5 N/A 11 100%
T#ER
Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 5/5 11 5/5 N/A 171 100%
®E T#ER
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE REELE 5/5 11 5/5 3/39 11 100%
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH 4/56 171 5/54 N/A 171 92%
®E T#ER
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG BT 5/5 1 N/A N/A 1”1 100%
TEA T#ER
Non-executive Directors FHiTES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRLL 5/5 11 N/A N/A 171 100%
TEA T
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BERLE 5/5 11 N/A N/A 11 100%
TER T#ER
Ms.MayLO BHELT 5/5 11 N/A 303 11 100%
TEA
Executive Directors HiTEs
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Executive BRERE 5/5@ 1/10 5/50 33 1/19 100%
Chairman) (HfTEE)
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI BEELE 5/5 1/160 5/50 3/3 171 100%
Mr.Eugene LYE Relgs 5/5 N/A N/A 3/3 1/1 100%
T#ER TER
Average Attendance of the Board Members 99%
EEEHETIIHES
Group Chief Financial Officer SEERNKAE
Ms. lan-hong NG SEYZE 5/5f N/A 5/50 N/A 1/10 N/A
TR TEA @A
Group Senior Director, Internal Audit SEADEHREAR
and Risk Management EEERAE
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW BRfEE N/A N/A 4740 N/A N/A N/A
@A TR TEA TEA @A
Group Director, Sustainability SETRHERRAE
Mr. Simeon Sing-hymn CHENG gBRiE N/A N/A N/A 3/30 N/A N/A
T#EA T#ER TER T#ER T#EA
External Auditors EV ]
KPMG L IE RS ) N/A N/A 4/40 N/A 11 N/A
@A TR TEA @A
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Notes:

(@)  Chairman of the Board

(b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
(c)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(d)  Chairman of the ESG Committee

(e)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

(f) Attendance by invitation

(g)  Wasunable to attend meeting due to ad hoc commitment

The Company acknowledges any General Meeting is one of the
important forums to engage our shareholders. In the 2022 Annual
General Meeting, all Directors, including Executive Chairman, the
Chairman of the Board Committees and the External Auditors
attended the meeting and answered shareholders’ questions.
Overseas Directors attended the Annual General Meeting through
video conferencing due to travel restrictions during the period.

Duringtheyearunder review, the Executive Chairmancommunicated
with the Independent Non-executive Directors on various occasions
without the presence of other Directors and Senior Management.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee, an Executive Committee and an
ESG Committee with specific terms of reference.

Board of Directors

EEE

() EFEXRF

(b) FHHRERZESEXRE

(0 BREEEXR

d) RE HERERZESXR
(e) MREFREERE

(  FEBHE

(8 RIS SEBEMAREHES:

RRBERBEARRASERAREBNEER
Be— RIZBFRRBFERE 2RES
BREVTER  SESRESETFERINEZEM
HEHFEASAEERRIER - FEBINES
HRREERARESEBRESEHERRE
FERE -

REEFE  ATEFEEHMESRSEEE
ABTESZBERT » RTBERTEB Y
ITESETEE -

ESE8T

EEBBETERLFTHRIEEEZER  BRZEE
2 -HTEEEREE HEREREZEE &
B EBEESEE -

Executive :  Remuneration and Nomination
Committee . Committee ©
HITEES FHRIREEES

Audit : ESG Committee
Committee 4 B #ER
ENEES { EREES
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EERRE

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Mr. Peter Mr. Anthony
Tak-shing LO John Liddell
BfEARSTE NIGHTINGALE
REESRE
(Non-executive (Independent
Director) Non-executive
(HHITEE) Director) :
L (B AHITEE)

Corporate Governance Report

FHRREEEES

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
(Chairman)
ZEEST

(X&)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(B HHTESE)

Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Paul Jeremy Dr. Roy Chi-ping Ms. Yvonne Ms. May LO
ERLUND : BROUGH CHUNG Mo-lingLO BHEXLZ+
S K& EETEL BERRTL
(Independent (Independent (Independent (Non-executive (Non-executive
Non-executive Non-executive Non-executive Director) Director)
Director) : Director) : Director) L (EHTES) (FHITESE)
(BUHHTEE)  (BUHHTEE) | (BUHBTES) |

Major responsibilities

FERE

to consider and approve the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
Senior Management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses;
bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes, including share option,
share award and other benefit plans;

BEMAEEHTEERSBEEABZHFHNEIGRYG  BEFE
AL ; AL B R H AR BB St 2

BMAERTE
 BERBRE  RORBREMERNEE

to review the design of all employee share schemes and to administer all aspects of
the share schemes in accordance with the applicable rules and requirements;

W RS R G BNR T REERRARERERFERHE

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge, experience, gender and age) of the Board;

BNEEE RS R AREREZ T - EhEERKEE  AE - &M
BN FRELENZ T ;

to review the effectiveness of Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination
Policy;
BNESERES T EBRRESRABERZAN

to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and to review
the annual confirmation on their independence;

ERBNFITES B UM RERRB I FEER

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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° to review Director’s time commitment;

ERESMANHAERE

° to identify and determine the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity
and monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable objectives;
NeERBEERESERESZ UL UTEE ERERERZENAEARZE
EE S

° to recommend to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of and succession
planning for Director and Group Chief Executive Officer;

HRESKEETHARZZARERRATAINESSREES |

° to review and assess the adequacy and appropriateness of corporate culture
statement; and

B RFEEECBRARTEHRNE

° to review the effectiveness and alignment of corporate culture with the corporate
governance compliance functions.

BN EE B REELEPXE RS RBRERE —H -

Work done during and for ° reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package of Senior Management

FY2022/2023 including the Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group by reference

REARB-ZFE_-__ =F to the individuals’ job responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks and
=B EEFR{EZTE prevailing market conditions;

B AREAESEEEAR (BEAKENTEERSEEEAR) 2
BRERSE - EFESZEBA T ZBERKRR - BFERAFRRITHERE ;

° reviewed and approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share options
and share awards, having given due consideration to both the Group’s financial
performance and the individuals’ performances during the year in accordance with
the performance-based compensation policy recommended by an independent
consultant;

REBYBBER  URRABEZHFHBR  Ea2ZEAEEZHMERAR
BEALTFAZBAREE  BRARIEZBBBIEAURR HBRER K7 5E
& ;

° reviewed and recommended to the Board and Shareholders for adoption of the
new 2022 Share Option Scheme;
EHRERESTERRRENT S —FHERETE;

° reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the re-appointment of the
Executive Chairman; Group Chief Executive Officer and one Independent Non-
executive Director;

FHRERESSHEHITER  KETHEBR —EBUFHITES 2ER
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EERRE

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity, including the skills,
knowledge, professional qualification, experience, gender and age of the Board;
EREEERE  HE ARkEZalt  BEEEHEE2TEREE AH &
HEEK KB HRFRE

reviewed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map;

EHNESSREAIIRERKEEE

reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board diversity;

EHEREZEHESTINATEERE

reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her duties;

ERESERTHBEMTHNERE

assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent Non-executive
Directors;

AR B FNITES 2BV

made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for FY2022/2023;
MESSEER_T-— "ET_-HREECEREWES

reviewed and approved an Executive Director’s external directorship appointment;
and

WA R E-BITES ZIPESEE S K

reviewed various Corporate Governance related policies and mechanisms in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and Listing Rules requirements.

BESRCEECHBRREREHREFSEXERTRARLETHRAZRE

48 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t B FR EEE AR A A
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Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
have been updated in March 2022 and been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary,
to fulfill its roles and responsibilities.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held one meeting

during FY2022/2023. Each member’s attendance record during the
year is shown on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

FRREEREECHEEECR S -2F=
REHMAETEREERFTRADT ZME o Ff
RREZESERRHEXARER  SREMHBIE
ENFAzER (WMFER)  LETHAGKEE -

FRIERZEEN T “E_ZUHE
ERET-IEE SRERFRHEEZEZL
RPN ANFIRE44H

BEREES

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

(Chairman)

(X£R)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(BUHBITESE)

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Mr.JanP.S.
Kwok-po LI ERLUNDZ 4
FEREL :

(Independent . (Independent
Non-executive : Non-executive
Director) Director)
(B HEHTESE) (BUFHTESE)

Mr. Anthony
John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
; REEKE
. (Independent
: Non-executive
Director)

(BUHBITESE)
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Major responsibilities

FEME

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the External Auditors and their audit fees;

MMEZB2ET EFEZEERER URBEZREBMNEEEEOESS
RALER

to meet with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the audit;

BN ST mE R TEZ MEREE ;

to review the interim financial report and annual financial statements before they
are submitted to the Board;

ERXTESEN - FHTHUBBRERZFHHRE

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim review and final audit,
and any other matters the External Auditors may wish to discuss, and review the
External Auditors’ management letter and management’s response;

HRBERPHERRFEERBEMBERCBERSLEZREER » REMHEM
MNEZBMMARZER  URBHNMEREM2EZERRARGREEEZ
[ElFE ;

to review the internal audit programs and to ensure co-ordination between the
Internal and External Auditors, assess the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems which cover all material financial,
operational and compliance controls, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group;

FER A ELE B AR AIET AR NS HENRE 2 1538 - PR A BDREM
BEAYE £ERGREZEFIANAREERRADEZRFZZRY » UARER
REPETBEEEAE R X EREAEERRISFEE 2L ;

to conduct an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the financial reporting
functions;

HUBERBMENT BN ETERRE EHETFERS

to review the whistleblowing policy and system for employees and those who deal
with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and to ensure proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of those matters
and for appropriate follow up action;
BRI BEEANQAREENEREER THUMBEIRE - ABEIEHHBIE Z A6
ETARHBIMRNEREERAS . ARBREEEZHEUZSEEEE
&Q$§§JZ§E§&%HQ?§§ZE&%&?E’Q :

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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° to review the effectiveness of the policy and system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations;

RITEE R R B 2 AR B R RAHE ;

° to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the External Auditors;

ERERANTRINELBAMBAIR 2 EBMR

° to oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management procedures that have
beenin place;

ERRBNRANAREVY €ERSREEREREERFEARABN

° todevelopandreview the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board;

HERBNAR A 2 EXERBRERESR  YAEBSSRHES |

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management;

BAREREERSBERBABZIFIRSGESXRRE

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

BARERARNADEBTEEREERESAZHRRER ;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees; and

HE  BARERBARESRESZTATARESRFM &

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

BANALAHEEERTR AR BREREXEE REANTEZHE -
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Work done during and for
FY2022/2023
REARB=-B== "%
=B BRFEEMRE2ZIE

reviewed the FY2022/2023 preliminary interim results announcement, interim
financial report, preliminary annual results announcement and annual financial
statements with management and External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board;
ERERERMNEZEMEN - “E_ZHRFEZNSHHREEN
& hEBKRE S FEEELASTUREFUBEREK  UEFESF T UK
o

reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal control systems and
the periodic audit reports prepared by the Internal Auditor and approved the
FY2022/2023 and FY2023/2024 audit plans;

ERPEFMRA AR R ZABEERARFEADETEHER 2 FT]R
& it?tt/&_ﬁ_ —CECCHMBEER-ECE CECNBBEEZER
bl

%N}

reviewed the Group Risk Report prepared by the Internal Auditor;
EHHABETMAEHEZ EBER

met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations prior to the commencement of the audit work;
REBEZTEREA > EIEZREMEETRER I E2EEREEURERS
{E ¢

reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the External Auditors;

FRRZRINEL B 2 BRI

reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-audit services provided by
the External Auditors, together with their respective fees;

FRAWHEE FAEHENERBERE . ERRFELRBEREFHERE ;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Group’s accounting, financial reporting, risk management and internal audit
functions, and their training programs and budget; effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and compliance with the Corporate Governance Code;
ERAEENE  UKER - REEERASSENIIEBMATEZ2ER - 81
ERREHIRERN  URBIREREHEE  FEERIPEABEEZHUK
TEERTUERZBER

reviewed the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management;

ENEENSEEEABZEIIRSFESERR
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EEARE

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

ERARRAEEEREERESRCHERRER

reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to Directors and
employees;

EHNEARESEREEZTATARERFR |

reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

EHCEERTAZERBERLAEEERREANFIEZRKE

held private session with External Auditors in the absence of Executive Directors
and Senior Management;

EHTESRSEEEAENESEZERTEREIEZBEMEH

reviewed and approved the “Policy on Provision of Non-assurance Services by
External Auditor”; and

FR R HLE [ BRI AR ERRBIBE] &

reviewed various Corporate Governance related policies and systems in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and Listing Rules requirements.

BRSHELEEEEBRIRRAGEANTEEEELTRR EHRAZRE
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The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March 2012
which has been revised in March 2022. The main objective of the
Policy is to provide employees and external parties an open and
unified reporting channel and procedures to report any serious
misconduct or malpractice involving the Company and its employees
even on an anonymous basis. The Audit Committee has been
delegated withthe overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing
the implementation and effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy.

The Company has adopted a Group Business Ethics Policy in March
2020 to establish the general principles of business ethical standards
that all employees of the Company are expected to follow in daily
operation. Every employee is required to undertake to adhere
to this policy which includes provisions dealing with conflict of
interests, protection and proper use of company assets, bribery
and corruption, dishonesty and fraudulent act as well as reporting
procedures for potential illegality and misconduct. The Company
applies zero tolerance to any violation of this policy and shall not
tolerate any illegal or unethical acts. The Audit Committee has the
overall responsibility for reviewing the internal control system of
anti-corruption.

During the year, no incident involving serious fraud or misconduct
have been received from employees nor external parties which had
or would have a material impact on the Company’s financial position
and overall operations. No significant area of concern is noted on the
implementation and effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy and
Group Business Ethics Policy.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy in August
2012 which has been revised in March 2022. The main objective
of the Policy is to provide a basic framework for developing the
Company’s policies and practices to ensure alignment of interests
and expectations from our shareholders, the investing public and
other stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Policy has been
published on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Company and monitors compliance
fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been updated
in March 2022 and been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including independent professional advice, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee met five timesin FY2022/2023.Each member’s

attendance record during the year is shown on page 44 of this Annual
Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) RE HEREREZES
Committee

Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE
(Chairman)
REEKE
(XFE)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(BUHBITEE)

Mr. Eugene LYE
Bl

(Executive Director)

(BIITES)

Mr. Roberto Mr. Winston Ms. May LO
GUIDETTI Yau-lai LO BHXLL
PEIEIRELE BERERE
(Executive Director and (Executive Chairman) (Non-executive
Group Chief Executive (B1TESE) Director)
Officer) (FEBTEE)
(BIITEBEEH
TIE#E )
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Major responsibilities

FEME

to provide vision, long term guidance and report to the Board on Group-level
sustainability goals, strategies and priorities;

REEEEZRERRERE FRREARESEAZEESRMES  RER
BRER;

to review international trends in ESG-related legislation and regulation
developments, including public debates as regards social, environmental and ethical
standards of corporate behaviour and recommend anticipatory measures and plans
for the Company;

EHRE HEREREBLEAR AR ZRENERES  BEENLE BER
TETHEESEENARER  YRAARERERERERFTE

to advise the Board on environmental and social risks of strategic significance and
provide anticipatory and mitigation plans;

HREAXREECRERMERARAESSFHERLIRHATAN KRS AR S

to review the Company’s sustainability performance against declared KPIs (Key
Performance Indices) and goals;

REBECEMZERRBREERBGRNAQRTZABERRERRE

to review material interests of the Company’s key stakeholders and provide
corresponding long-term strategic direction to the Company;

FEHARRNTERFMENEAFE AR ARRUBEREEREST M

to examine the relevance of sustainability indices and the desirability of inclusion;

MR AERRES AU RAAZS R SBT

to review and approve Group-level sustainability-related policies; and

FHRAEREERNIFERREEER K

to review and approve the Company’s sustainability reports.

ERRER R IFERRERS -
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Work done during and for
FY2022/2023
REARB=-B== "%
=B BRFEEMRE2ZIE

reviewed and approved the Group‘s 2022/2023 Sustainability Report;
B RMWEAEE —_Z2-— '— T _=FABERRRE

analysed, discussed and provided strategic direction on a decarbonation pathway
for the Company;

DT~ I AD BB AR 2 PR IR B T )

reviewed key international landscape on sustainability frameworks and their
relevances to the Company, including the sustainability disclosure standard being
developed by the ISSB (International Sustainability Standards Board) and the nature
risk management and disclosure framework being developed by the Task Force on
Nature-related Financial Disclosures (“TNFD”);
ERURHEREERNTEZEREREREEARQTWERME  EREEISSB (H
BKEEAZES) Fﬁ%ﬂmz"f%iﬁsﬂﬁﬂ-u& BAMRBEMKIBEET/HENAE
([TNFDJ) FsE 2z B AR EE R # EESR

provided strategic direction on focus areas on the Company’s progress and
achievements in various external ESG ratings;

MAATERENPIRE HERERTRFEZERRRREE R BHIRMES
BAM ;

examined key local and international sustainability-related policies and regulations
development, their implications to the Company, and provided directions on
corresponding actions for the Company;
ERFTEEMRERURFERREEBRRR ZRBRUAREB AN 2HE I
MAAREEE 2 HETERMARD ;

assessed the progress of and provided further direction on the Company’s rural
revitalisation projects in Mainland China market, which serve to promote the
common prosperity of farmers and rural areas; and
AEAQATEREAL TSN IREEEER  TRHE-SHO - DUEER
REENELEE® &

approved the set of external sustainability targets under the Company’s
Sustainability Framework, to be achieved by FY2025/2026.
HERARUFERRER 2 —RINBUFERREZE  ZEEREFAHER=ZF
—hH/CECAMBREFEZAER -
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The Board-level ESG Committee continued to oversee our
sustainability issues, and to advise the Board on a range of strategy
ESG topics which present risks and opportunities for the Company.
The ESG Committee also provided strategic long-term guidance on
sustainability performance, goals and priorities. Please refer to our
Sustainability Report for more details of our efforts on material ESG
topics.

Terms of reference of the ESG Committee has been published on the
Company’s website.

The ESG Committee held three meetings during FY2022/2023. Each

member’s attendance record during the year is shown on page 44 of
this Annual Report.

Executive Committee

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

(Chairman)

BREXE
(X&)

(Executive Chairman)

ETELFIZRE HEBERERZESHEER
4*/;1F38’J—Hiﬁé§§ﬁ$ﬂ W — RPN Q B
EEEREMRBRMERE HEREREED
EETSFHEZ -RE HEBRERZESNTA
AHEZRERE  BEERELXEESHERMURE
MRERIEE - EEMRERRE - HERER
BEZIEHE  BA2EUBERRERS -

RIE - HERERZESCREHECTIERNA
NERG o

RE HEREARREEN=E=-= ZT==
MBFERNBTIAEE SHRERFRALFEE
EZERIIENAEREA4E ©

HITEES

(BUTEE)

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Ms. lan Hong NG

R |EILE
(Executive Director and Group Chief Executive Officer) (Group Chief Financial Officer)
(BITEBELEFTHER) (EE S HERE)
Major responsibilities ° to operate as a general management committee under the direct authority of the

FERE

Board; and

WE-REEEESE

£ HERBESS

° to consider and approve any contract, transaction and arrangement and exercise of
powers and functions as conferred by the Board inrelation today today management

of the Company.

ZRRIEEFNEHN RERZFURITHEHESEHNAQNTAAFEERRE T2

R RERE o
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company or
by shareholders in a general meeting. Shareholders may propose a
candidate for election as Director in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the Director Nomination Policy. The
nomination procedures by shareholders have been published on the
website of the Company. Any Director who is appointed by the Board
shall retire at the next General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Code
Provision B.2.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, all Directors,
including Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years and one-third (or the number
nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of Directors shall retire from
office every year at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Director Nomination Policy in March 2012
to set out the procedures and criteria for identifying and selecting
potential candidates for the appointment of new Director/s as well
as for considering the renewal of director appointment. The Board
has delegated to the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
the authority to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorship; assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors; and
make recommendations to the Board to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors.

The Director Nomination Policy is intended to guide the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee when recommending
new director(s) and when deciding whether to recommend that
current Director(s) be re-elected. The Committee will carefully
consider the qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
gender and age diversity, time commitments and contributions
of any currently sitting director before making a re-election
recommendation to the Company’s shareholders. Any shareholder
of the Company who is qualified to be present and vote at the general
meeting, may nominate one or more persons for election as adirector
of the Company at any general meeting if the shareholder complies
with the director nomination provisions, including without limitation
the notice, information and consent provisions under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the Listing Rules.

EEZ2RE - EERER

AATDRBAADFHRIEEEEG 2 EERT

BERRASHBRREZEHES - RRITRER
AR ERARREZRBIKRRERBREALEE
o -RRZRBEFCHEADR 2L EFIE -
NESEZAEZESYART ERRAELE
B o

RIEAD R ERAAN K £ 55 BB 8% 1 10 <5 B4
XB221k 2RES (BREFITES) AR
PE=FRESR MEBFAE=I2— (&K
BNETRBE=22—) 2ZEERARFRR
BERSEER-

ESREBHEER

EFECRZBE-HF-ARMNESRAEE
ETRHIMERREERBEARTHEIESUR
ZREBERBRIESZEZEFRED - H#KIE
FREECEESERBELUMCARESEERK
AESEHENAL  YREIOESSHEREE
BRIEBATHEES  BRBIFITESH
Byt RAESZEAHENZEAESERE

EERAERE AN ERHAESRAERDHE
BERRIEEOHFMRREEEZESRMES -
ZESRFHZEERAESCER - Hig &
B B MAIRFRZ UL HENHE
BRERE  AARDERREHERER - EW
HEERHFRRASENE LREZA QTR
R AUHEBREFRAGY (BEERRRAEAR
AERAAN EHRAET ZEE - BAKH
%) 2BERTREMRRAELRE-BHN
EALBRERDFES -
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the Director
Nomination Policy, whenever appropriate, and recommends to the
Board for approval any amendments or updates to the Policy from
time to time.

The Director Nomination Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed Directors
for provision of information which would assist him or her in
understanding his or her role as a director as well as building an
understanding of the nature of the Company, its business, products
and markets. On appointment, new Directors will also be given an
induction program kit outlining the responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements. The induction
kit also contains the Board procedures, including the Terms of
Reference of the Board Committees. Directors are provided with
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors” issued by The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors as guidelines on the general principles of duties of directors
and a “Code of Conduct for Directors” to avoid conflicts of interest as
far as possible.

The Company also arranges continuous professional development
program to Directors at the expense of the Company. The Company
Secretary provides regularly to Directors information about the
enrollment of external training courses and seminars as well as legal
alerts and articles which are relevant for Directors to keep them
up-to-date on any legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
requirements and also professional practices in a dynamic business
world. The program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and
skills in performing their roles, functions and duties of directors of a
listed company.

In August 2022, the Company organised an annual in-house
training program for our Directors covering the general disclosure
obligations and key considerations before undertaking transactions
of the Company under the regulatory requirements.

All Directors have provided to the Company Secretary their training
records for FY2022/2023 which have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The average training hours of the Directors during the
year was 50 hours.
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The following table summarizes topics of training program attended THRPMPEEEN "S- —“E-=8HE
by all Directors during FY2022/2023: ES gt ez 5:E
Areas
HiE
Director Legal, Accounting,
duties and Innovation  regulatory, finance,
Global Company  governance and  governance tax
business business EERER  technology &Ml E# . Bt BE.
Name #a REEE  AOREHR &R - Fit St &R wi
Executive Chairman HITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BERERE v v/ v v v
Independent Non-executive B IEHTES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David THEHL g v v v 7 g
Kwok-po LI
Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND v/ v/ v/
RE
Mr. Anthony John Liddell RERLE v v v
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy v/ v/ v/ v/ v/
BROUGH %&4%
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EETELT v v/ v v v v
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERRLL v v/ v
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO EERLE v v
Ms.May LO BHELL v v/
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI BEELE v/ v v v/ v
Mr. Eugene LYE el k4 v v v v v
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Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2022/2023 - by topic

EEN-E-__ /"E_-UBREESMZ
B — REEDN

30/0 ....................................... ............ 450/0

Global Business

Innovation and Technology

RIFTRHR

5% .

Legal / Regulatory /
Governance

SEBERER

Accounting /
Finance / Tax

BB B

12% -

Director’s
Duties and
Governance

ESRERER

Company Business

ENGIE SV

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous training
and development to Senior Management, which enables them to
boost their skills and knowledge to re-evaluate their roles with a
newly informed perspective and in this highly competitive consumer
product market. Senior Management is encouraged to participate in
various continuous professional development programs and other
training courses at the expense of the Company. The average training
hours of Senior Management during the year was 67 hours.
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BEE 2R

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2022/2023 - by type

ESN-E-_- /"E_-UEREESMNZ
B — RER DN

- 58%
Readings
RE

1% e

Plant/market visit

BE/ 528

2 OO/O ...................

In-house Training

ERsES

21%
External Courses /
Seminars /
Workshops
SRR
WatE TS

EZETHOERTBANCEEERTS L &
,.aiEZJII&E‘&JEiTnJﬁ BEAEBHEERE  £KF

BURAERKERANE - YUARHANEAEERN
%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ZHﬁtﬁb c ARTHAESEBEEAES
HERANEERERRAERAMIBIIRE - &
AHEARAXN - SEEEABRAKFRFIGE
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Senior Management’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in Analysis of training attended by Senior Management
FY2022/2023 - by topic in FY2022/2023 - by type

SEEBABR-ZE-Z 2R FESMZ BEEEAEBR-ZE-__ "R -HMBFESMZE
1B — BB I — RER DM

Company Business

] KRR EH 11% - 53%
o/, Readings External Courses /
3% RE Seminars /
Cyber Workshops
Technology } i } ; SRR HEES
HIERHL TRy
12% ...
Audit /

Accounting /
Finance / Tax
-
835 B

3 60/0 ....................

In-house Training

RERE

13% -
Regulatory / Governance / .

Sustainability kY o
ERER AsERR T 30 /°

Market / Business/
Product Development

w5 EY S ERER
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Annual Financial Statements for FY2022/2023 are
prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards
and policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before adoption by
the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Specific enquiries were made of all Directors and they
have confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Code for the year ended 31st March, 2023. A similar code has also
been adopted by the Group for the specified group of employees who
may possess or have access to price sensitive/inside information.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they have
provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
during FY2022/2023. Directors have also disclosed to the Company
their interests as director and other office in other public companies
and organisation in a timely manner, and have regularly reported to
the Company Secretary on any subsequent changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that the evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board and its Executive Chairman is an essential requirement of
good corporate governance and has since FY2011/2012 adopted
the Recommended Best Practice under the CG Code of conducting
regular Board evaluation exercises. The latest Board evaluation
conducted by external consultant was in June 2022. The Board is
committed to reviewing its own performance and effectiveness at a
regular interval of two to three years or should there be a substantial
change in Board composition and structure.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has
been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board and the Board
Committees as well as good communication flow amongst the Board
members, shareholders and Senior Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to both the
Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters relating
to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate governance
developments and compliance and facilitating the professional
development programme and induction programme of Directors. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of the
Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook 15 hours of
external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest regulatory
changes and corporate governance practices and to refresh her skills
and knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failuretoachieve businessobjectives,and canonly provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. To
achieve this, the Board ensures that there is an effective framework
of risk governance and ongoing risk management process to promote
the long-term success of the Company.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility on an ongoing
basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal controls are maintained to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement of information. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

NGIE

RAMERARAZREE  AHESSERE-
NAMEREMDESERESTZEST RS
BF/EE UREZESERE RRRSE
EEAEBBZREFEE -
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Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system, which is
developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) components for internal controls,
to manage and mitigate rather than to eliminate business risks. The
key underlying components of effective internal control system are

illustrated as below:

66

PoBRE: 2

751 B 2 R 4E Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) = A1 &R B2
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls is
a continuing process in the Company. Our internal control system is
designed to give reasonable assurance that:

° Assets are prudently safeguarded;
° Business activities are conducted in an effective and efficient

manner;
° Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and

° Laws and regulations relevant to the business are complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement the internal
controls while the Board and the Audit Committee oversee the
effectiveness of the internal control system that has been put in

place.
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Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department) plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the approved
Internal Audit Charter and includes:

° Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities, personnel,
records, properties, and other information sources required to
carry out internal audits;

° Review the effectiveness of internal control over operational,
compliance and financial reporting as well as risk management
function; and

° Special reviews of areas of concern identified by management
or the Audit Committee.

Group Internal Audit, reporting to the Audit Committee, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of risk
management functions and controls in business operations.

Risk Based Audit

Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account the
Company structure, management’s concern, nature and complexity
of operation, and operating environment, Group Internal Audit
prepares its annual audit plan which is reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee. The risk assessment methodology assists
in identifying business risks and determining audit frequencies.
Based on the approved audit plan, Group Internal Audit schedules
its internal audit programs to conduct an independent review of
different financial, business and functional operations and activities
with resources focusing on areas with higher risk.

During FY2022/2023, Group Internal Audit issued reports to Senior
Management covering various operational and financial units of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Group Internal Audit also conducted
reviews of major projects and areas of concern identified by
management.
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Ethics Policy and Whistleblowing System

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all company’s activities and
operations. It is the responsibility of all directors and employees to
comply with these minimum requirement.

The Company has established Group Business Ethics Policy and
Code of Conduct, which outlines our commitment to integrity, and
set out business ethical standards that the directors and employees
are expected to follow. On top of that, the Code of Business Conduct
for Suppliers and Customers also set clear expectations on the
ethical conduct of our suppliers and customers, providing guidelines
on various aspects such as conflicts of interest, confidentiality, anti-
corruption and fraud. Group Internal Audit and Risk Management
Department has launched Vitasoy Global Integrity Portal across our
operations in phases. The portal embedded with e-learning platform,
policy and publication library and online complaint channel, aims to
enhance mutual communication of the Company’s standards and
expectation on ethics and integrity with employees, key suppliers
and distributors.

The Company has established a Whistleblowing Policy and system
for employees and other stakeholders to raise suspected misconduct,
malpractice, irregularities or concerns through a confidential
reporting channel. Procedures are in place for Group Internal Audit
to conduct independent investigation and follow up. Group Internal
Audit will report all the reporting received under the Whistleblowing
Policy and action taken in response to such reporting to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.
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Risk Management EEE

Risk management framework with effective governance structure KA ERBEEER  EREXNRKRES
and management process are in place. Such framework enables the BENEERF  EBEIEZRMFEARADTEHFREE
Company to adopt a proactive and structured approach to identify BRERGZHE  FREEEERER  FHAl
and manage risks across the Company with ongoing monitoring and R EEARN T R 2B o

oversight.

Risk Management Framework
[B B B AE R

e Audit Committee
Oversight &z (On behalf of the Board)
ERZEE (RREFS®)
e Group Internal Audit
SEREHET

Enterprise Risk Management
Executive Committee
TERREEHTEES
Entity CEOs

75 A BITBER

Group Risk Management
SERRERE Anticipate
&R

e Department Heads &
Individual Employee
HAEERMERSET

Respond
=5

Regulate
BLEE

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE & 69



EERRE

@9 Corporate Governance Report

70

Risk Governance Structure RBRERLEE

The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles and RRERRBERETI=(ABHzACKEE :
responsibilities as explained below:

Roles and Responsibilities

BERBE
Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board
BEE ° Oversees the Company’s risk management and internal

control on an ongoing basis.

° Oversees those risks that warrant the Committee’s attention
and supervise risk management process as part of good
corporate governance.

REESG EREZET

o BEEBAATRZEREERAIPEELE -

o EBEZEY %E&EZEZ#HF?EEQ%H@%IEEF% » BUER
ERIEFLEE

Group Internal Audit

° Conducts independent review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system and provides
reasonable assurance to Audit Committee.

SEAIBES
o HEKREBERANEZZASGZHIETELEMN L OHFX
ZESRMHESERE
Risk Monitoring & Review Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee & Entity CEOs
EREE R % ER o Design, implement and monitor the risk management and
internal control system.
° Provide assurance to the Audit Committee on the

effectiveness of risk management and internal control system.
CEEARERHTESERMS ARTHREAR
o FHit BHREREREMEERAIMPEZRL
o MEXKZEESRHEHERREERABEZRGHBZRE

Group Risk Management, an independent team under Group

Internal Audit and Risk Management

° Supports the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and
Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee.

° Develops and implements risk management frameworks,
policies, tools and methodologies with all subsidiaries.
° Monitors status of risk and communicate with the Executive

Committee and Audit Committee on an ongoing basis.
SERRERAERR EB%*&HF?EMIE*‘BF?FTZ%ZIF%
o ZEEST BERZEERGXEMEERITEESS
o HFIEMBARREYRHTREMEBER - BX - IEJSU?
b7
o  FEEREMMR  YEHTEESERELZESHEER

Risk & Control Ownership Department Heads & Individual Employee
AR IEHET e Ownership of managing risks, executing control activities and

identifying new risks in daily operation.
HAMEERERET
o RNBBEETREERME  HTEEIDREABIFER -
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily operations,
financial activities, compliance, strategy development & business
planning, investment decision and external factors. The processes
are as follows:

° Anticipate: Potential risks and threats that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives will be anticipated and identified by all individual
staff. Risks are grouped into six clusters (including reputation,
strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation) to facilitate
the assessment appropriately.

° Rate: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis of impact
and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite set by the
Board. The risk impact and likelihood will be rated according
to the historical records, statistical analyses and relevant
experiences, specialist and expert judgments by management.
Group Risk Management facilitates the evaluation process
including the summary discussion in the Enterprise Risk
Management Executive Committee and Audit Committee.

° Respond: A delegated management is assigned to each risk
as risk owner to fully respond on each risk. Risk management
strategies and corresponding control owners are identified by
risk owner to deploy appropriate control activities.

° Regulate: We take a close monitoring on the current status of
risk, which is being monitored through key risk indicators with
defined thresholds, occurrence of related incidents, control
effectiveness and audit results. Any change in current status
of risk to a worsened level will trigger a react process through
creation of a mitigation plan.

° React: When there is a change on the current status of risk,
the corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation plan with
action details, responsible person and timeline to address the
status.

° Report: To support the oversight of the Board on the
effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk reporting
requirement was approved by the Board of Directors under
risk management framework. Periodic risk report is provided
to the Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee
summarizing the results of risk monitoring, mitigation
plans and the current risk management implementation
progress. Besides, since the launch of the Governance, Risk
and Compliance System (“GRC System”), Enterprise Risk
Management Executive Committee and risk owners are able
to obtain real-time risk status through the relevant system
dashboards.
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Risk Management Activities

Updated Risk Appetite Statement and Enhanced Risk
Assessment Process

Vitasoy Risk Appetite Statement articulates the amount and
type of risk that the Group is prepared to accept to achieve our
strategic objectives by maintaining sound risk management
and internal control systems. The Risk Appetite Statement has
been reviewed and updated to align with the current business
context of the company. Besides, to enable a more holistic and
effective approach to risk prioritization, we adopt an enhanced
Risk Assessment Process where risk velocity is considered in
addition to likelihood and impacts.

Managing ESG risks with risk management framework

The effective management of ESG risks is a key focus of
Vitasoy risk management activities. Particularly, ESG risks
have been managed alongside with other relevant business
and operational risks under the risk management framework.
Moreover, the enhancement for scope and process of the
GRC System will be continued to provide more timely and
transparent information on the status of ESG risks.

Risk reviews for key purchases

In addition to the regular risk management process, Vitasoy
maintains the risk review process in making key purchasing
decisions. The review has ensured that critical purchasing risks
are adequately assessed and considered and hence improve
the quality of purchasing decisions.

Risk management trainings

With the ever-changing business environment, Vitasoy
conducts risk management training for key associates to raise
risk awareness and improve preparedness to incidents and
crisis. These trainings are a core component in nurturing risk
management culture and encouraging risk-informed decisions
and operations.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

B b B b

E TR RiF B EA R B AR AT R A2

MM B 4 B PR M I AR SR B AR
MEREEREE  SBESE2NER
EERABEZERS  BRAMNVEE
BeRARRFEHCEBEMRERN U
ENEANBEANEBRE I B
TEZERERMERRIEIELRT

BRI RE - BRT AR
RN R A - BRFEEREEMBERE -

FRARMEBRERNEERRIE  HERE
AR

BEMEERE HERERRABRREML
EEEETENESR - EEMAERELR
BRkEBERE K RE HLERERE
MM ARMREEERTETEE - Ik
5 BRFEINRGRCEASR RSB BIER
HENEFERMNIRE « HERERERARR

ARRRBETEMER
BREENREREERREN  SHIHRER
RBZARBREPMARBERRRE &
REBRBERBEZSFERETE &7
RIBRRER -

E s EEE

HHRERE CEHERE iﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ%i%
BETETRRBEEZEIURESEREER
?mﬁ@ﬂ?ﬁ&&f%%ﬂ’]ﬁ%ﬁé o HE I

HI 2 3% B R B T TR S AL AN S B R B A 1B R
RMEERNZOARERMD °



/é? Corporate Governance Report

'.:\‘-.*:Aiﬁtl:

Review of Risk Management and Internal
Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion
of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered the risk
management and internal control system are effective and adequate
for the year ended 31st March 2023. No significant areas of concern
that might affect the financial, operational and compliance aspects
and risk management functions of the Company were identified.
The scope of this review also covered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting,
financial reporting and internal audit functions, as well as training
and relevant budget to them.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules and Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable
after such information comes to our attention unless it falls within
any of the safe harbours provisions under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place with established
policies and procedures for complying with the Inside Information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. The Board
has adopted a Disclosure Compliance Policy on 27th November
2012 which has been further revised with a few housekeeping
amendments on 25th November 2021. The Policy has been
formulated by reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.
The purpose of the Policy is to provide Directors and employees
with guidelines on assessing, reporting and disseminating inside
information, maintaining confidentiality and abiding shares dealing
restrictions. The Company has included in its code of conduct and
staff handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised disclosure or
use of confidential and inside information.
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External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the Company
by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting. An amount of
HK$6.7 million (FY2021/2022: HK$6.2 million) was charged for
FY2022/2023 for statutory audits for the Company and subsidiaries.
The amount for the other audit-related services and other non-audit
services provided by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries were
HK$0.3 million (FY2021/2022: HK$0.3 million) and HK$0.4 million
(FY2021/2022: HK$0.3 million) respectively. The non-audit services
mainly comprised tax advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
FY2022/2023 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 109 to 115.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to provide guidance to
the Board and the management of the Company for distribution of
surplus funds to its shareholders.

In determining the level of dividend payment, the following criteria
and consideration must be taken:

- Sharing of success with shareholders

- Liquidity and capital requirement

- Historical trend of dividend payout

- Benchmarking with competitors within the industry
- Fulfilment of financial covenants

- Taxation impact

- Restrictions

- Other factors that may deem relevant

The Company intends to declare dividends to shareholders to align
with the fluctuation in profit attributable to shareholders net of one-
off event impact and may declare special dividends from time to time
in addition to interim or final dividends. The determination to pay
dividends and level of dividend to be distributed will be subject to the
discretion of the Board from time to time.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Procedures for Shareholders to convene General Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings are entitled to send a request to the Company to convene
a general meeting. Such request must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. A request may be sent to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office in hard copy form or in electronic
form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also be authenticated by the person
or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation of
statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder/s
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who have a relevant right
to vote, can request the Company in writing to circulate to the
shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at
that meeting or other business to be dealt with at that meeting. A
request may be sent to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office in hard copy form or in electronic form to
ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the statement to be circulated. It
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it and be
received by the Company at least 7 days before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a Director
at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than aretiring Director for election
as a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should deposit a
written notice of nomination which shall be given to the Company
within the 7-day period commencing the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may be determined
and announced by the Directors from time to time) and in no event
ending no later than seven days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director have also been published on the Company’s
website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there has been no change in the Company’s Articles
of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
Articles of Association of the Company has been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to the Company’s information. The Shareholders
Communication Policy has been updated on 22nd March 2022
and been posted on the Company’s website. We have established
multiple channels of communication to encourage effective
participation by the shareholders and also effective dialogue with
shareholders under the Shareholders Communication Policy. The
Board reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy in June
2023 and considered that the policy has been properly implemented
and is effective. The Company keeps on promoting investor relations
and enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep our
shareholders and the investing public posted of our share price
information, latest business developments, final and interim results
announcements, financial reports, public announcements, corporate
governance policies and practices and other relevant shareholder
information.

The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders. All
Directors make an effort to attend the Annual General Meeting. At
the 2022 Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Board briefed
shareholders the business review and the outlook of the Group and
answered questions raised by shareholders. The chairpersons of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee
and ESG Committee were also present to answer questions raised by
shareholders. The Company’s External Auditors attended the 2022
Annual General Meeting to address questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditors’ independence. Overseas Directors
attended the Annual General Meeting through video conferencing
due to travel restrictions during the period.
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Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by the
Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and were voted on by poll.
The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the Annual General Meeting to
ensure that shareholders were familiar with such procedures. An
independent scrutineer was appointed to count the votes and the
poll results were posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company on the same day following the Annual General Meeting.

The Company adheres to the listing rules and all regulatory
requirements set for listed companies in Hong Kong. The Company
is also committed to proactively provide its stakeholders with
sufficient, accurate and consistent information in a timely manner.
The commitment is evenly fulfilled irrespective of whether the
information is positive or negative for the company. All material
information is disclosed to recipients equally in terms of content and
timing.

The Board and Senior Management acknowledge their
responsibilities to represent the interests of all shareholders
and to maximise shareholder value. Active engagement with
our shareholders and accountability to our shareholders are of
high priorities of the Company. We would actively reach out our
shareholders by:

° one-on-one-meetings, conference calls, investor conferences,
and Non-deal Roadshows

° publication of the Company’s latest financial results,
announcements, ESG and business performance on its own
corporate website, including interim and annual financial
reports, sustainability reports, audio webcasts of analyst
presentations given at results announcements, presentation
slides played at investors conferences, announcements and the
Company’s business performance.

° publication and distribution of interim and annual reports
° shareholders meeting

° set up of dedicated Investor Relations’ email address/hotline to
receive enquires from the shareholders and investing public
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 82, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated from
the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Food Science and gained his Master of Science degree in
Food Science from Cornell University. Mr. Lo is an Honorary
Court Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and life member of Cornell University Council.
Mr. Lois adirector of Ping Ping Investment Company Limited.
He is also a director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a
member of The National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years. He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a Non-
executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Joy Lo Cheung
(a substantial shareholder of the Company), the brother
of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company) and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholder
of the Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an
Executive Director of the Company), Mr. Christopher Lye, Dr.
Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP,
MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc.
(Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier),
Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon.
DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc (CUHK),
FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, Officier de
I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star
of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la
Légion d’Honneur), aged 84, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1994. Sir David is the executive chairman of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Council of the
Treasury Markets Association. He is also an independent
non-executive director of The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels,
Limited and San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, all
being companies listed in Hong Kong. Sir David is founding
chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University in Hong
Kong Limited, chairman of the Advisory Board of The
Salvation Army Hong Kong and Macau Terrority, chairman
of the Executive Committee of St. James’ Settlement and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance. He was a
member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 2005
to 2008 and the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985
to 2012. He was an independent non-executive director of
Guangdong Investment Limited. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.
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Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 84, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master degree in
Law from the University of Aarhus and studied at the Nordic
Institute for Maritime Law, the University of Oslo. Mr. Erlund
was admitted to the Danish Bar in 1968 and was admitted to
the Supreme Court in 1976. Mr. Erlund is now a partner in
Copenhagen Chambers focusing on Danish and international
arbitration. He was a partner of Gorrissen Federspiel
Kierkegaard, alaw firm in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the
president of the Danish Bar and Law Association, president
of the Danish Maritime Law Association and chairman of the
Maritime and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board of
directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International Pte.
Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as disclosed, he
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 75, was appointed a Director of the Company in
2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse College,
University of Cambridge with a degree in Classics. Mr.
Nightingale was Managing Director of the Jardine Matheson
Group (“Jardine Group”) from 2006 to 2012. He joined
Jardine Group in 1969 and was appointed a director in
1994. Mr. Nightingale is currently a non-executive director
of Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited and of other Jardine
Group companies. These include Dairy Farm and Hongkong
Land. Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has a standard
listing on the London Stock Exchange as its primary listing,
with secondary listings in Bermuda and Singapore. Mr.
Nightingale is also the non-executive director of Shui On
Land Limited, acompany listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale
is a commissioner of PT Astra International Tbhk. He is the
chairperson of The Sailors Home and Missions to Seafarers
in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale is the former chairman of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and was
appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s representative to the Asia
Pacific Economic Cooperation (“APEC”) Business Advisory
Council from 2005 to 2017 and a Hong Kong representative
to the APEC Vision Group from 2018 to 2019. He was a
member of The Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors on
Innovation and Strategic Development and was a member
of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council. He was a
non-executive director of Schindler Holding Limited, Jardine
Strategic Holdings Limited, Mandarin Oriental, Prudential plc
and Jardine Cycle & Carriage Limited. Save as disclosed, he
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
inthe last three years.
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Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 66, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough graduated from
Nottingham Trent Business School with a Bachelor’s degree
(Honours) in Business Studies. Mr. Brough is an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Brough is an independent
non-executive director of Toshiba Corporation, a company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, an independent non-
executive director of Guoco Group Limited, a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, an independent non-
executive director of HSBC Holdings plc, a company listed
in Hong Kong and overseas, an independent non-executive
director of The Executive Centre Limited, an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Investments HoldCo and
an independent non-executive director of Pacific Primary
Health Care Holdings Limited. Mr. Brough joined KPMG
Hong Kong in 1983 and held appointments as its Head
of Consulting in 1995 and as Head of Financial Advisory
Services in 1997. In 1999, he was appointed the Asia Pacific
Head of KPMG'’s Financial Advisory Services business and
a member of its global advisory steering group. He held the
position of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong Kong
from April 2009 before retiring in March 2012. Mr. Brough is
a director of Run Hong Kong Limited, a not-for-profit entity.
Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue Willow Limited. Mr.
Brough was the executive chairman of Noble Group Limited,
a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, and its
successor company, Noble Group Holdings Limited from 8th
May 2017 to 1st October 2019. He was an independent non-
executive director of GL Limited, a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, from 1st July 2012 to 15th April
2021, an independent non-executive director of Habib Bank
Zurich (Hong Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong restricted licence
bank until 28th February 2023 and the chairman of the
General Committee of The Hong Kong Club until 11th May
2023. Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A PR 2 5]

Paul Jeremy BROUGH % & @ 7~ +
AN RZE—RNFEZREAEAQT
EE o Brough A EEX£NE T E1E MR
BAREBHBR  BHEEEEREE L
E{y o Brough 5t £ 3 BB N ER
ST ETMAEE8URE BT

MASEE oBroughc 4t BRAERZR
BERZETZHRAEHREZE
NEHITES REBBIMMLETZ
RABEEBERAR ZBILIEHIT
EE REABRENILTZEZER
BRATZBILIFHTES EEF
BHEOERATDZBLFEHTES -

Eagle Investments HoldCo = ¥& 37 3
#H, 17 E = K Pacific Primary Health
Care Holdings Limited 2 ¥&§ 3 JE #1 1T
EZE -Brought £ER—HAN=ZFM
AEERETMSEBAEEI B
—WNEFHEEBEBEE > TR
— AN EtFHEGBEZARBEE -
ER—ANANFEEEZERETHMSE
AR AE M EBZAREEE » U
REFSHETMEEMEREAETE
ZEGHE - HE-ZTAFHMAR
HEEEREHMEEMEEESH
EBA BEZE-—Z-F=ZHAEIMK-
Brough %t 4 A& 3 £ F|##8 Run Hong
Kong Limited 2 Z = ° Brough %t 4
78 % Blue Willow Limited 2 & % o
Brought £ R —ZE—t&FH AN\ H
ZE_ZE-NF+HB—BEXREEE
BRAT (BRIFIEESRZ AL
M & Noble Group Holdings Limited
ZHEEAT]) ZBITER - BR=Z
——H+tA—-BE=-ZE=-—FNA
THRBEERFIMEESRZA LT
ZGL Limited 2 BN IEHTES - B
—ERC=FZA=-+N\BAEEEE
—RZRFIFERITELRITERER M
(B8) BRAAZBILHEHNTESR
R-ZBE_=FHA+—-HAEEES
SEEEIFE  KREFEEEN  BER
BE=ZFIFBAHM ETARQEIE
EEIESR -



@

Directors and Senior Management
EENEEE

BAE

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, BBS, JP), aged 70, was
appointed a Director of the Companyin June 2017.Dr.Chung
holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from City University of Macau. He
was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2020. He was
awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Lingnan University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of
Business Administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2007, an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the
University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in
2006, an Honorary Doctor of Science by The University of
Warwick, United Kingdom in 2019 and a Doctor of Business
Administration honoris causa by The University of Macau
in 2019. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1st July 2011 and
1st July 2017 respectively. He was also appointed as Justice
of Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government on 1st July 2005 and won the Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Award in 1997. In November 2014,
he was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year. Dr.
Chung is a Board Member of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority. He was appointed as the Chairman of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July
2013 and now its Honorary President. He was appointed as
the chairman of Vocational Training Council from January
2018 to December 2019. He is also the founder and
chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation. Dr. Chung
is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director of
Techtronic Industries Company Limited. Dr. Chung s also an
independent non-executive director of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Dr. Chung retired
as independent non-executive director of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited and Fujikon
Industrial Holdings Limited effective from 25th August 2014,
27th August 2015 and 23rd June 2021 respectively. Save
as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 75, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Oberlin College, Ohio in the United States and
undertook graduate studiesin Urbanand Regional Planningat
the University of Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group
in 1980 and was the President of Vitasoy USA until 2001. Ms.
Lo was the president of the Soyfoods Association of North
Americawhich represents more than 30 soyfoods companies
covering the US and Canada. She does not hold/has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies currently
and inthe past three years. She is the mother of Dr. Keiko Aun
Fukuda (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the sister
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of the
Company) and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholder
of the Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo
(a Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye
(an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Joy Lo Cheung,
Mr. Christopher Lye and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 61, was appointed a Director of
the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough
University of Technology, a Master’s Degree in Medical
Physics from the University of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree
in Medical Physics from the University of London and an
Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lo is an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman and a
trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a charitable trust)
being a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years. Mr. Lo is the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai
Lo (the Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms.
May Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr.
Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms.
Irene Chan, Ms. Joy Lo Cheung, Mr. Christopher Lye, Dr.
Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 48, was appointed a Director of the
Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from MIT Sloan School of
Management and a Bachelor of Science degree from Cornell
University. She has worked in finance in various roles,
including, as a fund manager for a global asset management
company and has had experience investing in publicly listed
companies. She does not hold/has not held any directorshipin
other listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Ms. Lo is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the
Executive Chairman of the Company), the sister of Ms. Joy
Lo Cheung (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the
relative of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director
of the Company), Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Mr. Christopher
Lye, Dr. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 60, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2014. Mr.
Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics at
the Bologna University in Bologna, Italy in 1987 and further
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration at
Centro Universitario di Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla
Vicentina, Italy in 1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard
Business School Executive Education programme in July
2017. Mr. Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development and general management
of all the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities of
the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August
2013. He has 34 years of proven track record in general
management, strategic/business planning, marketing/
commercial leadership, product innovation and new business
development. He has matured his professional expertise
in two of the largest global fast moving consumer goods
organisations and across local, regional and global roles in
Europe and Asia. He has spent the last 23 years in this field
in Mainland China, and regions including the Hong Kong
SAR and Taiwan. Mr. Guidetti is a non-executive director of
Ariston Group (listed company in Italy) and Givaudan (listed
company in Switzerland). Saved as disclosed, he has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies currently
and in the last three years.
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Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 53, was appointed a Director of the
Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently the President
and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc. and Vitasoy
North America Inc., the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lye
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from the University
of Toronto and a MBA from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lye is responsible for the general management
and development of the Group’s import business of the
Group’s products for sales in North America. He joined the
Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in all aspects
of the North American business for over 20 years. During
his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has held management
positions in sales and marketing in the Mainstream Channel,
and has had oversight responsibilities for both the research
& development and quality control departments as well as
serving as the Senior Vice President of the Asian Channel.
He does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three years.
Mr. Lye is the brother of Mr. Christopher Lye (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the relative of Mr. Winston
Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms.
Yvonne Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo and Ms. May
Lo (the Non-executive Directors of the Company), Ms.
Irene Chan, Ms. Joy Lo Cheung, Dr. Keiko Aun Fukuda and
Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Ms. lan Hong NG, aged 52, Group Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Ng
is responsible for the strategic planning, financial management
and control, accounting, corporate finance, investor relations and
corporate services of the Group. Ms. Ng joined the Groupin 2021 and
has solid finance management experience gained with multinational
companies. She also brings a wealth of experience to this role with
leading start-up commercial operation, acquisitions, post-merger
integration, finance and digital transformation with fast moving
consumer goods (FMCG), agriculture, oil & gas, and technology
industries. Ms. Ng is a US Certified Public Accountant, member of
HKICPA, and holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration at
the University of Southern California Marshall School of Business.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES
Mainland China

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive Officer, has
assumed the current dual roles of the Group Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Executive Officer of Mainland China upon the departure
of Mr. Carl Qiang SU in May 2023. Mr. Guidetti has wealth of
experience in general management, strategy planning and marketing
in Asia Pacific and Europe, in particular in Mainland China.

(Mr. Guidetti’s biographical details are set out on page 85)

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and Exports)

Mr. Anthony Kai-yip CHAN, aged 54, Chief Executive Officer, Hong
Kong Operation. He joined the Group in 2007 and has been promoted
to the Chief Executive Officer of the Group’s Hong Kong Operation
in April 2023. He was appointed the Sales Director of the Hong Kong
Operation in 2009 with wealth of experience in general management
particularly for the sales and marketing areas. Mr. Chan is currently
responsible for the general management and development of the
Group’s operations in the Hong Kong SAR, the Macau SAR and global
export markets. Mr. Chan has solid and extensive working experience
in different leading multinational companies including fast moving
consumer goods (FMCG) and consumer healthcare categories prior
to joining the Company. Mr. Chan received his education in the Hong
Kong SAR and earned his Master degree in Business Administration
and Bachelor of Laws (LLB) in 1998 and 2002 respectively.
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Australia and New Zealand

Mr. David Bruce Charles TYACK, aged 52, Chief Executive Officer
& Managing Director of Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr.
Tyack is responsible for general management and development of
the Group’s operation in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the
Group in September 2019 and has extensive experience across the
Asia-Pacific fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry over
the past 28 years. Based in and a native of Melbourne, Mr. Tyack
relocated back to his home town after leading Canberra based,
Capitol Chilled Foods Pty Ltd. (a Joint Venture between Lion Dairy
& Drinks and Bega Cheese) for 4 years. He has a strong track record
in Sales, Marketing and General Management working for a few local
and global FMCG companies.

Singapore

Mr. Christopher Lloyd MARCHANT, aged 44, Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd., the Group’s tofu
manufacturingcompany in Singapore. Mr.Marchantis responsible for
the general management and development of the Group’s operation
in Singapore. He joined the Singapore operation in September 2016
after spending 4 years heading up the Vitasoy Australia and New
Zealand Sales team. Mr. Marchant has extensive experience across
the fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry in Asia Pacific, and
is very familiar with the Singapore market having spent 14 years in
the city state, where he both started his career and completed his
secondary education.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IN JOINT VENTURE
The Philippines

Mr. Carlo Angelo M. LICUANAN, aged 42, General Manager
of Vitasoy-URC Inc., the Group’s joint venture company in the
Philippines. Mr. Licuanan is responsible for the general management
and development of the Group’s business in the Philippines. He
joined the joint venture company in April 2021. Mr. Licuanan has
extensive experience spanning two decades across Asia Pacific
which includes General Management and Chief Marketing Officer
roles, among others. He has delivered solid business building results
and brings with him a wealth of experience managing multiple
countries especially in Southeast Asia. His career has been mostly
spent in key fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) roles in Fortune
500 multinational companies. After being expatriated to Singapore
to handle a regional role, he came back to the Philippines where
he originally comes from. He has double degrees in Economics
and Accountancy, graduating Magna Cum Laude, and was even
among the top passers in the Certified Public Accountancy board
examination. He was awarded by the President of the country as one
of the Ten Outstanding Students of the Philippines.
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/é? Report of the Directors

EEERS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2023.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is acompany
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong SAR and has its registered
office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen
Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong SAR.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and sale
of food and beverages. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 3
to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive Officer’s
Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 24 of this Annual
Report. The environmental, employees, customers and suppliers
matters that have a significant impact on the Group, are provided in
the Sustainability Report 2022/2023 to be posted on the Company’s
corporate website at www.vitasoy.com together with this Annual
Report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31st March 2023, the percentage of sales

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable to
major suppliers during the financial year is as follows:

FBRERRUER

REBE-E_=F=A=+—HLEEE  ~X&£E
AREBEFERER ZEFHE DN 30% °

UTFrEfssRFEEE2HEREARERE
BB

Percentage of the Group'’s total purchases

EAREEFREAER DL

The largest supplier
21%
B A LR ’
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 29%
()

BREAEEREE

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) held
any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

Aninterim dividend of HK1.3 cents per ordinary share (2022: nil) was
paid on 16th December 2022. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.4 cents per ordinary share (2022:
nil) in respect of the year ended 31st March 2023.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$1,799,000 (2022: HK$6,280,000).

Bank Loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2023 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements. Shares were
issued during the year on the exercise of share options and vesting of
share awards.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and under Code Provision B.2.2 of Part 2 of Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules, Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG, Ms. Yvonne Mo-
ling LO, Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, Ms. May LO and Mr. Eugene LYE
retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual Report
can be found in the Company’s website at www.vitasoy.com
under “For Investors/Governance/Board of Directors/Directors of
Subsidiaries”.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

TheDirectorsofthe Companywho held office at 31st March 2023 had
the following interests in the shares of the Company and subsidiaries
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”))
at that date as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Interests and
short positions (“Register”) required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO:
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, BEENRD - HERIDREREE 2

Underlying Shares and Debentures (Continued) BRIRE ()
(1) Interestsinissued shares (1) REBITROZER

Number of ordinary shares

EERHE
Trusts and Total *% of total
Personal Family similar Equity numberof issued shares
Name Note interests interests interests derivatives sharesheld *{EE TR
®a MisE PN RikR GAREE#E RATEIR FERGEY A5 2ESM
Mr. Wi Yau-lai L
Mr WinstonYaulailO ) ) 66202091 28702500 72678300 481984 168064875 15.69%
BEREEE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David
Kwok-po LI 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 0.93%
TEHEFL
Mr. Jan P.5. ERLUND 180,000 - - - 180,000 0.02%
JanP.S.ERLUND %4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE 200,000 - - - 200,000 0.02%
REH%E
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO o 0
BEB 4+ (i), (iv) - - 92,084,750 - 92,084,750 8.60%
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO . 0
BERG (iii), (iv) 9,198,000 = 121,657,000 - 130,855,000 12.22%
Ms.May LO
2,100,000 - - = 2,100,000 0.20%
BHERL ’
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
- 5,186,301 100,000 - 504,770 5,791,071 0.54%
B o ¢
Mr. Eugene LYE
442,313 - - - 442,313 0.04%
Bl %4
* The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of * HEALEREBERAQAAR-E-_=F=A=+—H
shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,070,899,023 ordinary shares) as BEET2RMDEE (B1,070,899,023 REFER) =t
at 31st March 2023. o
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures (Continued)

(1) Interestsinissued shares (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife. The 481,984 equity derivatives
represented interests in unvested shares granted under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 2,078,300 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 2,560,150 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 14,768,000 shares held by Lo/
Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such
three trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(ili)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held by two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a beneficiary
of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of
East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(v) Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI and his wife jointly hold family interests of
100,000 shares. The 504,770 equity derivatives represented interests
in unvested shares granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme.

(2) Interestsinunderlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options and
share awards under the Company’s share option scheme and share
award scheme, details of which are set out in the sections “Share
Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” respectively.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age holds
an interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the Register or as otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme
(1)  Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002

On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under which the Directors
could, at their discretion, grant options to employees and Directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company. The 2002 Share Option Scheme was valid for
10 years ending on 3rd September 2012. The purpose of the 2002
Share Option Scheme was to provide incentives and rewards to
employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal terms of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified by the
Directors to each option holder, such period not to exceed 10
years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but the
Directors were empowered to impose at their discretion any
such minimum period at the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of the
scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which options
could be granted to any one participant, when added to the
number of shares issued or issuable to that participant under
the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the share option scheme.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for acceptance
by an eligible Director or employee for a period of 28 days
from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period as the
Directors might in their discretion determine. An eligible
Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the
option as a consideration.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1)  Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002
(Continued)

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to any one
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 28th August
2012. Outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme prior to such termination shall continue to be valid,
and subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March 2023, there was
no outstanding option to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

(2)  Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
which the Directors, executives and employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”) have made or will make
to the Group. It provides Eligible Participants with the opportunity to
own a personal stake in the Company with a view to motivating the
Eligible Participants to excel in their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth
of the Group. The Board may at its discretion grant options to any
Director, executive or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised would
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of
grant.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(2)

Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

There was no minimum period for which an option must be
held nor a performance target which must be achieved before
it could be exercised during the vesting period, but the Board
may determine at its sole discretion any such terms on the
grant of an option.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of the
2012 Share Option Scheme.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes for the time being of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares as equals 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option remains open for acceptance
by an Eligible Participant for a period of 28 days from the date
of offer or such longer or shorter period as the Directors might
in their discretion determine. An Eligible Participant had to pay
HK$10 on acceptance of the option as a consideration.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to any one
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the sharesinissue as at the date of
grant.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was terminated on 27th August

2022.

During the year, 3,428,000 options were granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme. Outstanding share options granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme prior to such termination shall
continue to be valid, and subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable
in accordance with the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March
2023, there were 18,502,000 outstanding options available to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
SHRE
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(3) Share option scheme approved on 30th August 2022

On 30th August 2022, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2022 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2022 Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain management
and key employees, to align Eligible Participants’ interests with the
long-term success of the Company, to provide fair and competitive
compensation to management and key employees and to drive the
achievement of strategic objectives of the Company. It provides
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to own a personal stake in
the Company with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to
utilise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group. The Board
may at its discretion grant options to any Director, executive or
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2022 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised would
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of
grant.

- Unless otherwise prescribed in the Listing Rules, there was
no minimum period for which an option must be held nor a
performance target which must be achieved before it could
be exercised during the vesting period, but the Board may
determine at its sole discretion any such terms on the grant of
an option.

IR AR (|

BRETE (&)
(3) R-EB=-—F)\H=+1+HH EERET
2

RZZBZZFENB=1TH  RATRMAK—IEHN
BRESE (22— FBREFS]) - =F
ToFBRESEERERSIRRBEEEENE

ZRE  HAERSHEENFNSEHALANRE
BURE—H - REEBNETEZRERHUAFM

BEEBFDHFHH - ﬂﬂ’ﬁb%iﬁﬁ"jﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ
B ZAEREERSREFBARIARN -
BREERSRERSTEEHZF ﬁnkﬁ,ﬁ\%@iﬁ&
ME ARSI R B P EL 2 ERERAGE A
SEREZRREMERCEERSEE » FARK
ERBFECBR ESETHNERAQTRE
MELRZEMNES  THRAEHEERTFER
o

“ECCFBREEZEERTAT ¢

- BREZOTEERUTZESE : (QRHD

REHAH (EAXAREER) EBAM
BEZWHE ROBRORBEEZHLAH

A A% %R E BRI iRi5 2 W HE o

- $’D\ﬁﬂé’ﬂ}"ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ*&ﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁ%
THEZHR - WERHARETEREER
T REEF o

- BREWRASEREN EEBEHR - A
EBRRELASE 2REHRABRET
TEAXREI2RRER  HEEE
RRTFRREBITHITEEEMEREIRR -

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE &

97



LR

98

Report of the Directors
SRS

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(3)

Share option scheme approved on 30th August 2022
(Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2022 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes and share awards
to be granted under any other share award schemes must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval and
adoption of the 2022 Share Option Scheme. Such limit may
be refreshed after three years from the date of approval and
adoption of the 2022 Share Option Scheme subject to approval
by shareholders.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the 2022 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes and share awards to be granted
under any other share award schemes for the time being of the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares
as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option remains open for acceptance
by an Eligible Participant for a period of 28 days from the date
of offer or such longer or shorter period as the Directors might
in their discretion determine.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options or vested and to be
vested under other share award schemes already granted or
to be granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares inissue
as at the date of grant.
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Report of the Directors
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(3) Share option scheme approved on 30th August 2022
(Continued)

During the year, no options were granted under the 2022 Share
Option Scheme.

The 2022 Share Option Scheme will end on 29th August 2032.

At 31st March 2023, the number of shares available for grant under
the scheme mandate was 107,080,103 (2022: nil).

At 31st March 2023, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the followinginterests in options to subscribe for ordinary shares
of the Company (market value per ordinary share at 31st March 2023
was HK$15.20) in consideration of HK$10 for each grant under the
2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share Option Scheme of the
Company. As at 31st March 2023, the total fair value as determined
on date of grant of unexercised vested options and unvested options,
amounted to HK$49,338,025 and HK$30,892,564 respectively,
calculated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(r)(iv) to the financial statements. The options are unlisted. Once
vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that all the options
outstanding as at 31st March 2023 were exercised, the Company
would receive proceeds of HK$346,185,000.
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SRE

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued) IRER AR (@

Share option scheme (Continued) AR ESTE (&)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees REAEERELE  ARAATNEERAEFZ
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in HiEEERBE_ ST _FERETEIR_-Z
options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share ——FERENETRABARQAEBER ZERE
Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company FERBEEZ@AAERNT !

during the year and at the end of the year:

Number of Number
Price pershare  options outstanding ofoptions ~ *Marketvalueper  *Market value per
onexercise  atthebeginning  Numberofoptions  Numberof options ~ Numberof options ~ outstanding at the shareat dateof share onexercise
Period during of options of theyear grantedduring  exercisedduring ~ forfeited during endoftheyear ~ grantof options of options
which options fiERE 223 theyear theyear theyear FEE "R i d
Participants Dateof grant areexercisable BEf2 AT ERRt ERfTle ERhe WAL EhEZA ERiE
sz RHiAY BREGRS ShER EhiER EhiER BhiEaR BhiE=R BhiEsR ZBHHE SkiE
HKS HK$ HK$
Directors
£
Mr. Winston Yau-ai LO 31/8/2012 31/8/2013t0% 30/8/2022 6400 706000 - (706,000 - - 6700 11,660
ERERYE 9192013 9/9/201410% 8/9/2023 9370 1,704000 - - - 1,704,000 9950 -
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0% 9/9/2024 10080 1792000 - - - 1792000 989
14/9/2015 14/9/2016t0% 13/9/2025 13600 1,588,000 - - - 1,588,000 11520
6/9/2016 6/9/2017102 5/9/2026 14792 1420000 - - - 1420000 15.280
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 26/6/2017 26/6/2018t0% 25/6/2027 1629 1,254,000 - - - 1254000 16200
ERERE 19/6/2018 19/6/2019t0% 18/6/2028 25100 1,288,000 - - - 1,288,000 2000
21/6/2019 21/6/2020t0% 20/6/2029 44810 866,000 - - - 866000 4255
20/8/2020 22/6/2021t0% 21/6/2030 30200 1,032,000 - - - 1,032,000 29550
+04/8/2021 18/6/2022t0% 23/8/2031 19500 814000 - - - 814000 18920
4712022 47/2023t0% 3/7/2032 14140 - 998,000 - - 998,000 13720
Five highest paid efigible ~ €28/1/2019 28/1/2020t0% 27/1/2029 30350 320000 - - - 320000 30000
employees * 21/6/2019 21/6/2020t0% 20/6/2029 4810 28000 - - - 28000 4255
IEBRHAEHES" 20/8/2020 22/6/2021t0% 21/6/2030 30200 194000 - - - 194000 29550
240812021 18/6/2022t0% 23/8/2031 19500 140,000 - - - 140000 18920
471002 4/7/202310% 37/2032 14140 - 454000 - - 454000 13720
Other eligible employees 26/6/2015 26/6/2016t0% 25/6/2025 13,600 18000 - - - 18,000 13620 -
working under 24/6/2016 24/6/2017t0% 23/6/2026 14792 208000 - (10,000 - 198,000 13960 17620
employment 26/6/2017 26/6/2018t0% 25/6/2027 1629 294000 - - - 294000 16200 -
contracts 19/6/2018 19/6/2019t0Z 18/6/2028 25100 360000 - - (30,000 330000 24000
REERAHTAZEN 21/6/2019 21/6/2020t0% 20/6/2029 4810 328000 - - (46,000 282000 42550
AEHES 20/8/2020 22/6/2021t0% 21/6/2030 30200 458000 - - (104000 354000 29550
+24/8/2021 18/6/2022t0% 23/8/2031 19500 1572000 - - (272,000 1,300000 18920
4712002 4/7/202310% 37/2032 14140 - 1,976,000 - (142,000 1834000 13720
16,384,000 3428000 (716,000 (594000 18,502,000
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

The options granted to each Director are registered under the names
of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

@ for the grant dated 28th January 2019, 50% of options will be vested
after the first anniversary from the date of grant and 50% of options
will be vested after the second anniversary from the date of grant.

# for the grant dated 24th August 2021, options are subject to a vesting
scale in tranches of 25% each per annum starting from 18th June 2022
and are fully vested on 18th June 2025.

A of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two are Directors
whose emoluments are disclosed separately.

All options except for options granted on 28th January 2019 and
24th August 2021, are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percentage of the options which may be exercised is determined in
stages as follows:

IR R ()
BRETE (&)

BT ES Y BRENEAER
£HBR -

BEACESZ

* BN D R E AR A SR BB IR A A LH SR 1T 68 B AT
— REAZ W ESR TR HE o

e B_E-NE—AZ+N\BZRHEME » 50% 28
BEGERE AR —BAERERBR50% 2 H
BRESERHAMEARBEARERS -

# BB -—FNA-tTRBEZREmME B=%
ToEXRATNBRUSF 2% 2L RO BB
YRZZZREABTN\BE2HER -

n ELEBeMEALh MELAES  HNEES
K -

AFTEZEBREHE (BRR-ZZ-F—
A= +)\EI)S€-§Z—¢)\)5J—+@EHE':HZE§
IRAESN) THIEL B > MEMBRATITEBREZ
B ERWMT :

Percentage of options granted

IEEREREZAS

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

R AME —BERAR

25%

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

R R mBF AR

another % 25%

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

FH AR = BFRER

another 3 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

R R mBF AR

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the value per option is provided in note 1(r)(iv) and note 23(a) to the
financial statements respectively.

another % 25%

FRRLBEREZSTHERSNBREEEZ
BRI Bl EA B SRR MIEE 1) (iv) R FIEE23(a) ©
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Report of the Directors
SRS

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 22nd March 2021
(the “Share Award Scheme”) under which the Directors may, at their
discretion, select any eligible participant (being either a Director,
executive or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries)
to participate in the Share Award Scheme as an award holder, and
such award holder may be granted an award of restricted shares,
performance shares, restricted share units or performance share
units. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract and
retain management and key employees, to align eligible participants’
interests with the long-term success of the Company, to provide fair
and competitive compensation to management and key employees
and to drive the achievement of the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a term of 10
years from 1st July 2021 unless terminated earlier by the Board and
is administered by the Board and the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date the Share Award Scheme
becomes effective on 1st July 2021. The maximum number of shares
which may be granted to any one eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 0.2% of the shares in
issue as at the date of grant. During the year, 1,466,981 awards were
granted under the Share Award Scheme.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued) IRER AR (@
Share award scheme (Continued) B% 10 2e EhEt 8 (&)

Particulars of share awards outstanding during the year and as at FRARAR-E-_=F=A=+—HH4kRBE2%E
31st March 2023 are as follows: BB NT

Number of

awards

forfeited on

termination of

employment

Number of eligible Number

ofawards  Number of participants  ofawards "Marketvalue Market value
outstandingat ~ awards  Number of during outstanding pershareat per share
thebeginningof ~ granted awards theyear  attheend dateofgrant atdateof
theyear  during vestedduring  WEMEA  oftheyear  ofawards  vestingof

E{BER  theyear theyear ERBS8E EREEF CRUEE awards

Participant Date of grant Vestingperiod  sEo g FAEMy EAGEz  BEAGM  SE2%D Az BEREZA
8% RHA% BEY $E REHE  RBME 2RBYE g BRTE ZERTE
HKS HKS
it it
Directors
Bz
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO #1/2/2022 1/2/2022- 18/6/2025 225,166 - (56,291) - 168875 15200 13720%
BRERE 41712022 41712022 - 4/7/2026 - 313,109 - - 313,109 13720 -
Mr. Roberto GUIDETT] +24/8/2021 24/8/2021-18/6/2025 225206 - (56,301) - 168905 18920 13720%
REELE 41712022 417/2022- 4/7/2026 - 335,865 - - 335,865 13720 S
Five highest paid eligible +24/8/2021 24/8/2021-18/6/2005 38783 - (9,696) - 29,087 18920  13720%
employees * 20/12/2021  20/12/2021-20/12/2023 187,706 - (93853) - 93853 16500 16,080%
LEREHAERES" 41712022 40712022 - 4(7/2026 - 153,185 - - 153,185 13720 -
Other eligible employees +24/8/2021 24/8/2021-18/6/2025 435,065 - (96,136) (69392) 269,537 18920  13720%
working under employment 4712022 47712022 - 4/7/2026 - 664,822 - (47,150) 617,672 13720 -
contracts
BEREEANIEZEM
AERES

1111926 1466981 (312277)  (116542) 2150088

The awards granted to each Director are registered under the name RIEESRBIIUES2HEEE > MET
of the Director who is also the beneficial owner. RERBEEA -

Annual Report 2022/2023 FE#H%E | 103



Report of the Directors

@

104

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

*

being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which
the awards were granted, as applicable.

# for the grant dated 24th August 2021 and 1st February 2022, awards
are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 25% each per annum
starting from 18th June 2022 and are fully vested on 18th June 2025.

@ for the grant dated 20th December 2021, 50% of awards will be
vested after the first anniversary from the date of grant and 50% of
awards will be vested after the second anniversary from the date of
grant.

" of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two are Directors
whose emoluments are disclosed separately.

*ok

being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before 18th June 2022 on
which the vesting period for applicable tranche ended.

#* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before 20th December 2022
on which the vesting period for applicable tranche ended.

All awards except for awards granted on 24th August 2021, 20th
December 2021 and 1st February 2022, are subject to a vesting
scale in tranches of 25% each per annum starting from the first
anniversary from the date of grant and will be fully vested on the
fourth anniversary of the date of grant.

Information on the accounting policy for share awards granted and
the value per award is provided in note 1(r)(iv) and note 23(b) to the
financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Other than the Company’s Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2023 amounting to 5% or
more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in addition
to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors.

FERREEM A LRI R AEER
Bz RRR

N

ZEC=F=ZA=+—H ' AQACEAET

JIHERTEBRZS% U L ZARAT B #IT
RiDER - ZERBETERLEUIIRE2ESE

3Z
m °

Number of ordinary shares

LERYE
*% of total
Trusts and issued
similar Total shares
Personal Family ~ Corporate interests number of HEBRT
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests 55K sharesheld [RZEE
FERR HizE AR RikiER DTER R FRRGEY ZEA
1 CTOupc i - - 192253369 - 192253369 17.95%
= i AR I
%@éggﬂ’\” (i) 23514700 - - 72678300 96193000 8.98%
LS i 2766250 . - 2678300 75444550 704
‘%;g kiOAun FUKUDA (ii) 2,400,000 - - 72,678,300 75,078,300 7.01%
Mr!ﬁclﬂ%s;opher e (ii) 750,000 = = 72,678,300 73428,300 6.86%
,J\
g%ﬁﬁ‘;;d” R (i 610,000 . - 72678300 73288300 6.84%
* This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of * WEALEDREANGR=ZBE=_=ZF=ZA=+—H
shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,070,899,023 ordinary shares) as 2RITZRHEE (B11,070,899,023 REER) 7
at 31st March 2023. Ho
Notes: Fff

(i) These interests are held by Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(ii) Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Ms. Joy Lo CHEUNG, Dr. Keiko Aun
FUKUDA, Mr. Christopher LYE and Ms. Alexandra CHAN is interested
in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees)
Limited which holds such shares as a nominee for the Lo Kwee Seong
Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee of the Lo
Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in
such shares.

(ii)

PEREH-ZNHSAREREZAHLZENBA
BIFE °

HRERELT  REHSZL  BZuat BHEWU
EERREMLZTIIEEARERITZAREGR
REURBABENBEEES (A REED) B
B272,678300 R MGz iER c REHDHBEEER
S2EAN  MEREAEEZERN 28R -
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (Continued)

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded
in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified
to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Remuneration for Senior Management

The emoluments of the Senior Management, excluding Directors, by
bands are as follows:

FERRREHMA ARG KRR
PZESRERE (@)

RAEXTRDRAEERG P 22 EDH R

B

BREXFREESN  AARALERASHEMAHE
bR AR SRS (R 5 RIPEIRA) 58 336
rRMiEE 2B MR -

ZERORERE
READBAAEEZAHENURAARDFTES
FrAl - RAFHAY AR -—ERIFLHRA
REZRRIFRE -

EENEAXRS - BHEHAHzES

RRBHEEAME R AERERFESHFRIE
BTN ARRAESHEEEARE 2R * &
BHEREN -

SEERASZME

RABNES 2 BEEEAR (THEES) <M
EWMT -

Number of individuals

ABL
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 .
FBH#5 2 000,001 JT E B #5 4,000,000 T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 q
784 4,000,001 7T Z B % 6,000,000 7T
HK$6,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 .
7B 6,000,001 7T £ 8% 8,000,000 T
HK$8,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1

& 8,000,001 JT £ & # 10,000,000 7T
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Report of the Directors
SHRE

G

Employees and Human Resources Policy

Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s employees
are set out in the Sustainability Report 2022/2023 to be posted on the
Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.com together with
this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during the
year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year ended
31st March 2023 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 29, the
Company confirms that it has reviewed the transactions which are in
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules
(if applicable).

Employee Retirement Benefits

Particulars of employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out
in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 and 252 of this
Annual Report.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

BERADEIRBER

REEZREEHERFH ANERBKRUKRE
EBRRREIIZHBEN - —F_=
FOHFERREFRE ] ZRESERRFERAR
AEZ AT (www.vitasoy.com) B o

ESZRERE

ERAQNBDESNREFFER (ERREB
CREMRB) 5 4691%) RIREFERKR RAFE —
BEENM -

EERITRABZEERE
REER  FRREREESRITRASEIR

BEALXS

ARBREBEZ_=ZF=A=1t—HILEFESZE
B-REBBREITLZERBBEALRZHER
R IRRMEE 29 - BUMIEE 29 PR B 2 & 1R RS
BATRZME @ ARARIACEHTRS MR
BT EWRART ZAERE (WER) °

BERIKEF

BREAEEESERRENZFERR T HEREH
$220

HFMIFHE

FEENBEREMRFEZXE
BEHNAFHRE251F2528 °

CEEREE

BE - HESBEALQR 2 EhiEsF

FR - ARFREEAMBLAEREBL - HE
FEEAA R B ZEM EHES o
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EEEHRE

Auditors

KPMGretire and, beingeligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBAEERSE

‘@
kPG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 116 to 250, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZBEHRE
Bt EREBRRATKE
(REBEMAIL A EREA])

=
I%\

AZEH (UTEHBIRM) SBFINEARE
116 E250 EMHEMINEREBBR AR (UT
BREIELT]) REMBAR (UTHBIEE
E]) NEATBHRE  UPHERREER=F
=A==+ -ANGAUBRRREEEZ
ALEFENGEERER  SKEBEREMEEK
Rk GEAEREHRAGEESRER UK
FAMBBRENTE SR ETESHHERE -

BFRE  ZEGEUBRRCRES B
ABEMN(EBUBREER) EEMP S
BT BEER-ZEZ=F=A=1+-—HWE&
EHBRAE SEEEZEZALEENGESH
BRERGARESTRE  YCBBREB(AAF
) FB5E -

BRREOERH

HMERBESBEHMASEAN(FBETE
AU ETES c RMAZRSEATRENELED
EARBE [ ZBEAT B FA AN B BRRRENE
FlBOREE-SEBM - RESBEHMA
RN (EXEAERZETR)) (UTHEBF
A1) BN BERE WEETTRIPH
HthBRBEREE - HMBAE - RIIMESHE
ARREARREEMARMNNEAERREHRE
o
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B 3 A% AT R =

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

B FTE1H

BARETFRIREXMNEXRAE - ADHYHE
HEENBRRNBABRHEEZNSH - BLE
HREEMNFABRRAVBRRARELARRE
ETREN - BMNTSHELSHEMERNE
Bo

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

ERERESHBNTEHHENRA

Refer to note 3 and the accounting policies in note 1(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

SRR IS RR M EE 3 R MIEE 1(v) IS RTBR -

The Key Audit Matter
R ET SR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

MM EFT N AEEZSEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from sales
of food and beverages to a large number of distributors
and retailers.

EEENRAZTERRORZS D HANZERHEHER

—_ P~y =]
m N Em °

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the Group’s food and beverage products, which
generally occurs when the products are delivered to
the location designated by the customers.
RESHENZERHENUALEEFEERE
¥ BEENERKSREREER E—REER
REZEFIETHBFELE o

There are a large number of individual sales
transactions each year which increase the risk of errors
arising in the recognition of revenue.
EEESFRERENERNHEERS  BIBMT WA
BRI RN AR o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue from
sales to distributors and retailers included the following:
BB REZRE D RN EREENRANETRE
FEEUTRIE :

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls over
revenue recognition;

A EEEEEW AR NERAISIZHNRT - Bt
REBITEMME

inspecting sales contracts with distributors and retailers,
on a sample basis, to understand the trade terms agreed
with individual customers and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

REAEEREHESHEBENZERRTNHEESH U
LT REENEFNENRZRR  XBERTEAE

BIMRETE SBSEEMNBRAERBER ;
comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions

recorded during the financial reporting period with the
corresponding goods delivery notes, which contained
evidence of acknowledgement of the customers’ receipt
of the goods, and assessing if the related revenue was
properly recognised in accordance with the trade terms
set out in the respective sales contracts;

REAEEL RO HREHEACHENIEER S EEE
NWREE #EESERETFEAKRIIEYNFER T
AW A RSB ERIBBENHES R HAHENR S %k

= s .
MR
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Key audit matters (Continued) FARETSE (@)

The Key Audit Matter
R ETEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

IR ET AR Z SR

We identified the recognition of revenue from sales
to distributors and retailers as a key audit matter
because the revenue generated therefrom accounts
for the majority of the Group’s revenue and involves
large number of individual sales contracts and because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which increases the risk of misstatement
of the timing and amount of revenue recognised by
management to achieve specific performance targets
or expectations.
BMEEIARBDHEENTEBDHENKRASIBEER
B EE BRAEEENBAL BSEEKRANE
ABArESRAREEBIEESRE  REEEBEA
= BEEENHEHD-THBRRERES SEMNTER
&R BIRSE A B R T8 A 5 58 1 28 W RR 3L D
SRR °

assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific revenue
transactions recorded around the end of the financial
reporting period had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period by inspecting the trade terms agreed with
the individual customers and the delivery status of the
relevant products;
REAEEZBREERENEFAMHBE 2R S HRARAR
HEERMNRATARE » FPEEMEREHERAERLEE
HEEBRAR S =R CEEE N EHERER

identifying significant credit notes issued and sales
returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the financial
reporting period and by making enquiries of management
and inspecting relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue had been accounted for in
the appropriate financial period in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards; and
B BEHRERAENEERANEHACERNEREMN
HERME - WEBHAREEERRENREEXIE AT
BN A RS ERRBRBETEFTENREREE
BHBERE 0 R

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
during the reporting period, enquiring of management
about the reasons for such adjustments and comparing
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

BRENBREHRERAFMENEAFHARE  aER
[EEHEARAERNIEH R FAEMEE IS EFFS
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B 3 A% AT R =

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained inthe audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% AT R

‘@

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Aspartofanauditinaccordance withHKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ'ﬂﬁ
T

EMHER  REHGSUBBRRERBRESAEHE
MR R R M BN E R FERRAMES S
& THABERMAZRROEBEIRS - BN
ERBEB(DARG) E405RWRE - EM
BRMERSE o BRILLIS - RAIMNI|E T AE
HttAHR - ROIP IR ARENAET - HEAH
e AL EEFAEEREE -

SERERSKTHRE  EFERIFZR(E
BETER) ETHET AR -BEAERRA
FAERARREER IR o SERBUML ] LU BREF S8R 3R 5
B MREEEHEMERIERERTELE
ARE MRS RAR LR B R B R AR AT HH A
RTE - BB ERBRI AT RREER -

ERE(EREER) ETETNBRES &K
FIERTEXHE - RIFTERRREE - B
IR

o EBIMFHEEANKFFRERMEBGFES M
BHRFEEAHERRAVERE - R R
HTEEFUERYELRRE - URER
ZRANEENEFTER  FREMAZEYN
Bt - ARBRFIESRER - RE - B
RER - BERBRL - ERERAIRES 2
b Al RERBRRKFMERNEKE
RN ER SN ARERREAERMEHR
HYE RS ERBRR AR o

o THEFNHEBENRNIES  UREE
METREF BEMNLFYE SEERE

EHNBRMEBRER -
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B 3 A% AT R =

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attentionin our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied withrelevant ethical requirementsregarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the BB G S M HmRAENE
consolidated financial statements (Continued) £ &)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we REBEZEZESEENSES » RPETHLES
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit EHEAPSEUEBRERNENRAEE  EAmME
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are RERETEE c RIEXEENRS PigliELt
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our B1E > RFELAEERTAT BB EELESEE
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure REBFERNEBERLT » MRESEFEHERMIIR
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we EhEBEEEERNEREAEBBEEEND
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report FZAE > BFIRETERREPEBEZSEE °

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEARBIZEBMBENETEEEBARE K
auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong. g o

KPMG EEFETMmE®AT

Certified Public Accountants EE 3yl

8th Floor, Prince’s Building HFEPIR

10 Chater Road EITE T

Central, Hong Kong RKFRENE

20th June 2023 —EZ=FXA=1H
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FAEEER

For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A8 #EETE)

2023
—m——

—_———

Note P &£ $'000 F 3T

Revenue

L ON

Cost of sales

3 6,340,559

(3,328,763)

Gross profit

EF

Other income

HA

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses
HE - HERDHER
Administrative expenses

THEM

Other operating expenses

Hit& &R

3,011,796

4 113,846

(2,024,430)

(671,978)

5(c) (325,641)

Profit/(loss) from operations

RERTN (BH)

Finance costs

Share of losses of joint venture

it &8 R EEE

103,593

5(a) (32,547)

(22,253)

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BRELAER, (B518)

Income tax

Frig®t

5 48,793

6(a) (27,736)

Profit/(loss) for the year
AREERF, (EE)

21,057

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7T

6,501,215

(3,430,534)

3,070,681

126,187

(2,215,199)

(702,358)

(492,162)

(212,851)

(23,071)

(235,922)

74,541

(161,381)
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For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A8 #EETE)

2023
—m——

—_———

Note Hft &£ $'000 F 3T

Attributable to:
THALHE :

Equity shareholders of the Company
RATRRERE A

Non-controlling interests

IR

45,721

(24,664)

Profit/(loss) for the year
AREERF, (BE)

21,057

Earnings/(loss) per share

BREF (BH)

Basic

B-¥N

10

4.3 Cents Il

Diluted
i

4.3 Cents{ll

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial
statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 25(b).

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7T

(158,750)

(2,631)

(161,381)

(14.9 Cents 1)

(14.9 Cents 1)

56 125 % 250 H 2 MR I AN B i ek 2 —2B40 ©

BREAFERENTESTARIRESBEAZR

B BENMIEE25(b) °
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é? FERERHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A8 #EETE)

Note FffzE

Profit/(loss) for the year
AREERF, (BE)

Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax)

AEEHMPEEES (BRBIEK) ?

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

HETEWEN S EERSZER

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities
EEENREFEBE2EHTE

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

HETRWEH S WERIZ2ER

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong

RBREFBUIIMERBARREE AR ZHEREM
EXvERER

Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve

RERBYHH WHRHERED

Total comprehensive income for the year

AEETEWRESRE

Attributable to:
THIALRE :

Equity shareholders of the Company
AT REZE A

Non-controlling interests

IR

Total comprehensive income for the year

AEETEWRESRE

2023
e

—_——

$'000 Tt

21,057

(3,546)

(201,452)

1,111

(182,830)

(137,184)

(45,646)

(182,830)

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7t

(161,381)

569

87,773

(427)

(73,466)

(76,049)

2,583

(73,466)

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial £ 125 ZF 250 B 2 s AR B i Rk 2 — &R o

statements.
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@9 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BERRE

At31stMarch2023 R=ZE=_=%=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LB #EHE )

2023 2022
—EB-= S - 2

—_——

Note Kz BEXOE A0 EM $000 FTt $000FT

Non-current assets

FEREBEE

Property, plan} and equipment 11(a)
% - BERRE

- Investment properties

- REMH=

- Right-of-use assets

- EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment
-Htz - BERRE

3,124 3,250
277,724 341,130

3,111,274 3,623,838

3,392,122 3,968,218

Deposits for the acquisition of property,

plant and equipment 11(f)
BEYX BMERREZITE
Intangible assets 12
B EE
Goodwill
[EES
Intgrest in jqipt venture 15
BE QT ZER
Deferred tax assets

EEBIREE

264

768

13

24(b) 260,693 281,707

3,653,234 4,250,957

Currg—:nt assets
MENEE
Inventories

Fi=) 1
=FE e
Trade and other receivables
FEUR AR TR & LM FE UK
Current tax recoverable
FEUR R AR 18

Cash and bank deposits 18(a)
RERBITER

639,615 773,384
17 981,850 1,123,027
24(a) 19,528 37,889

555,292 621,863

2,196,285 2,556,163

Current liabilities

REIAE

Trade and other payables 19
FEBRFA R EL At AR
Bank loans

RITEX

Lease liabilities

1,963,392 2,432,523
20 409,633 489,829

21 84,665 96,901

Current tax payable 24(a)

VB (58 ERBLE 14,232 12,334

2,471,922 3,031,587

gﬁitﬁ%rée{g pabilites (275,637) (475,424)

ggg;%%%egéurrent liabilities 3,377,597 3,775,533
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/é? Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra BRI R

At31stMarch2023 R=ZE=_=%=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LB #EHE )

2023 2022
—EB-= S - 2

I

Note Ffiizf BEXOE A0 EM $000 FTt $000FT

Non-current liabilities

FREBAEE

Bank loans
RITE=Z 20 115,053

Lease liabilities

HEEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFEE

Deferred tax liabilities

BEHIBEE

Other payables

H TR

21 51,521 90,856
22(b) 24,835 6,222
24(b) 76,115 99,116

19 9,483 10,240

277,007 206,434

NET ASSETS
BEE 3,100,590 3,569,099

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BARRGEE

Share capital

[

Reserves

&

25 1,021,453 1,013,028

1,963,262 2,244,885

Total equity attributable to equity
shareho_lpers of the C_czmpany 2,984,715 3,257,913
ARERERE AEILESEEE

Non-controlling interests

JEiERRRE S 115,875 311,186
el gl 3,100,590 3,569,099
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th NIEBE_=F A T+HEEESH ELZER

June 2023. 5 o

Winston Yau-lai LO Roberto GUIDETTI

ERE (1=

Director Director

) )

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial £ 1252 250 B M AR B i Rk 2 — &R o
statements.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 B Z =& =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LB #EHE )

Note
iz

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEREgHR

ZEZA=t+—HLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KLTREREARE

Share
capital
R&
(note
25())
(Hi&E25(0)
(i)
$000F 7

Shares

held for
share award
scheme
RH%E
HHEEZ
R

(note

25(d)
(&t 25(d))

$000F 7

Capital
reserve
Bk
(note
2506l
(Hi&E250e)
(i)
$000F 7

Surplus
reserve
BRGE
(note
25(e)il)
(Ki&E25(e)
()
00077

Other
reserve
AR
(note
25(e)(ii)
(HizE25(e)
i)
$000F 7

General
reserve

-

$000F 7

Hedging
reserve
Hiit
(note
25(e)(iv)
(=250
(iv))
$000F 7

Exchange
reserve
EfiGh
(note
25(e)v)
(K= 25()
)
$000F7

Share-based
compensation
reserve
RER
hERE
(note
25(e)lvil
(Hi&E250e)
(vi)
$000F7

Retained
profits
RERH

$000F7

Total
i

$000F 7

Non-
controlling
interests

FERER

$000F7

Total
equity
ER4E

$000F 7

Balance at 1st April 2021
H-B=-§MA-BiH

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVERRY:

Loss for the year

KEERR

Qther comprehensive income

A2EYE

984,030

32,740

133126

(48,242)

2261

1064

()

(15633)

52138

2474569

(158,750)

569

3616053

(158,750)

82701

340821

(2631)

5214

3956874

(161,381)

87915

Total comprehensive income

HYELE

Transfer from retained profits to surplus
reserve

EREEHERERHRER

Transfer from capital reserve to retained
profits
BERRRERERGEA

Shares ssued on exercise of share
options

RTRBRERS TR

Transfer from share-based compensation
reserve to retained profits

EROERRERRERERE

Shares purchased under share award
scheme

EL RS RE EEL )

Equity settled share-based transactions

NBRRRNRER RS

Final dividend approved in respect of the
previous year

HEBRE-EERBRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

A ERERRERE

25(el

25(c)fi

25(d)

25(bli

28998

(10,002)

(1218)

()

(4413)

(2,508)

13484

(158181)

(2450)

1218

2508

(310158)

(76049)

24585

(10,002)

13484

(310158)

2583

(32.218)

(73466)

24585

(10,002)

13484

(310,158)

(32.218)

Balance at 31st March 2022
W-Z--F=A=1-RLH

1013028

(10,002)

31522

185576

(48,242)

2261

637

66926

58701

2,007,506

3257913

311,186

3569099

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial

statements.

58125 % 250 H 2 MR I AN B i ek 2 —2B1D ©
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REEREER

/é? Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( S8+ &

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADFREREARE
Shares
heldfor Share-hased
share award compensation Non-
Share scheme Capital Surplus Other General Hedging  Exchange Teserve Retained controlling Total
apitdl - RAEEHE resrve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  RAER profits Total interests equity
B RECRG  BAEE  EBEE  HbRE  -RBE  WMRE  ENRE  BERE  REW At FBRES  EmAE
(note (note (note (note (note note note (note
2500 P 1) 1 R ] 20 250 250l
(Wil (MEoE)  (Rese  (HEse  (KE25E (Mo (M) (W25
Note ) (i) () (i) (i) ) (vi)

BE  Soofm  S00FR  SM0Fm  $o0Fr  S0fm  SowFm  S00Fm  $00Fx  S0Fx  SoFm  SowFm  S00FR  $000F™

Balance at 315t March 2022 and
st April 2022

HoB-—E=R=4-Af 1013028 10,002) 3522 135576 (48,242) 2261 637 66,926 58701 2007506 3257913 311186  3569,099
ZE-EMR-RER
Changesin equity for the year:
AEEVRESY:
Profit for the year
AEEER

Qther comprehensive income g

Afg2mEbz

4571 45721 (4664 21057

1111 (180470) (3546) (182905  (20,982)  (203887)

Total comprehensive income

SEYEEE

CTffonsmlseeteaed
profits - - - (8974) - - - - 8974
RERREERERSET
Transfer from capital reserve toretained
profits 25e)i - - (1,218) - - - - - - 1218
BERREEREREEA
Sharesissued on exercise of share
options 25(c)i) 5412 - - - - - - - (746) - 4,666 - 4,666
STRBERETS ARG
Shares isstied on vesting of share awards
HERRARERETRE

Vesting shares of share award scheme

BEROZETHRS

Transfer from share-based compensation
reserve toretained profits - - - - - - - - (982) 982
BRAEREEREEREREEA

Equity settled share-based transactions

DUVERELPEY

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

inasubsidiary 2 - - - - (152313) - - - - - (152313 (128032)  (280,345)
E-ENBL Az ERES
Interim dividend declared in respect of

the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - = - -
EREEEZHHRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (24,633)  (21,633)
WHFEREERERE

1111 (180470) = 175 (197184 (45646)  (182830)

25(c)i) 3013 = = = = = = = (3013)

25(d) = 2776 = = = = = = (2,388) (388)

= 25,549 = 25,549 = 25,549

(13916)  (13916) - (13916)

Balance at 315t March 2023
HoB-=EZRzi-ALp 1021453 (12260 30304 126602 (200,555 2261 1748 (113544  T7A20 2046551 2984715 115875 3100590

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial %125 ZF 250 B 2 Mgk DA B FE Rk = — EB{D o
statements.
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/é? Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEBEERE

For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LB #EHE )

2023 2022
—E=F —E-F

Note Ffizt BEFLEAE{ G $'000 Ft $000FT

Operating activities
REEE
Cash generated from operations

REXBRERE

Tax paid:
EABIIE

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
- BHAEEREH

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong
- EAEBUIMEERIE

18(b) 527,259 189,568

(9,028) (54,911)

(15,876) (10,267)

Net cash generated from operating activities

RETHMBRNLTHE

Investing activities

REERH

Payment for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment (187,473) (409,507)

BEYX BERREZINIE

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

HEMZE - MERREMEIIE

Government grants received for acquisition of

plant and equipment 11(a)
BB R & w4 2 B WBUR i B
Investment in joint venture
REEQRZRE
Interest received

EWFIE

502,355 124,390

3,059

632

(22,253) =

12,283 5,553

Net cash used in investing activities

BEEBT AR RHE (189,160) (400,263)
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/é? Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘/—_r = Eﬁé/)lbg‘?—é

For the year ended 31stMarch2023 B Z—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( S8+ &

2023 2022
—E=F —EC-_F

Note Ffizt BRI LS AE{ G $'000 Ft $000FT

Financing activities

MEES

Proceeds from new bank loans

J= . 18 525,121 :
SR 1T ARG &2 > 484,574
Repayment of bank loans

e 18 459,764 ,
RBRITER (c) ( ) (133,742)
Capital element of lease rentals paid

N 18 87,860 4,

BREES 2 ARG e (87.860) (84,880)

Interest element of lease rentals paid

ENEERS RS0

Interest on bank loans paid

EARITERZAE

Proceeds from shares issued on exercise of
share options 25(c)(ii)

PATEBRERITRDFAERA

Purchases of shares held for share award
scheme 25(d)
TR 1D 2R B ET BB B AR 1D

Payment for acquisition of non-controlling
interest 28 (280,345) -

W BB E IR IR B AR 2 TR

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company (13,893) (310,072)
mAL B RERE NRERE

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

) FF 2 IR FE 2 K 3 AR B

18(c) (5,589) (6,298)

18(c) (26,958) (16,773)

24,585

(10,002)

(21,633) (32,218)

Net cash used in financing activities

REEBT AR RE (366,255) (84,826)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

ReRALEEAR N BE (53,060) (360,69)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April
RUA—A2RERALSEES 621,365 970,026

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

EREE e (13,520) 12,038

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March

W=A=+—AZRERALSEAR 18e) >54785 621,365

The notes on pages 125 to 250 form part of these financial #1252 250 B 2 MIEE DA B SRk 2 — 3015 ©
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

‘@
B IS R R P 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

1 EESHBE

(a) HEHIEHH
FUBRRRERABEERZ (BRMBREE
Ay - BEBARETRAURER (R FRD) 28
EMmEE -(ERBMBHRELL) —ABESTE
S ASEMZEEAZ B (FBHHR
HER) (BRETER) RBE - APBHE
THEEBBMERZMERATEF LHHRE
(TEWRA) 2ERAKERE - REBRMNZ
FTEETBERRT XHE -

BREMMASCEME T (FRMBRELER)
ZERA - ARAKERARF 2EMSHH™
BREMHAHRERR - BRAEALZEAR
REE 2 HETER I BN E R RBESTHE
ZEAEHBREBERAMBHRRARR - B
BERERMEE 1(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had net current
liabilities of $275,637,000 at the end of the reporting period, and
the breach of certain financial covenant clauses, which have now
been resolved, in respect of outstanding bank loans of $201,213,000
(the “Outstanding Borrowings”) disclosed under current liabilities in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
March 2023. In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
the Directors have given careful consideration to the current and
anticipated future liquidity of the Group. Taking into account, inter
alia, (i) cash and bank deposits of $555,292,000 at 31st March 2023,
(ii) the unutilised loan facilities at the end of the reporting period, (iii)
the bank waiver letters obtained on 22nd May 2023 and 25th May
2023 inrelation to their covenant requirements for the Outstanding
Borrowings and, as at the date of approval of these financial
statements, the banks have not requested the Group’s repayment
of the Outstanding Borrowings (Further details of the Group’s bank
loans are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements); and (iv)
the net cash inflows projected to be generated from the Group’s
operations for the next twelve months, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities as and when
they falldue. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis is
appropriate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in note 1(u).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

1 FEEFEBEX (@)

(b) HMBEHRERZEREE
BEZE-_=F=A=1+—RHLEFEZHEIHE
REBEARIAREMBLAT (KB AEEH])
DURAEER—BEE QAR ZELR -

BEAEERNBERREEFRADEE
275,637,000t BER-ZZE-_=F=A=+—
B AEEEREBBERGREUBERIEREBARE
EHTHEAREZRITERK201,213,0007T ([ K
BEEE]) WE THEREGRR CREHER) -
GEUBERRMARBFELCEEERE - NiF
BAGEHBERERE  EECEEEEALAEE
BRAIRTAHARRBES £EE (HhEH)
(\RZBEZ=F=A=+—HAZBRERBITER
555,292,000 7¢ * (i) R EBREREAZEE
B (i\WNZBE-=FHEA=-+=BRZ=ZE==
FREACTHAESEBAREEERIEHEERN
RITEHEH  BRLEZSHHERRER » BT
EMABERNEEEEAEEEE (AEERTE
M2 E—THBRIERRMFE20HE) 5 K (iv)
B AEERART ZEALERMEE ZFEHR
ERAFE EBRAE AEBSEENERE
BB Bt EERARBECEHERRALZ
BHMBHRRIIBIE -

BRMEE 1u) PSS REREE 2 ITESRM T AR
DAEEN  ERUBEHRREUELRAES

SRR

ERERTRANE (BBYBHMEEL) 281
BHRREFFHELESTEERER  UREE -
BE - WARIHZHRESEZHE - At RE
& o WEMATTRABBRREREUTERNEE
BEEERBEIAASBZZEAMERAEL -
HERBREEEBAELRBRORTHNRE
MEEHEBZREAERIELAE 2B} - 8
PR SR A RE A BIRMERT B -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

- Amendment to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

- Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets: Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these amendments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented in these financial statements. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries (including structured entities) are entities controlled by
the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, tovariablereturnsfromitsinvolvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative
tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements.

1 FEFHBER (@)
(b) BRI ZEREE (@)

EEEESTHENSEGTNEERE - HES
st Z BT REBE B - RRET RS R
fEEHERT B R - AN RIERT HEHM AR
HEYAERE  AEFERERT 2 BBMARREE
R o

FREERERA(EBUBRELED) KT
HEMHERREEATE 2 HE - LR THE
ERZEZEBERFZARAR » BRMEE2 -

() BFERzZEH

A E R S AR IR0 2 AN B R 3 R LA T
EEEHAARESZ (FEMBREEA) 5
5

- (BEBEFHEI)FIH ¥ BERR
i . FHIEREE FIZ BT 2 iS50 R | 2 18R]

- (BBERER) EI7WIBE - AAREE
REAAREE  BEMEH - BHYKAE] 2
&3]

BEEMETHARERAMHRETFERIZ
PIAREEN A SRBENE 2 EE R P HIRR
ZARNEREARTE - NEE I EEM & RNA
SRR AR AT ER R

(d) FMEQBRRFEZRER

MEAR (BREEBEER) RAKEMES 2
B EXAEENSHEEBERCERESIAR
ESAZEER  RERIEHERITEEELM
FEZEE®  AREEEFZER - BFEAR
EEREAENR REEARERN (BAEE
REMALEE) -

FRMERAENLETEEEREEGIAR &
SRJEUENLFERZENER - HIHEE
ARERERTRIFERE - MBEMEENEEE
BRBBENZHAAIEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controllinginterestsarepresentedintheconsolidatedstatement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 1(o) or (p) depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gainor loss is recognised.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

1 FEFHBER (@)
(d) KEBATRIFERES (&)

RBARZRERZEFNBERAMEZER
AHLHEARGEYBERRGEAR - SERALQ
Az RERAERE  AREBALR
BB 2R G EE 2 EMARBHRER - HREE
HFSMBHRREZHME - MBREEFE &
BARBZHZREELE RS RBREARER
Wz B[R]z M EH o

FEREREFANTNEESBEEEZWEL
ARE > MASRETAREEEESSEABES
KRR - SAKEREHZSEEELNS
TRMEEERECANERY - RILEAHMS -
AEEMEREAAENFEREREHER
B2 Al B B E R E 2 L fI 5t B IR AR

H o

FERESERSUBRR R 2EHEIDR - &
ARBREFEARGEEZIFHES - FIERE
BEAEERECREERABERRGERE
s HEMEERERES  WERAFEZRE
NEBERZE R EAENFERERERDF
REFBAZEZOE - FEREZFBEAZE
REZEFAACRMENEEDRZEREZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

(e) Jointventure

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Aninvestment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unlessit is classified as
heldforsale (orincludedinadisposal group thatis classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into the joint venture
that forms part of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see notes 1(f) and (k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
oftheinvestees and anyimpairment losses for the year arerecognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

(f)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)  Goodwill (Continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Ondisposal of acash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for acurrently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(k)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(v)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

Thefollowingitems of property, plant and equipment are stated inthe
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

- Freehold land and buildings;

- Interests in leasehold land and building where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest (see note 1(j));

- Right-of use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

- Other items of plant and equipment including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment
(see note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
1(x)).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. The proceeds
from selling any such items and the related costs are recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

- Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being no more than 50 years.

- Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3-12years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress
until such time when the assets are substantially completed and
ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Brand name 20 years
- Customer list 7 years
- Pollution discharge right 5vyears

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

(j)) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is,or contains, alease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.
Theright-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in anindex or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease term
using arevised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical expedient set
out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presentsright-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately
in the statement of financial position.

(i)  Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component

on arelative stand-alone selling price basis.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 1(v)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)  Creditloss and impairment of assets

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”") on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loan to
joint venture).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected cash
shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation thereof for trade and other
receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportableinformationthatis available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables is always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
and investment properties;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
- interest in joint venture; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Credit loss and impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been afavourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(D Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Software-as-a-service (SaaS) arrangement costs

A SaaS arrangement is a service arrangement where the Group has a
right to access to the supplier’s application software running on the
supplier’s cloud infrastructure during the term of the arrangement,
but not control over the underlying software asset.

Costs to implement a SaaS arrangement, including those incurred in
configuring or customising the access to the supplier’s application
software, are evaluated to determine if they give rise to a separate
asset that the Group controls. Any resulting asset is recognised and
accounted for in accordance with the policy for intangible assets as
set out in note 1(i). Implementation costs that do not give rise to an
asset are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, which may be over
the period the configuration or customisation services are received
to the extent that such services are distinct from the SaaS, or over
the term of the Saa$S arrangement to the extent the configuration or
customisation services are not distinct from the SaaS.

Payment made in advance of receiving the related services is
recognised as prepayment.

(o) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

(p) Payables and contract liabilities
(i) Payables
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently

stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(m)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i).

(r)  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are charged as expense in the year as the related service are provided
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation
is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and loss and allocated

» o«

byfunctionaspartof‘costofsales”,“marketing,sellinganddistribution
expenses”, “administrative expenses” or “other operating expenses”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when
aplanis curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
as an expense in profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

1 EEEFFEBER ()

() RERAELEEEAR
RERALEERAGERTAEREFRS -
FRRTR MBI BRETRERRENT S
KRB RE  WERETERIBRADHLSE
2HE BFARZECEERBEBTA MR
BEDBARRG=EAR - RERASEER
B M 1)) FTRBCR TR S E 8 -

n EEER

(i) FEEIESIERIR [0 R E R R Z]
ZHE

W ERIEA - BEER - ARTHEEKE

B R RIS BIEAN AR ES 2 HEE

RISEE ST A E B o MIEBRNRREE LA

EAYE  AABSEREBMEANE -

(i) SREWEFRIKET BRI
REEHRRAERBABRANTEIFTRE 2EEFE
B EHEERE A RIBEH B U R RIS T
BRIz RRFBESHEME  TEERERZE
MBATUFR  LHBREFMABEEZAR
B FHEIFRAEREEMRARTENLEE
TEHETT e

REBMNEME (BE) FHRZBRBEARFE
B (A FEMEHED  LIRIDEEEIR
RIBERK] [HE  HERDHEER] (1T
BRER|RHMELEER] 2—5H - RAR
BRAZRAPEEERBAEELE 2 RERNEME
BEZEMTE o T8l 2B LIRS M5t
giER - AIEBEREEUERE 2B 2230
B BB AR 2 B R R AT BIF S RT AR R R
BABBEARARLLEFE (UREERE)
REZBRARMAX - MARISER () F
BIERKTEREBIAER/ANEEERAZ
FREEANAERBANAE  (BEE) FHEME
EREREEQANES (Y AEAKRERE
TEEZHREL) RE®RAE 2WHEER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)  Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are
recognisedinother comprehensiveincomeandreflectedimmediately
in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).

(iii)  Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in respect of long service payments on cessation of
employmentunder certain circumstancesis the estimated discounted
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated annually using the projected unit credit method, taking
into account offsettable accrued benefits related to the Group’s
Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme contributions.

(iv)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of share options or share awards granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in
the share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options or the awarded shares were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options or the awarded shares, the
total estimated fair value of the options or the awarded shares is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options or the awarded shares will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)  Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options or the
awarded shares that are expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options or
awarded shares that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares.

For the share option schemes, the equity amount is recognised in
the share-based compensation reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (whenitis released
directly to retained profits).

For the share award scheme, the Group may acquire its own shares
through the trustee of the share award scheme on the Stock
Exchange for the shares to be vested under the share award scheme.
The shares acquired by the Group that are not yet vested for this
share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and recorded
as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction under equity.
Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs of the acquired
shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share award scheme”,
and the related fair value of the awarded shares are debited to share-
based compensation reserve with the difference charged/credited to
equity.

The Group may also issue new shares for the vested share awards.
The amount previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share capital upon the issuance of new
shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

1

(r)
(v)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(s)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apartfromcertainlimited exceptions, all deferred taxliabilities
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

1

(s)
(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

(V) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary item, which is
permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the effective portion of
the foreign currency gains or losses on the hedging instrument also
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion
of any foreign currency gains or losses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed
affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the
hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship
but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity until the
transaction occurs and it is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the
Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

(i)  Saleof goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i) Service fees

Service fees are recognised when the related services are provided.
Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales taxes.

(iii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv)  Interest income

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
except those non-derivative monetary items used to hedge foreign
currency risk which are recognised in other comprehensive income
(see note 1(u)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchangeratesruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity
on consolidation.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(y) Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of overhaul, is
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(z) Related parties

(a)  Aperson,or aclose member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 15, 22 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to interest in joint venture impairment
assessment, defined benefit retirement liabilities and the fair value
of share options and share awards granted. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36,
these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
isthe greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use.
Indetermining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the
asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

2  Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax benefits
can be utilised, management’s judgements is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature
and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in note
24(b).

3  Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

No disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is
presented as the entire revenue of the Group is derived from the
manufacture and sale of food and beverages, and is recognised at
pointin time.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
geographically. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the

manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in Mainland
China;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and
Exports) mainly represents the manufacture and sale of soya
milk, tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong SAR, sale of
beveragesin Macau SAR, export of beverages from Hong Kong
SAR and the operating of tuck shops and catering businesses
in Hong Kong SAR;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soya milk and other plant milk
products in Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soya related products in Singapore, sale of
beverages in Singapore and the export of soya related
products.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest injoint venture, deferred
tax assets, current tax recoverable, goodwill and unallocated
head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
creditors and bills payable attributable to the manufacture and sales
activities of the individual segments, bank loans, lease liabilities and
other liabilities managed directly by the segments with the exception
of employee retirement benefit liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,
current tax payable and unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is “profit/
(loss) from operations”. To arrive at “profit/(loss) from operations”,
the Group’s profit/(loss) is further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as finance costs, share of
losses of joint venture, impairment loss on goodwill and brand name,
acquisition related expenses on the remaining 49% equity interest
in Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) and unallocated
head office and corporate expenses. Income tax is not allocated to
reporting segments. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a
profit margin.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b)
(i)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided

to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

3

(b)

(i)
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the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022 is set out below: T
Mainland China Hong Kong Operation ~ Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
HE R BEXER b T R act
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZB-=F —E--fF ZB-=F —Z--F ZB-=§ _—F-_-F ZBE-=K _Z-_-F ZE-=E C—ZI-CE
$000Fm  $000Fx $000FT $000F7m $000FT $000Fm $000FT $000Fm $000FT  $000FT
Revenue from external customers
REEREZUA 3,509,001 3838297 2143815 1933856 580,325 606,971 107,318 122091 6,340,559 6,501,215
Inter-segment revenue 138276 74773 20079 23558 3408 6630 4491 4314 166254 109275
AHERA
Reportable segment revenue
BREABI KA 3,647,377 3913070 21163894 1957414 583,733 613,601 111,809 126405 6506813 6,610,490
Reportable segment profit/(loss) from
operations 45918  (340309) 218,036 198,989 7,635 77,731 (12,130) (12692) 259,459 (76,281)
BREND2BERN/ (HR)
Interest income from bank deposits ~ _
SRR IHENA 2,669 3706 9,348 1,845 266 2 12,283 5553
%g’;;;f‘”ts (22639  (17438) (71200 (4459)  (2360) (741) (428) (433 (32547)  (23071)
Depreciation and amortisation for the
year (315,060)  (348441)  (189,284)  (186,475) (19,660) (19,202) (5,609) (5499)  (529,613)  (559,617)
REEZHEREE
Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (2,414) (49,280) (2,227) (1,674) = = = (1917) (4,641) (52,871)
N BERREZAESS
Reportable segment assets
AREANSEE 3,169,659 4002273 3848483 3615172 448,202 495,760 119,046 114487  7,585390 8227692
Reportable segment liabilities
BRENDY B 2,366,732 2875854 1,015,704 958,598 232,263 149,026 32,562 38968 3647261 4022446
Additions to non-current segment assets
during the year 102,567 125,860 80,325 135,660 20,252 42732 2,503 20,872 205,647 325,124
FEEMBZERDINEE
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements
B R MY =t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (ii)

loss, assets and liabilities

AR 2 ERERE ()

DEEE ()
REBEDEHUA - Bz - BEREBE

ZEHR

Revenue

A

Reportable segment revenue
AMEDEBZWA

Elimination of inter-segment revenue

72 BRI 2 8

Consolidated revenue

FmEWA

Profit or loss

Bz
Reportable segment profit/(loss) from operations
BIRE DI LR, (FE)

Finance costs (note 5(a))

BMERA (KfEES5())

Share of losses of joint venture

PRt & N RS

Impairment losses on goodwill (note 13)

g ZRERRE (M 13)

Impairment losses on brand name (note 12)

miE &2 BERBRE (HE12)

Acquisition related expenses on the remaining 49% equity interest in VAP

VAPERT 49% IR RV R BB AR RERE 2

Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

RAAWMBLRREXER

Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation

FEBRBiANER, (B18)

2023
——

—

$'000 Tt

6,506,813

(166,254)

6,340,559

2023
e

—_———

$'000 Tt

259,459

(32,547)

(22,253)

(43,403)

(112,463)

48,793

2022
B _F
$000 F 7t

6,610,490

(109,275)

6,501,215

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7t

(76,281)

(23,071)

(18,323)

(2,303)

(115,944)

(235,922)
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARSEEHE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEBFRE (@)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (i) BAHRESEUA -~ B BEEREE
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ZEER (&)
2023 2022
== —E-_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T
Assets
BE

Reportable segment assets

., N 7,585,390 8,227,692
AREIW2EE

Elimination of inter-segment receivables

R RS (2,017,528) (1,740,925)

5,567,862 6,486,767

Deferred tax assets

. . 260,693 281,707
EEBEERE

Current tax recoverable

o 19,528 37,889
FE W IR HAB IR

Unallocated head office and corporate assets

A s 1,436 757
AROMZBRARREREE

Consolidated total assets

momaE 5,849,519 6,807,120
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é? B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)
(ii)

Liabilities
af&

Reportable segment liabilities
AMEDEZAE

Elimination of inter-segment payables

72 BRI ARz 8

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFIEE

Deferred tax liabilities
EEHEEE

Current tax payable

AREER LR

Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities

RAAWMzBLRREEERE

Consolidated total liabilities

mERasE

AR 2 ERERE ()

DEEWE (8
REBEDEHUA - Bz - BEREBE
ZERR (1)

2023
—m——

—_———

$'000 T3t

3,647,261

(1,015,339)

2,631,922

24,835

76,115

14,232

1,825

2,748,929

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7t

4,022,446

(927,210)

3,095,236

6,222

99,116

12,334

25,113

3,238,021
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii)  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, deposits
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill and interest in joint venture (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographic location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment and deposits for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and the location of the operation to which they
are allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill and the
location of operations, in the case of interest in joint venture.

3 WARSEBHRSE (8

(b) DEIHSE (@)

(iii)  HBEH

TREYERAEENE BERREZ IR
B BEVE BERREZ: BEEE-
BERREEQRTAIzER ([BEERBEE])
ZER - HYE  BERXEBERBEEVE  FE
LBz ems  BEFRBEEZHENE
TIRBEZEECERMEREE  RMBEFEERD
EMSAEHERBECE£KMEN ; BREER
RS RIEER e o

Specified non-current assets

Mainland China
FR R A it

Hong Kong Operation
Australia and New Zealand

VS EE

Singapore

03

BEFREEE
2023 2022
—EF=-= —E- &
$’000 Tt $'000 F 7t
2,443,857 2,877,540
663,226 777,477
235,809 262,447
49,649 51,786
3,392,541 3,969,250

The revenue from external customers and specified non-current
assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the Group’s place of
domicile, amounted to $1,888,674,000 (2022: $1,703,210,000) and
$655,129,000 (2022: $772,211,000) respectively.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

4  Otherincome 4 HtlgA
2023 2022
—E-= —ECCF
$'000 F it $'000 F 7T
Government grants (Note)
. 77,060
BT (FIEE)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (note 18(c)) 17095
2019 BikimSFREEE S ER (M 18(c) '
Interest income from bank deposits 5553
RITERZFEUWA ’
Interest income from loan to joint venture 894
mEE N REEERZFEWA
Rental income
4,120
WA
Scrap sales
’ 5,175
FERIHE
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 215
REREZEMESRER
Maintenance recharge income
. 5,606 6,963
W EIAEEERA
Sundry income
N 9,689 9,112
IR A
113,846 126,187
Note: FIEE -

During the current year, government grants of $32,092,000 (2022:
$53,319,000) were received from the government of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) in relation to an investment in Mainland China in 2020. Other
government grants included COVID-19 financial assistance in Mainland
China, Hong Kong SAR and Singapore amounting to $25,521,000 (2022:
$13,847,000) and other financial assistance received from the government
of the PRC.

Other government grants of $93,000 (2022: $632,000) received from the
government of the PRC in relation to the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment were netted off against the cost of the related assets (note 11(a)).

REER > —BEE-_ZT_TFERPERNBHNREMES
REARIEME ([HE]) BF—E#/EIH 32,092,000 7T
(ZE =% :53,319,0007t) - £EE2019BMRHFSH
BTN AP E R - BB 51T HE RN S it BUTE
84 25,521,0007T (ZF = =% : 13,847,000 7T) ##H8f
LA £ P B R T U 2 ELfth B A5 B B ©

BBEWE  BERRBRRTEBFT 2 E BT HEE
93,0007 (ZEZZF : 632,0007T) ENEIERAEE 2 HA
MER (MiEE 11(a)) ©
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

5 Profit/(loss) before taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5 R#ENET (5R)

BRELATER (B1R) 2Nk (GHA) ¢

2023
2=
$'000 Tt

(a) Finance costs:

BB

Interest on bank loans (note 18(c))

RITERZFIE (MHEE 18(c)

Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c))

HESE2FE (& 18(c)

2022
—E-F
$000 F 7t

16,773

6,298

23,071

(b)  Staff costs:
BIRA:

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
REMFCRMKGTEZ MR

Net expenses recognised in respect of:

UTIHE 2ERAERFHE

- Retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(v))

-RHE (FEE22(c)(v)

- Long service payments

-REBRBE

2022
—EBEC-_F
$000 ¥t

111,710

2,266

16,369

Total retirement costs

BRI

Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 23)
RO ANRER 2ER (MizE23)

Severance payments

EMEH

Salaries, wages and other benefits

e TERHMWER

122,469

2,587

1,230

130,345

25,549

18,347

1,492,128

126,286

13,484

60,930

1,619,612

1,666,369
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

5

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Profit/(loss) before taxation (Continued)

(Continued)

5 BREEER(EE) @

BRELADER] (B1R) MR (GEA) © ()

2023
—m—=

—_———

$'000 Tt

Other operating expenses:
Hitt KL &R -

Staff costs

ETHA

Sundry tax in Mainland China
FR IR it Y EL A 5 1R

Management fee charged by a related party (note 29(a))
B WENEERE (K5E29(a))

Royalty withholding tax
SRR ABEINR

Quality assurance and sampling expenses

HERERBAER

Depreciation and amortisation

TER#HE

Professional fee

HXE

Repair and maintenance expenses

HERREEMN

Donation

B

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 18(b))

HEME BMERREZ (WR) EiRFEE (ME 18(b))
(Reversal)/recognition of write down of inventories
(@) TERMETE

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
IR R E R < REE R

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

M - BB KRB 2 REEE

Impairment losses on goodwill (note 13)

BEZRERE (FiE13)

Impairment losses on brand name (note 12)

miE BN RERE (R 12)

Others
Hith

175,902

39,768

25,371

12,214

16,707

14,883

14,856

7,516

1,799

(802)

(2,409)

1,278

4,641

325,641

2022
—E-_F
$'000 F 7t

191,489

39,299

34,279

13,434

21,284

15,880

12,595

6,629

6,280

2,724

20,406

11,867

52,871

18,323

2,303

42,499

492,162
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
5 Profit/(loss) before taxation (Continued)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)

5 BREEER(EE) @

BRELADER] (B1R) MR (GEA) © ()

(d)  Otheritems:
Hithg g :
Government grants (Note)
BT ED (FiEE)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (note 11(b))
2019 BARESHEEHR S ER (MiE 11(b)
Amortisation of intangible assets
BREREZHH
Depreciation
e
- Investment properties
-REWFE
- Right-of-use assets
-ERAREEE
- Other assets
-HihEE
Auditors’ remuneration
ZEETI &
- Audit services
- BBRTE
- Other audit-related services
- Hith B2 A REBR %
- Tax services
- B BR %
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities (note 11(b))
Tt AHEEEtE2TBEESR (& 11(b)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)
INERIE (W) F8
Cost of inventories (note 16(b))

FERA (M 16(b))

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
$'000 Tt $000 F T

(104,054) (83,039)
(17,729) (22,409)
292 659

126 126
99,569 100,763
429,626 458,069
6,697 6,175
294 280

410 313
14,585 13,368
11,097 (317)
3,327,851 3,451,179

Note:

During the current year, government grants of $32,092,000 (2022:
$53,319,000) were received from the government of the PRC in relation
to an investment in Mainland China in 2020. Other government grants
included COVID-19 financial assistance in Mainland China, Hong Kong
SAR, and Singapore amounting to $65,178,000 (2022: $19,826,000), of
which $25,521,000 (2022: $13,847,000) was included in other income,
$34,304,000 (2022: $2,662,000) was netted off against staff costs and
$5,353,000 (2022: $3,317,000) was netted off against cost of sales and
operating expenses.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

FieE

REAFER —HERA-Z-ZFRHPEARBLHNREM
ESTEBN—E#B#£32092000T (ZE=ZF:
53,319,0007t) - EEE 2019 BARF S HAEEMA P ER
b~ BB BT EE K 3 DN 25 it B AT HE 15 3 65,178,000
T (ZE -5 :19,8260007T) fb) - EFEHMKRAS
25,521,000t (ZZE = =% : 13,847,0007T) * 34,304,000
TT(ZZT 2 :26620007T) HBETRAERE 5
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 6 ZEAEBEBERRZFBHR
profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) LEBBERZBEMT :
or loss represents:

2023 2022
—EBE-=H —ECF
$'000 Tt $000 F 7T

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

REAKE - FEENEHR

Provision for the year

24,725
FREE
Under-provision in respect of prior year 39
UEFEZBETR
24,764
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
IREARIIE - FELUIMEE
;r;’;;g for the year 24,783 54,397
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years
- 1,868 1,268
UAFEZ (ShBE) BETRE ( )
22,915 55,665
Deferred tax
SEIERITE (16,034) (154,970)
27,736 (74,541)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

6

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is calculated at
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance notes, the statutory income
tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen,
Foshan, Shanghai, Wuhan, Dongguan and Nansha is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the applicable
rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated after 31st December
2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in Mainland
China. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-
invested enterprises in Mainland China in the foreseeable future in
respect of the profits generated after 31st December 2007.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong SAR and Mainland China
is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant tax jurisdictions.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

6

(a)

MiEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FERERZAEHR (@

GEBERZIHEBENOT @ (@)

CECCEEBANSHBEREERN Z(GTER
BURFIL16.5%( Z B4 : 16.5%) 2 BT o

RIBEBEHELREFEIER  ERRERESIF
B BARAREZRI Bl 8 RE R
RREDME QR ZEEMBHER25% °

B REBATAEE P E A INE RN =
ZERLET AT -HREEZEFIEL 25K
5% B AR R BMAND - AEBCHELRES
BRI ERERATRRRRAFUR=_TZTLF
TZAZ+-BREEZEND K2R BFHRIEL
BiHAE

BRERTRERPEAUIME ZHERRZ
BRARERAN AR AERR 2 RTERAB R
o
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

6 HREBRZRZMEH (@

(b) BIEXH  (E%) EETHER
(B8 UERBRAE 2Bk

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BREBLATER (B518)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to

profit/(loss) in the tax jurisdictions concerned

REBBEREZEBEREANEF (BB 2HEFERBANER, (58)

ZEEBIA

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

FHIR 2 BER R

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

FRBIMA ZBIATE

Withholding tax of Mainland China subsidiaries
PRI R 4 B 2 FRIR B IR

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

RER 2 ARBABBEIE 2 B

Tax effect of recognition of tax loss and deductible temporary differences not

previously recognised

RRTARER 2R EERR TRNTRER 2BBEE

Net under-provision in respect of prior years

L E 2 BB R

Tax credit on PRC Corporate Income Tax paid

EHTEERAEHR2HIRER

Others
Hith

Actual tax expense/(credit)

ERBIERH, (ER)

2023 2022
—E-=F —ECF
$'000 Tt $'000 F T

48,793 (235,922)
(30,875) (73,465)
15,696
(5,554)
(2,934)
196
(11,197) (6,048)
1,717 1,307
(7,798) (4,500)
3,315 761
27,736 (74,541)
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

7  Emoluments of Directors 7 EBrEe

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RSB (ATMERY 5 383(1) 1ER A7 (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ESEFRER) R B2 ECEEME W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T :

are as follows:

2023
~BCCE
Salaries,
allowances and
other benefits Retirement Share-hased
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme payments
fees  E EER bonuses  contributions Sub-total MRAE Total
ESe  HUEWER BERM2EL  RIGIEMR it BR2HR )
(Note)
(M)
$000 F $000F7t $000 F $000F $000 T $000 F $000 F7t
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
BRits 400 6,294 1,254 396 8,344 3,107 11,451
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
BEELE 200 7516 1,361 392 9,469 8214 17,683
Mr.Eugene LYE )
oy 200 2,300 576 65 3141 3141
Non-executive Directors
FinEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BEAYT 290 290 290
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
BEaLt 290 290 290
Ms.MayLO } ) } )
BHELT 340 340 340
Independent Non-executive Directors
BU#HiEE
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI } ) } )
SEEEL 580 580 580
Mr. JanPS.ERLUND
JanPS.ERLUND % 0 i ' i 0 ' 0
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE : ) ) _
BRELE 631 631 631
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH ) _ _ )
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4 2 ot =
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG ) i ) i
FETHL 21 il Vil
4487 16,110 3191 853 24,641 11,321 35,962
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

7  Emoluments of Directors (Continued) 7 EEZHE @)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RSB (ATMERY 5 383(1) 1ER A7 (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ESEFRER) R B2 ECEEME W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T (&)

are as follows: (Continued)

2022
—ECCE
Salaries,
allowances and
other benefits Retirement Share-based
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme payments
fees  H& 2R bonuses contributions Sub-total HRAE Total
ESne  HUENER  DRRRCEL BAGTEMER gt ER2HR a5t
(Note)
(HisE)
$000F 70 $000F 7 $000F 70 $000 F 70 $000F 70 $000F 70 $000 7
Executive Directors
Hi7EE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
B 400 7020 _ 387 7807 538 8,345
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
BEELE 200 7461 - 386 8,047 8,315 16,362
Mr.Eugene LYE
By EE 200 2273 66 2,539 2,539
Non-executive Directors
#ifEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BERIL 290 - - - 290 - 290
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO ) ) ) )
BEasL 290 290 290
Ms.May LO
BHZGT 340 - - - 340 - 340
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHEZ
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
ZEEET 580 580 580
Mr. JanPS.ERLUND
JanPS.ERLUND % = i i i e i e
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
REEEE 631 631 631
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4 % i i i % i #
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG i i i i
F:TRt 421 1 421
4487 16,754 - 839 22080 8,853 30,933
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

7  Emoluments of Directors (Continued) 7 EEZEE (@

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options and share Mzt : RGO AER ZARIERBAAT ZBRETEIR
awards granted to the Directors under the Company'’s share option RO ESETEScBRERRMDER 24t
scheme and share award scheme. The value of these share options BE HWEBERERRDEB2EEIREMT
and share awards is measured according to the Group’s accounting 1Ur)(iv) FTEAEERUR DA SRER R B KA
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note ZEFBRMETE - MRBZEGEK - SFYBEF
1(r)(iv) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to ERFTm AR HHRA T BT8R B AT 2 15R Wo 8
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity B & EEFTEZFAZE -

instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms HEEYENZFE (BECEHCERER KRG
and number of options and awards granted, are disclosed under the BECETEGANEE) RESSHRE [BREST
paragraph “Share option scheme” and “Share award scheme” in the B R [RODEEE ] —BRRMEE 23 FiKE -

directors’ report and note 23.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EoiMe At

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022: ERBEEMEALTP MBE(ZEZZF ' W
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The B)AESE WESMEHNMIE7HIRE - 8
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2022: = (ZEBEZ=F  =8) AL ZESBENT

three) individuals are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E__F
$’000 FiT $'000 F 7t
Salaries and other emoluments
N 14,450 10,984
HERHEMMS
Retirement scheme contributions 374
EREHEIHRR
Discretionary bonuses
N 1,409
EIS R 2 TEAL
Share-based payments 1912
DARR 0 B ERE 2 AT ’
14,679
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments
(Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

8 EeiMeAL @

=FZ(=ZE=-=
NFLLTAER :

$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
4,000,001 jt Z 4,500,000 JT

$4,500,001 to $5,000,000
4,500,001 jt £ 5,000,000 T

$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
5,000,001 Jt £ 5,500,000 JT

$5,500,001 to $6,000,000
5,500,001 Jt £ 6,000,000 T

$6,000,001 to $6,500,000
6,000,001 JTt £ 6,500,000 T

$6,500,001 to $7,000,000
6,500,001 Jt £ 7,000,000 JT

$7,000,001 to $7,500,000
7,000,001 Jt £ 7,500,000 JT

$7,500,001 to $8,000,000
7,500,001 Jt £ 8,000,000 JT

$8,000,001 to $8,500,000
8,000,001 Jt £ 8,500,000 JT

L ZE) BeMEALZEE

2023 2022
—E=E-= —E-_F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

N - AEL
2
1
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

9  Other comprehensive income 9 HiZEmEukas
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) FREEMZEKESIBH BB
comprehensive income: g

2023 2022
—2-= ZECCF
Tax credit/ Tax credit/
Before-tax (expense) Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount B amount amount BE amount
BhaeE #£%/(BR) NF5ESE B At o vk~
ORI RS R $000FT  $000Fm  $000F7%

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong

RRERBUMENBLAARAE DA HERRMEEN
ERER

(201,452) (201,452) 87,773 = 87,773

Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve

BaREHH  HbaEINE 1,329 (218) 1,111 (517) 84 (427)

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities

EEEfETIEEENTE (4,226) (3,546) 633 (64) 569

(204,349) (203,887) 87,895 20 87,915
(b) Components of other comprehensive income: (b) EHis2mEKEFZZIM -
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T
Cash flow hedges:
BEREEP -

Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments recognised
during the year (8,093) 6,552
FARARAZEHPTIEAABERE 2B REHD

Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items

Wi N C s 7,063
WRZEHAR BABEEZ S e
Net deferred tax (debited)/credited to other comprehensive income 84
REMEEEE (FOBR) A ZIEERIEFEE
Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised in other

comprehensive income (427)

S S e e )

172 | Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 3B £ EA PR A 5



/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
10 Earnings/(loss) per share

(a) Basicearnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share (2022: basic loss per
share) is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of $45,721,000 (2022: loss of $158,750,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,070,165,000 ordinary shares (2022:
1,068,766,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated
as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 BRER (HR)

(a) EBREXREBF, (BE)
EREABA (ZZ2-—F SRELXEBE) D
RIBADQTREFTE AEMLEF 45,721,000 7T
—Z - F518158,750,000 T) RERT
TEBIR 2 NFEF 921,070,165 OOOEE%EHQ
(ZB==% :1,068,766,000 RZEMR) 5t E
HEENMT :

EBR 2 IE-F1T2

2023 2022
—E-= B _F
Number of Number of

shares shares

20k 4E] BEE
'000 Fh& '000 F %

Issued ordinary shares at 1st April
AROB—B2EBTEBR

Effect of share options exercised
BITEERECSE

Effect of share awards vested

CEEBRBRD 2FE

Effect of shares purchased under share award scheme

RERHEZEEBERD 2 HE

1,070,010 1,067,188

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March (note 10(b))
M=B=1+—Bz2ZBIR 2 EFHE (FEE 10(b))

1,888
(391) (310)
1,070,165 1,068,766
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
10 Earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share (2022: diluted loss per
share) is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of $45,721,000 (2022: loss of $158,750,000) and
the weighted average number of 1,072,096,000 ordinary shares
(2022: 1,068,766,000 ordinary shares) after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

10 SREF, (EE) @)

(b) ESREHRR, (EE)
ERBERAN (ZE-—F  SREEEBR) D
RIBADQTREFTE AEMLEF 45,721,000 7T
—E T E518158,750,000 T) REFTE A
BEBERANEBER FEMELARRZE
B INAEF9201,072,096,000 R ZER (==
T 1 1,068,766,000 REER) FTE - HFE
mE

BER 2 NEFIH (#E)

2023 2022
—ZEg-= —E-_F
Number of Number of

shares shares
g 4= RHEE
'000 & '000 F A%

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March (note 10(a))

R=ZA=1t—-HZEBRZMEFIH (5 10(a))

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s share option

scheme for nil consideration

BREARBAAT ZBREAIUEESXNBITEBRRZZE

N\

Effect of shares awarded under share award scheme

REBR M REBRRRD 2FE

1,070,165 1,068,766

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31st March

REA=+t—-HZEBRZMEFIE (8F)

1,072,096 1,068,766

The Group had dilutive potential ordinary shares in connection with
its share option scheme and share award scheme. As at 31st March
2022, the potential ordinary shares relating to the share option
scheme and share award scheme were not included in the calculation
of diluted loss per share as they did not give rise to any dilutive effect
for the period.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% - BENR
(a) (a)

Other property, plant and equipment
Eitn% - BERZE

Factory Fixtures,
Landand ~ machinery furniture and

buildings held and office

forownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use  Investment

HEER:  IRMER £E HAR vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
in

LR EF R WOERR g HRIR Mt EREEE  RENE @it
§000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  §000FE  $000Fm  $000Fm  §000FT  $000FT  $000FR

Cost:
A

At Lt April 2021
R-2--FfHmA-A
Exchange adjustments
ERE

Additions

HE

Transfer

L

Disposals
HE

At 31st March 2022

R-Z-FZf=1-8

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses:

FATERAESE :

At 1st April 2021

RZ2--£MA-A

Exchange adjustments

ENRE

Charge for the year

AEENE

Impairment losses

HEEE

Written back on disposals

HEREE

At 315t March 2022
R=B==F=A=t-R

1668456 4207043 598,363 157,153 39894 6,670,909 533,990 2698 7221597

48052 104,669 7217 1876 1915 163729 9,855 = 173584

593 58,501 14936 9971 159430 243431 83832 = 327,263

953 53157 54770 5714 (114,594) > ° = >

(1417) (55,045) (18828) (8670) = (83.960) (68460) = (152,420)

1716637 4368325 656458 166,044 86645 6,994,109 559217 2698 7576024

535851 197191 218122 97400 - 2883364 182193 19322 3084879

11578 40,107 2,633 1,095 = 55413 1,804 = 57217

62927 318434 63489 13219 = 458,069 100,763 126 558,958

50,063 959 475 = 51497 1374 = 52871

(765) (52302) (16445) (8,560) - (78072) (68,047) = (146,119)

609591 2328293 328,758 103,629 - 3310271 218,087 19448 3,607,806

Net hook value:

REFE:

At 31st March 2022

W-B--E= =g 1107046 2,040,032 327,700 62415 86645 3623838 341,130 325 3968218
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 11 Y% - BENRE (8
(@)  (Continued) (a) (@)

Other property, plant and equipment
Etih% - BERRMG

Factory Fixtures,
Landand  machinery furniture and

buildings held and office
forownuse  equipment  equipment Motor  Construction Right-of-use  Investment
KEfFERZz  IRMSR £B GHR vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
kg R HOER KE  REIE Nt EREEE  RENE @
$000Fw  $000F;w  $000Fk  $000Fk  $000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F7
Cost:
A
At 1t April 2022
H-E-—EmA-g 1716637 4,368,325 656,458 166,044 86,645 6,994,109 559,217 22,698 17,576,024
gg%‘g 2ustments (104302 (233067 (2355 (8516 (11535 (300978  (188%0) - [399858)
%dgm”s 179 8015 13273 1200 103510 153617 52294 - 291
Transfer 3569 75093 3860 % (117361) - - - -
&g
;'2053'5 o5 724 (7898 (13168 - ey (65812 - (19473
ALStstMarh 2028 1607058 4136152 666878 156478 61259 66T 526819 20698 787342
RZBE-=E=fA=t+-H
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
[osses:
ZHTERAEER:
At 1t April 2022 i
W-2-—EmA-7 609,591 2,328,293 328,758 103,629 3370271 218,087 19448 3,607,806
et Wy ause) o0 29) S oseo) 0% - e
Charge for the year
. 59,092 290,457 67,091 12986 - 429,626 99,569 126 529,321
KEENE
Impairment losses ) i i
HEEE 3813 82 298 4193 448 4641
Written backondisposal B8 9506 (13309 (12680 - s (6497 - [18642)
HEREE
At 315t March 2023
W-E-=Fzp=i-g 638970 2410142 375,472 101,967 - 3,526,551 249,095 19574 3,795,220
Net hook value:
REE:
At 315t March 2023
o 978,088 1,726,010 291,406 54,511 61,259 3,111,274 271,724 3124 3,392,122
RZEZ=E=fA=1-H
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Government grants of $93,000 (2022: $632,000) were received
from the PRC government in relation to the acquisition of plant and
equipment and were netted off against the cost of the related assets
during the year.

During the year, the carrying amounts of certain items of property,
plant and equipment were written down by $4,641,000 (2022:
$52,871,000) to their recoverable amounts as follows (the
recoverable amounts were estimated using the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use):

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

An impairment loss of $2,635,000 (2022: $23,697,000) was
recognised on various items of property, plant and equipment
utilised in the Mainland China and Hong Kong SAR operations
reflecting the cessation of usage, where the recoverable
amounts of these items were minimal.

An impairment loss of $1,321,000 (2022: $25,584,000) was
recognised on abandoned property, plant and equipment
associated with the relocation of the Shenzhen operation
to a modern facility in Dongguan as part of manufacturing
innovation programme, where the recoverable amounts of
these items were minimal.

The Group’s Vitaland tuckshop business continued to be
impacted by COVID-19. Management has performed an
assessment of future performance of each tuckshop and
some of them continued to under-perform. Consequently,
an impairment loss was recognised in respect of right-of-use
assets of $448,000 (2022: $1,374,000) and other property,
plant and equipment of $237,000 (2022: $300,000). The
aggregate recoverable amounts of the affected tuckshops
subject to impairment amounted to $59,851,000 (2022:
$1,354,000), which was determined based on the value-in-use
after applying a discount rate of 10% (2022: 10%).

Duringthe year ended 31st March 2022, animpairment loss of
$1,916,000 was recognised on property, plant and equipment
in connection with Singapore operation. The recoverable
amount was determined based on value-in-use calculations.
No impairment were recorded on similar assets during the
year.

11 Y% - BERGRE (@)

(a) (&)
FARFBEBFUEREBREERENRENBF
#B)930007T (Z B =4 : 632,0007T) B#
HEEE R

RER BTWE - BE KRR EzIREE
4,641,000 T (ZZF==% : 52,871,000 7T) ET
Pl REAREEHE (TREESEEDRERES
HERAREREEMEF 2BSEMMLE)

(i) FEAEREBSINTHREXREANS
BEYE -  BMERZBEERSILLFERAMRE
BB 18 2,635000T (ZE ==
23,697,000 7T) » ZEEEMNAKE<EE
TR R -

(i) BRIBMERBERZ=BNRCKE (F
RERLEAHEN D) MER
HEERYE BERRENRERE
1,321,000t ( =& = = £ : 25,584,000
) ZEBRBENARESEIHTRE -

(iiiy AEEZHEMRBEBR/NEBEFEE
ZE209BRASHELE - EEEBCDFT
HEEINEH 2 RRKE  HPBoEF
BrE-BUE EHRIAEEFAEEE
(448,0007t (ZZE==% : 1,374,0007T) )
REBHEMYE  BEKFRME (237,000
T (ZZ =4 :3000007T)) 2 HEE
EiE o AREFEMIEIFEZ/NEINT
g @ 42 %8 £ 59,851,000 T (=& ==
1,354,0007t) © &R EAEEE 10%
(ZEBEZZF 1 10%) ZITREEE

(ivy BEZE-=—FE=ZA=+—-HLEE #®
BREHIMBEER2YE BMERZRERR
WEE1E 1,916,000 AT E £ FE TR
BEABENEEE - FRAMERENE
EFERE -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 11 Y% - BENRE (8

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FREEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of EHEEES E2EAREECRAFEI NN
underlying asset is as follows: T

2023 2022
—m—= —m——

—=<—= e

$'000 T3t $'000 F 7T

Interests in leasehold land held for own use, carried at depreciated cost, with
remaining lease term of:

FEEM2BE R (RITERASIRR) 28 THEHY -

- 50 years or more
6,471 6,489

-50FH UL

- between 10 and 50 years

. 157,336 ,
-10E50F 2 173,997

163,807 180,486

Other properties leased for own use, carried at depreciated cost

B R EE (R R AFIE) 112,504 158,830

Factory machinery and equipment, carried at depreciated cost

TR R (BT E RS 1,599
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment, carried at depreciated cost 165 215
£E - FMRRAERE RITERARTIER)

277,724 341,130
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 11 Y% - BENRE (8
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) by FHEEE @)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit HRERBER 2 AERE 2B IMUT -

or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
—m—= —m——

—=<—= e

$'000 T3t $'000 F 7T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

RINREES B2 ERAREEZITEER :

- Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use

N . 4,198
-EEEBRZEE L A ERER
- Other properties leased for own use 95 857
-HHErERzE MY '
- Factory machinery and equipment 647
- TiR#eE RR1E
- Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 61
-£EB - GRERAERE
100,763
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 6.298
HEBBEZFE (M 5() '
Expen_se rela?zmg to short-term leases 28251
BREHEEZRAX
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 3,268
FRREEEEHECZHY (KEEEE ZEHBEERN)
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
(note 5(d)) 13,368
et AHEE G2 ASBE N (M 5(d)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (note 5(d)) (17,729) (22.409)

2019 BikmSmAEEE TR (M5 5(d))
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group leases various warehouses, offices and factory and
office equipment for use in its operations. The leases included in
right-of-use assets typically run for an initial period of more than
one year to five years. Some leases include an option to renew the
lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational flexibility.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If the Group is
not reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the future
lease payments during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to these
future lease payments is summarised below:

Lease liabilities recognised
(discounted)

EEZZEEAE (BHFR)

11 Y% - BERGRE (@)

(b) EAEEE @

FEEARZERE BOAE  THEPLAER
BHEEEER - STAERAREEZ2HE—RA
SHEBE—FERF - BHHEETRENFH
TENEEEREBNEY BUETTZER
T ARENREEAEEATE2BRERE
H o UREBELEEEN - AREREERB AR S
AMERERESETRLERER - i AEBREE
RESETEERRE  NERHB 2 AREE
IRFEFHARERBZFTE - ZERKBEN
R B ERBBMRMT

Potential future lease payments
under extension options
not included in lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

HEHRETZRFAHESEZ

2023
———

— —

$'000 Tt

Warehouse - Hong Kong Operation

B - BB 28,268

BERRBEG (RTR)
2022 2023 2022
—E-_F == B F
$000 F 7t $'000 T $000 Tt
63,611 120,191 120,191

In addition, the Group is the registered owner of several plots of
leasehold land, in respect of which upfront lump sum payments were
made to acquire them.

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $52,294,000

(2022: $83,832,000). This amount primarily related to the capitalised
lease payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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B R MY =t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of
lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and 21, respectively.

The Group has adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-
19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2022, and has applied
the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions received by
the Group, with COVID-19-related rent concessions of $12,869,000
(2022:$17,095,000) being recognised in “Other income” accordingly.

(c) Property, plant and equipment leased out under
operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an operating
lease. The lease runs for an initial period of two years, with an option
to be early terminated by either participating party. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are receivable as follows:

11 Y% - BERGRE (@)

) FERAEEE @)
BHECReREBEENREEaB 3o
2 BIE SR MIEE 18(d) K 21 ©

(b

AEECREBE_E-__F=A=1+—BLFE
2 BERERPERA (EBUIERELER)D 5 1658
(BETAR) [R=B=—FANF=1H#%=2019%
MEEREEELER | WA TR LE
ARAEBWERZFEEEKRHESER » mM2019
TRFESHIEEHES ERM 12,869,000 T (==&
Z % :17,095,0007t) EHEER [ EAibUg A ] &

N
B

() RELEHEHELZUER BER

B
AEENEEBERHRANE - REHENS
REWF  AASESERRERLL - ZSAE
WiREERAES -

REBRBTARREEHERR 2 RITRE
ENRWT

Within one year

—%p

2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
$'000 Tt $’000 F T

3,134

(d) Thefair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2023 is
$63,300,000 (2022: $63,300,000) which has been estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties (2022: same basis of valuation adopted). The
valuation was carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, Roma
Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of the properties being valued.

d BEWMEZARE
REYER-_SE-_=F=ZA=+—H22REAL
63,300,000 7T ( =& = — % : 63,300,0007T) °
WS EABYERPTERZRIZAHN
MEEEETRH (Z2Z2F  EERE—#E
HE) - EDNHBILAZMTESBERIEE
RAGEST  HIMBEARBIEMESCE
B EftEYE2EREREEHEREHE
5@ °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(d) Thefair value of investment properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3 valuation
under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using the
direct comparison approach with reference to the market price of
comparable properties and adjusted for building quality and timing
of the reference transaction. The significant unobservable input
in the fair value measurement is the property-specific adjusting
rate, which ranged from 0.93 to 1.03 (2022: 0.96 to 1.05). The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the property-specific
adjusting rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment pledged against
bank loans
At the end of the reporting period, no items of property, plant and

equipment of the Group are pledged to secure bank loans or bank
facilities granted to the Group.

(f)  Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

As at 31st March 2023, no deposit was paid to acquire property,

plant and equipment (2022: $264,000). The remaining amount of the

consideration for the acquisition is included in capital commitments

(note 27(a)).
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11 Y% - BERGRE (@)

d REWRZDAE @

REFERBE(EBYBREER) 51358
AREFEIFMREZ=ZRAABRESERE
RfhE  BEQIAREFEDEZERNESE
MTEREMARE cTEEMREENRE

Do

-

it

B-MMAE: BEERE-R@ARE (D
R BARBEERBBERNERTE 2K
KERRE) STEZARE

- BIRMEE: ERF-REARE (AKX
REINF-RzUBEERARE) BXER
EREATHEERABBHEZAR
B TABEHABBRETERIEZH
ABE R

- ESREE  EREATTRERARE
HEZARME -

REWMECZ ARBENSETRBMEZ2TEFEA
BELMREAEE  UN2ERGZEFEERE
BEHBAZE - AREFEZERFTAEEGA
HUETIERMEREE > S F093E1.03(=F
ZZTH 1096F1.05) c AR{BEFEEBERIYE
PR E 7 BRIE @R o

() MIMITERER2ME BERZ
&

RERE  AEBERREATAYE  BERR

HEE  WERAEEER 2 RITERRRITE

EO

() BEYX BERREZITE

A—E_=F=A=1+—H #HEABENE -
BMERREMXZAR € (ZEZZF : 264,000
L) e BEREBZHT ST AEARKIE (M
27(a)) °
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

12 Intangible assets 12 EBHBE

Pollution
Brand name Customer list discharge right Total
e B BEFAE B #mst
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Cost:
R :

At 1st April 2021
7,583 10,958 1,521 20,062
R-E--5WMA—H

Exchange adjustments
[ AR

At 31st March 2022
g — 7,579 10,958 1,582 20,119
R-ZZE-_—_F=A=+—H

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:

R BERRERE -

At 1st April 2021
4,929 10,958 478 16,365
R-B--—FDMA—H

Exchange adjustments

B 5 AR

Impairment losses
e 2,303 - - 2,303
WEEE

Charge for the year

5 347 = 312 659

At 31st March 2022
R-E-_—_F=A=+—H ’

Net book value:

BRIETIFHE -

At 31st March 2022

N-—E-_—_HF=H=+—H - - 768 768
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

12 Intangible assets (Continued) 12 BREE (&)
Pollution
Brand name Customer list discharge right Total
m & 8 EFRE B a5t
$’000 Tt $’000 Tt $'000 Tt $’000 Tt
Cost:
RS -
At 1st April 2022
7,579 10,958 1,582 20,119
R-ZE=-—_FmMA—H
Exchange adjustments
N 158 - 117 41
[ 5 A% (117)
At 31st March 2023
7,737 10,958 1,465 20,160
R-EBE-_=F=A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:
AT RREER
At 1st April 2022
7,579 10,958 814 19,351
R-ZE-—FmMA—H
Exchange adjustments
N 158 - 60 98
B R (60)
Impairment losses
s e e ae - - 292 292
WEEE
Charge for the year
REEHEE
At 315t March 2023
7,737 10,958 1,046 19,741
n= =F=A=+—H
Net book value:
BRERME :
At 31st March 2023
- - 419 419
R-B-_=5=A=+—H
The amortisation charges and impairment losses of brand name and mEEBRESECHEERRBEBES 2
pollution discharge right are included in “other operating expenses” AGEERRZHMKEER]IRITHE
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of Al

profit or loss respectively.
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

13 Goodwill

13 H=E

2023 2022
—®&—= —E-——F

—_—— T

$'000 3T $'000 F T

Cost:
RS :

At 1st April
AEA—H

Exchange adjustments
(& AR

36,704

(19)

At 31st March
A=B=+—H

36,685

Accumulated impairment losses:

RFTRERBE -

At 1st April
RMA—H

Impairment losses

RERER

Exchange adjustments

BE 5 AR

18,352

18,323

10

At 31st March
R=B=+—H

36,685

Carrying amount:

BRMEE :

At 31st March
A=B=+—H

Impairment testing for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital of
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”).

As at 31st March 2022, a full impairment of the carrying amount of
goodwill and an impairment charge of $2,303,000 on brand name
and $1,916,000 on property, plant and equipment were recognised
to reduce the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to its
recoverable amount.

BEBHECRSEAENZEENR

79 2 (A Y B8 Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd. ([VIS]) 22 EBRAMELE ©

NZBE-ZF=ZA=+—H BIAHEREECD
ZHERE UARBET @mESH 23030007 Kk
W BENHRE19160007T BV HREEE
BN ZIRABEZEETRESEE -
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B R MY et
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
14 Subsidiaries 14 BT

TREEAEENBAR Z2HE - BREEEH
o BEZRDEHNEREBER -

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

LI 2 B R MEE 1d) PR R E 2 Z SIS
DF WEAEEZWBBRAGETE

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

186

Place of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ WEEESLE
establishment
and operation Particulars of held by the held by a
Name of company Fial A issued capital Company subsidiary Principal activities
AREHE AL REEME ERTRAHE ARARKE WELRRE IRER
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States of 100 shares - 100 Sale of beverages
America 100 &8 43 HERR
ZFZERE
Vitasoy North America Inc. Canada 1,000 shares 100 - Sale of beverages
nex 1,000 B 13 HERD
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture and sale
Beverage Company Limited (note (i) i AR of beverages (ceased
Y4 (X)) REFEBRAE () 80,000,000 7 operation since 15th
December 2021)
EEREERR
(B=B=-%+ZA
THARKLEE)
Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (note (ii)) The PRC RMB335,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and sale
Hfn (R%) BRAR (M5 (i) FE AR® of beverages
335,000,000 7t EERHERD
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (note (iii)) The PRC RMB200,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and sale
Hetbgh (Bhil) BIRAE) (HEE (i) H AR of beverages
200,000,000 70 FERHERR
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited (note (iv)) The PRC HK$219,461,176 - 100  Manufacture and sale
# (B8) BRAT (& (v) H B of beverages
219,461,176 & EERHERD
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (note (v)) The PRC RMB170,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale
#fn (R2) BRAF (V) HE ARE of beverages
170,000,000 7 EEREERD

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MIEATE (&)
Place of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ RS E
establishment
and operation Particulars of held by the held by a
Name of company RS, issued capital Company subsidiary Principal activities
ARER AR E R ERTRAHEE A0ERE  WEBLAARE IRER
% %
Vitasoy Company Limited (note (vi)) The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100 Sales/distribution
EMERAT (BIEE (vi) FE ARE of beverages/food
100,000,000 7t and headquarter
management service
(Mainland China)
HE /PR
RERAHERE
FRE% (FRERFH)
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (note (vii)) Australia V class shares: - 100  Manufacture and sale
(B (vii)) M A$8,925,000 of food and beverages
N class shares: EERBERRR
A$8,575,000 Bm
VER
8,925,000 27
NER :
8,575,000 7%
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau SAR MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
%10 (BF) BRA BEESRTHE  RFI% 100,000 7T beverages
AL
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong (Macau) Limitada Macau SAR MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
BFEER (2M) BRAR RABERTHE 9% 10,000 7T EmEE
Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong SAR 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of
B RHRBERAT BEBHTHE 300,000 i i tuck shops and
concessions
TEERNRIR
AN
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong SAR 2shares - 100 Provision of catering
BERERARAT BEABAITHE 2B A services
REERRH
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Products Company, Hong Kong SAR 2shares 100 - Property investment
Limited ERRAITHE 2BRAH MERE
EREREBRLF
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Limited Hong Kong SAR 1share 100 - Investment holding
Hetbgh (hE) ERERDF ERERTHE 1R REER
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MB2TE (&)
Place of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ RS E
establishment
and operation Particulars of held by the held by a
Name of company RS, issued capital Company subsidiary Principal activities
ARER RARER R ERTRAHEE A0ERE  WEBLAARE IRER
% %
Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong SAR 1share 100 - Investment holding
EtMRERRERAR BARATHE 1RR 5 REER
Vita International Holdings Limited Hong Kong SAR 2shares 100 - Investment holding
EMEREBERAR BARATHE 2RRA REER
Vitasoy International Investment Limited Hong Kong SAR 1share 100 - Investment holding
EPERRERRA R EBBAITHE 1R REER
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company Limited Hong Kong SAR 2shares 100 - Investment holding
o (Bl REBRAT ERRATHE 2RBA REER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100 Sales of beverages
St HK$20,257 HERR
Deferred share:
HK$7
ERR B
20,257 7T

BILRD - BB

Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
IR 10,0003 % REER

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (VIS”) Singapore 5$$79,800,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
(Tvis]) g 79,800,000 35 of soyarelated and
beverage products

EERHETHER

k&R

Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
Hmsg 2,500,000 %% e ES
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/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRB A » LUBHEETE)
14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in Mainland China and is to be operated up to 2049.

(i) Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Dongguan”) is a sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China and is to
be operated up to 2067.

(iii) Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China and is to
be operated up to 2049.

(iv) Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in Mainland China and is to be operated up to
2045.

(v) Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Wuhan”) is a wholly
foreign owned subsidiary established in Mainland China and is to be
operated up to 2064.

(vi) Vitasoy Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary
established in Mainland China and is to be operated up to 2070.

(vii)  On 13th February 2023, the Group acquired the remaining 49%
equity interest in Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”),
increasing the Group’s equity interest in VAP from 51% to 100% (see
note 28).

14

Mt

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BB 22 8] (#%)

YN (KH) RRECBERAT (HRYI4E
M) BRPBERMR L2 PIEESLE QT &
EEZE _TMAFL -

EH (RR) BRAR ([REE&MP]) HRH
BABEI 2PIEEEERR  KEHE_F
/\‘tiﬂi °

Mg (FhiL) BRAR (THLEMD]) BRH
BABEI 2PIEEEE LR KEHE_F
PAFILL °

s (LE) BRATDVBRPBEAMRK Y 225
BEWBLR  KEHME-_ZWHFIL -

#fm (RE) BRAT (TRELMH]) AR
ARSEY 2 2N ENEAT  GEHE-SAN
Fif o

HEMPERDRABRPEANMR L 2 2NEHRE D
A REME_TEZFEo

R-ZZ-Z=F-A+=H  KN&EB@UIE Vitasoy
Australia Products Pty. Ltd. ([VAP) 82T 49% I%
o EAREENAVAP ZRER51%IEINZE 100% (R
FfizE 28) ©
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MB2TE (&)

The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen TREYNEBEEBEERFERES ([FEERE
Vitasoy, Vitasoy Dongguan, Vitasoy Foshan and VAP, the subsidiaries =) 2AREEWB AR EMY - R4
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). 5~ FRILAEMII N VAP 2 &R o« TX 23 2B
The summarised financial information presented below represents ERBEIREHEM D T BT 258 -

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Dongguan Vitasoy Foshan VAP
YA REMI] AE )
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—EB-= —E--F ZBCZ= —E--F ZBCZ= —E--F CZEBCZZ —E-CF
$000F%  $000F7  $000FH  S000FE  $000FXT  $000FRT  $000FT  $000F i
(Note)
(HsE)
;‘é;ﬁﬁ;éggﬁtt 15% 15% 15% 1% 15% 1% - 49%
%%‘g“ets 106026 111581 170968 166214 116511 225802 217442 232830
;‘F‘;%“ggt BHEE 27,505 76885 1110752 1242772 354527 438245 252407 262447
%’ggfﬁ”ab”‘““ (6172 (53274)  (522340)  (608179)  (109231) (156011  (231469)  (149,624)
) =
S - S 6414 (5131 (0027) (24480 ©7) 677
%eg}ge“ 127359 135192 295236 349496 341780 483553 2372338 336877
Carrying amount of NC| 19,906 21,084 43261 51676 52,708 73476 164950
FERES  ERE ' ' ! ’ ' ' ; '
ﬂ*;f”“e - 171485 586,354 540,161 705,801 847,484 583,733 613,601
;;gg{g;?};gg;af 2080 (64033 (28335)  (39,635) 3,553 949%  (56367) 21348
I./] =R
e it e 2080 (6403  (28335) (39635 3553 9496 (55584 22083
f;%ﬁ%ﬁ??@;ﬁ;;ﬁﬁ;ﬁfk%) 313 (8,653) (4,526) (6,691) 1,047 1,545 (21,498) 11,168
%;'Fd}?fﬁggggggg - 7876 - ; 16,383 18166 5,250 6176

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities (56,776) 39,761 (14,594) (390,842) 124,386 135,066 (64,454) 38,848
m2E8 (A) /FEReRE

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
investing activities 58,806 2,669 (45,822) (9.412) (12,359) (11,151) (19,589) (43,516)
REEBHE/ (R Bene

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
_ financing activities - (53,684) 50,885 353,692 (123,674) (116,406) 68,369 9883
BEEY (FrA) /FEEeRE

Note: On 13th February 2023, the Group acquired the remaining 49% e R-ZZ-Z=F-_A+=0  XEBEWEVAPRT
equity interest in VAP. Details are set out in note 28. 49% BRFE o FHIFEMHIEE 28 ©
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
15 Interest in joint venture
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is accounted

for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements,
are as follows:

15 REEQATFZHED

REBRSE QA2 EE (ARARSERGS
PR RAARR) FBWT

Proportion of ownership interest

WERRRLE

Place of Group's

Form of incorporation effective
Name of business and business Particular of interest Held by the Heldbya Principal
joint venture structure SR AL issued capital AEBZ Company subsidiary activity
RENTREHE ERREKL EEiE ERITRAFE ERER  ADERE KEBAARE IRER

% % %

Vitasoy - URC, Inc. Incorporated The Republic of Registered 50 - 50 Sale of
MR the Philippines capital of PHP beverages
(“Philippines”) 1,764,000,000 (note)
FEEHLNE AR A HERR
([3E#E])  1,764,000000L% (HzE)

Note: Vitasoy-URC, Inc. (“VUR”) was established by the Company in
partnership with a major branded consumer food and beverage
company in the Philippines, the other investor to this joint venture,
for the manufacture and sale of the Group’s plant-based beverages in
the Philippines. VUR is mainly engaged in the sale of beverages.

VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is an
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available.

Summarised financial information of VUR is disclosed below:

?ﬂr

MizE : Vitasoy - URC, Inc. ([VUR]) HIZR A F]EE — R 3ES
EXTERBREHBENRERAE (AZAERAAZS
—ZBREE) EBHRY  LAFFEBEEERBER
SELEYMES BEZRM - VUREERBHRAM
%o

RIXEEHE—SEZESENT) A—HFLD
ﬁ%aﬁﬁ ﬂiﬁmi§$ﬁ1,-°

VURZHBERMBRFELT -
2023 2022

—E=F —E-F
$'000 Tt $000 F 7t

Gross amounts of VUR’s
VUR Z 4%

Loss from continuing operations

SEEE R

Total comprehensive income

EHREAEE

(42,544) (55,003)

(42,312) (55,003)

Annual Report 2022/2023 FEHRE | 191



‘@

192

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)
15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)

(@) Impairment

The carrying amount of interest in joint venture was fully impaired by
recognising an impairment charge of $42,800,000 after considering
the adverse impact of COVID-19 on future sales projections in the
year ended 31st March 2021.

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the performance of the
joint venture recovered, leading to an improvement in level of losses
incurred following the relaxation of quarantine restrictions by the
Philippines government. Nevertheless, considering the current
accumulated losses and uncertainty in evaluating market factors in
the calculation of the recoverable amount, management concluded
that no reversal of impairment was required.

(b) Unrecognised share of losses

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the Group injected further
capital of $22,253,000 into the joint venture. With an unrecognised
loss of $26,676,000 brought forward from prior years, the Group has
recognised a share of loss of $22,253,000 after the capital injection.

As at 31st March 2023, the Group has discontinued recognising its
share of losses of joint venture because its cumulative share of losses
in the joint venture has exceeded the aggregate of the investment
cost and shareholders’ loan less subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. The Group will not resume recognition of its share of any
future profits in the joint venture until its share of such profits equals
the cumulative share of losses not recognised in past years.

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of joint venture for the
year and cumulatively are $24,296,000 (2022: $26,676,000).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

15 REEQTZEZR (#)

(a) JRE
BHEZE--—F=ZA=Z=+—-HLEFE Rk
2019 B ESHHE A REETF N TRFER
BiREREE A 42,800,000  E QAT ZE
w2 IREEE 2 EURAE -

BE-_Z-_=F=A=1+—HILEE 6227
¥EBEOH  FEEHAREREZREIZEERKFE
BFNE - BEAL  ZEAERAERUR
FEARESERTATESRENTRENS B
BERABAFLRERD -

(b) KRERATLEE
BE-ZE-_=F=ZA=1+—HILEE » XEEH
S NTE—H3TE 22,253,000 7T c HRUEE
EAEEARTEREE 26,676,000 7T ANEBRE
BB O R FE(REE 22,253,000 7T ©

RIEZ=F=A=+—H FEESKRILER
HIMGAEQAAEE  RAERFEEE QAT
BECEBRERFEHBERERINBER R
EEENATE - EAEEFEEE QT ARR
EANENBAFERERZ BT hEEA » &
EEETEMERRZE EH o

FARBFZABAFEEELABESES
24,296,000 7T (ZEZZF : 26,676,0007t) °
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

16 Inventories 16 F&

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) HEMBMRRARPZEESRE:
financial position comprise:

2023 2022
—g== —E==fF

R

$'000 T3t $'000 F 7T

Raw materials
. 382,858 458,749
RArE

Finished goods
. 256,757 314,635
SURR M

639,615 773,384

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) EREZABRRAEBMIZFESHE
recognised as an expense and included in profit pai il I

or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= B _F
$’000 Tt $'000 F 7t

Carrying amounts of inventories sold
= 3,323,592 3,423,729
EEFEZREE

Write down of inventories
RN 4,259 27,450
WRFE

3,327,851 3,451,179
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

17 Trade and other receivables

17 BEUERRR E R

Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss allowance

RN BNER - HREREE

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments
HtnEWR - RERFENRIE

2022

—E-_F

$'000 F 7t

788,957 804,496
192,893 318,531
981,850 1,123,027

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and prepayments
expected to be recovered or charged as expense after more than one
year is $47,426,000 (2022: $41,006,000). All of the other trade and
other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other

receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is
as follows:

AEEEHRER—FEKRESINRARIZHE
W « e RFBIIER 47,426,0007T (=
FTZZHF 1 41,006,0007T) o AT H b FE W ER X
REMBKRZREEHA-FAKRESRER S —EH
ﬁ °

(a) BRERZDAT

RERHE  FUWRFREWEE (EEREREW
BRAKEMEREAN) B ZHHREHNKREE
BB IREBEDWNT

Within three months
=EAR

Three to six months
=ZXEA

Over six months

ANMEA K E

2022

—E- &

$'000 F 7t

777,056 780,538
8,115 17,835
3,786 6,123
788,957 804,496

Trade debtors and bills receivable are generally due within one to
three months from the date of billing. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable
are set out in note 26(a).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

YRR R EREE —BRREZEARET —2=
B A AR - AREBE BRI EERIFE TR
Hm o BEAKEEEBER K BEWRMR R EL
ZEEMELEZ2EERBZE—SHBRENKT
26(a) °
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

18 Cash and bank deposits

(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

18 RERIRITEM
(a) RERBITHERERE
2023 2022

—EBE-=H —ECF
$'000 Tt $000 F 7T

Cash at bank and in hand
RTEEREERS

Bank deposits maturing within three months when placed

RN =B B RN ZRITER

259,778 487,795

295,007 133,570

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement

FeaRERERACRERAESSEER

Bank deposits maturing after three months

BREBIB=EA 2 RTER

554,785 621,365

498

Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position

FREMBRRRAZRERBRITENR

555,292 621,863

At 31st March 2023, certain Renminbi bank balances totalling
$44,874,000 (2022: $152,870,000) were designated as a hedge
against the foreign currency risk on future purchases of raw materials.
The gain (2022: loss) on re-translation of these bank balances at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period was included
in other comprehensive income.

At 31st March 2023, cash and cash equivalents situated in Mainland
China amounted to $71,151,000 (2022: $159,264,000). Remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control.

RZIEZ=F=A=+—H8B ' EFTUARKES
BE2RITEFAE L 44874000 (=2 ==
152,870,0007t) #WIEEAELH F B EBERM
RZINERR - IZEHR A ZEREHBREZER
THEFEzZWRE (ZEZZF : BB 25t AHfb
Z2HEIKRE °

RIEZ=F=A=+—H " UA+TEAbZHE
SRRLEEEBEAAT71,151,000T (ZE=-=
F :159,264,0007T) - E€EHHEAMAEEST
MEREANEEH 2 RAIRRE -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to
cash generated from operations:

18 HMEFRITHEN (8)

(b) BRBIATER (BEB) ELE XK
RSBk :

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BRELANER (E1R)

Adjustments for:
AR

- Share of losses of joint venture

- BIESE LRGSR

- Depreciation of right-of-use assets

-EREEEZINE

- Depreciation of investment properties

-REMEZITE

- Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment

- Bt - MERRE2ITE

- Amortisation of intangible assets

-BIVEE 2 HE

- Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

- RURFA R AR 2 BIERE

- Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

-3 - BERREZRERBRE

- Impairment losses on goodwill

- BB ZRERE

- Impairment losses on brand name

- MR A2 RERE

- Write down of inventories

A

- Interest on bank loans

- RITERZFE

- Interest on lease liabilities

-HEREZFE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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Notes —E=fF B
B £ $'000 Ft $000 Tt

(235,922)

5(d) 100,763

5(d) 126

5(d) 429,626 458,069

5(d) 659

5(c) 11,867

5(c) 52,871

5(c) 18,323

5(c) 2,303

16(b) 27,450
5(a) 16,773

5(a) 6,298
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BRENRITER (8)
(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to (b) PBRBIBIER, (FE) EEEEE
cash generated from operations: (Continued) FIBHREZ2HER @ (&)

2023 2022
Notes —2-= —E-—F
=T $'000 F it $'000 F 7T

- Interest income from bank deposits

RTERZABIKA 4 (12.283) (5,553)

- Interest income from loan to joint venture

- AEATEHERZ RS KA 4 L
: Efg;té z:ﬁ;;\] éh%r;-;;gd payment expenses 5(b) T 13484
i gg;g%a?%%g%%%ggﬁ;gom 4 (12,869) (17,095)
: Eo;iuir%exchange gain 24,534 (13,400
Changes in working capital:

EEALRD

: ?;é:?;?//(i rltie;us)e) in inventories e (55.940)
MR RARRRRRS 95272 77772
RRRRALRSRRS X eroson
: E;e;gs{;@(%;cj;:\a{;ﬁéigu??%ie) retirement benefit liabilities 14,386 .
Cash generated from operations e 189 568

REXBRERE
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing
activities.

18 HMEFRITHEN (8)
() RMEITDELZE8EHR

TRHAVAEEREZTDELE 2BERZD  EF
BRERERFRSEE  BREFBFELEZEE
EERESREENIAARRRERESRNAKE 2
BRRERERANDEARETHZRERE -

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITER HEaE st
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Bf¥EE 20) (PFfFaE21)
$’000 Fit $'000 FIt $’000 Tt
At 1st April 2022
5 _sg e 489,829 187,757 677,586
" Changes from financing cash flows:
FERSREEE) :
Proceeds from new bank loans
= £ /e 525,121 - 525,121
IERITERBIE
ggé’?;gg e (459,764) - (459,764)
Capital element of lease rentals paid
NN N - 87,860 87,860
DARERS > BRI (87,8601 {87,860)
Interest element of lease rentals paid
BHEEAS 2RI HH - (5,589) (5,589)
gtg;;;pa'd (26,958) - (26,958)
ggiégjgg ;%; ;l gﬁancmg cash flows T _— (55,050)
" Exchange adjustments
é‘;%“ée el s A (30,500) (2,221) (32,721)
Other changes:
HAthsE) :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the period - 52,294 52,294
R B L HEE 2 HESBEIEM
COVID-19-related rent concessions (note 4)
s N - 12,869 12,869
2019 TR FEFRBRL TR (W 4) (12,865} (12:869)
Decrease in lease liabilities from lease modification
REAEET 2 EEAEED - (915) (915)
%”;g;??;g‘ggf (a) 26,958 5,589 32,547
At 31st March 2023 524,686 136,186 660,872

R-B-=%=A=+—H

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BRENRITER (8)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) RMETHELEZEEYE @

activities (Continued)

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total

IRITER HEAE et

(Note 20) (Note 21)

(Ff#5E 20) (FfEE21)

$000 F 7t $000 ¥t $000 Tt

'ggésé’g’ﬂ'ég . 130,306 205,435 335,741
Changes from financing cash flows:
BMERSRELE :
Proceeds from new bank loans
$FIRIRIT R B R R - B
Repayment of bank loans _
BRI (133,742) (133,742)
Capital element of lease rentals paid _
EAEEES 2 EAHH (84,880) (84,880)
Interest element of lease rentals paid _
EAEERS 2 HS 5 (6,298) (6,298)
I:fﬁ?{%fé f)ald (16,773) - (16,773)
Total changes from financing cash flows
RIS 7B 334,059 (91,178) 242,881
Eé(g\%née adjustments 8,691 983 9,674
Other changes:
Hith& &) :

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases
during the period - 83,832 83,832
HARBF L HEE 2 HESEEM

COVID-19-related rent concessions (note 4)

2019 BRBEFABASER (HiE4) - W7z (17,095)
;D’Eeér;;;%;%gazs*eﬁlgg%?% f/i?m lease modification _ (518) (518)
E;’é’;;%‘ii}?@ g(tae)f(a» 7R 6,298 23071
’,?;é{gft:“":a‘éhzz,?;_ = 489,829 187,757 677,586
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

18 RERIMITHEM (&

(d HERSRHAE

=

2023
—m— =

—_———

$'000 Tt

Within operating cash flows
KRERERERN

Within financing cash flows

BHERETRER

BREEFAGERERERIHEREUATE

2022
—E_F
$'000 F 7t

45,966

93,449

44,887

91,178

139,415

These amounts relate to the following:

136,065

ZEFAEL T IE B AER

2023
—m—

—_——

$'000 Tt

Lease rentals paid

ENEEES

139,415

19 Trade and other payables

136,065

19 BARMREMENSR

2023
—EB=HF
$'000 it

Current liabilities:
TEIBE -

Trade creditors and bills payable

AR K BN RE

Accrued expenses and other payables

FEETE R R HAEARK

Receipts in advance from customers

HEWEFRIE

2022
—E-F
$'000 F 7t

885,593

1,013,969

63,830

995,042

1,296,969

140,512

1,963,392

Non-current liabilities:

FRBEE -

Accrued expenses

FEsTE& M

2,432,523

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

19 Trade and other payables (Continued) 19 EAERFREMESRE (8
Al of the trade and other payables included in current liabilities are AEBEHRTTARBE B 2B RMAIRA R EAb
expected to be settled within one year, except for customer deposits EAFTER—FREER » 226870007 (=&
amounting to $22,687,000 (2022: $24,927,000) which are expected T 124927,0007T) 2EFRE BIFEEANE
to be settled after more than one year. B—FEEE-
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RERBE @ EIIRARENEZBIZEEHH 2R
creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows: i U
2023 2022
—E2== —ECCF
$'000 F it $'000 F 7t
Within three months
=EA R 878,985 989,648
Three to six months
=z ~ES 5,577 3,329
Over six months
~MEB UL E 1,031 2,065
885,593 995,042
The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from the AEEz-BRARBRAEREAMET —ZM
invoice date. @A -
Movements in receipts in advance from customers FEREFRIEZEE

2023 2022
== —E_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

Balance at 1st April

RNIME — B > 484 140,512 214,616
N mA BN
F{é(%\%\g adjustments (10,327) 7 466

Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of recognising
revenue during the year that was included in the receipts in advance from
customers at the beginning of the period

HFEAREZWA (EFABANZEREFRER) BHRAREFFRERD

(129,107) (219,066)

Increase in receipts in advance from customers as a result of receiving forward
sales deposits during the year 3,089,432 3,531,339
EERWREBGRHSHER S EHFERE FFIEE M

Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of recognising
revenue during the year that was included in the forward sales deposits
received during the year

HFENBERWA (BT AFRAREZERHEERERN) BEHFEWEFHERD

(3,026,680) (3,393,843)

Balance at 31st March

R=B=1+—HZ2#&8R 140,512
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

20 Bankloans

At 31st March 2023, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

20 SRITER

RIEZ=F=A=+—8  RITEFERTH
HAPRIEE -

Within one year or on demand

—FRFEEER

After one year but within two years

—FREMFRA

2023 2022
—E-= —EC-_F
$’000 Tt $000 F 7T

409,633 489,829
115,053 -
524,686 489,829

As of the end of the reporting period, no bank loans were secured by
charges over property, plant and equipment (note 11(e)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to compliance
with certain financial covenants, as are commonly found in borrowing
arrangements with financial institutions. The Group did not comply
with certain financial covenants as required in the banking facilities
agreements with certain banks for the outstanding loan amounts of
approximately $201,213,000 as at 31st March 2023 (31st March
2022: Nil), which are presented as current liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2023.

On 22nd May 2023 and 25th May 2023, the Group obtained waivers
from banks in relation to their covenant requirements for the

outstanding bank loans of approximately $201,213,000.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in note 26(b).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

RE®RH - BERTERUDE - BERREE
REFER (HEE11(e)

AEEETRITEEREETE THKEE - D
BT IRERERCERRAE - R
—=H=ZA=1+—H8 AEBUEBSFEE TR
TR HBRTEEHBMRENE T2 E -
AEEEREFL201,2130007T (=ZF==

=A=+—8 ' 8) ERFEE-Z_=F=
A=+—AZGZeMBRRARFPIEREEE -

A E_=FERA-+-HERZE=-_=FFA
“—+EHB AEEESZERITHRAERELAESR
SRITE 4 201,213,000 TTHYZZEFEESR o

FEAEEEERDESER ZE - SHBER
st 26(b) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

21 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of

the Group’s lease liabilities:

Within one year
—FR

After one year but within two years

—FREMFR

After two years but within five years

MERERFR

After five years

hF#

Less: Total future interest expenses

W RRFEEREE

Present value of lease liabilities
HEaEzRE

2023
—m——

—_——

Present

value of the
minimum lease
payments
REHEE
RRzRE
$'000 Tt

84,665

34,202

9,776

7,543

51,521

136,186

21 HE&AE

TREJAEEZHEEEZHRTEHOHR ¢

2022
—EBE - _—F
Present

Total value of the Total
CELM  minimum lease lease
payments payments payments
S =EEE HEMA
pb L] FRZBRE #azE
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t $’000 F 7T
86,108 96,901 98,293
36,176 62,499 65,181
11,088 21,058 22,739
19,352 7,299 19,248
66,616 90,856 107,168
152,724 187,757 205,461
(16,538) (17,704)
136,186 187,757
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

22 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and outside
Hong Kong.

(a)
(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan,
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff Provident Fund,
which is available for all eligible staff employed by the Group
in Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR before 1st August 2000.
The plan is funded by contributions from employees and the
Group, both of which contribute sums representing 5% - 7.5%
of their basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited to
members’ accounts in accordance with the rules of the plan.
The plan is administered by trustees with the assets held
separately fromthose of the Group. Theemployees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s contributions after ten completed
membership years, or at an increasing scale of between 50%
to 90% after completion of five to nine membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong SAR not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent
corporate trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the
MPF scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are
members of the central pension scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of employees’ remuneration to the central
pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation for
the Group with respect to the central pension scheme is the
associated required contribution under the central pension
scheme. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

22 {EERKEF

FEEEEBRBBUIMER YRS NS ER
EHRRRRAERFRAGTE -

(a)
(i)

(i)

SREMKRKTE
FEBBAER-ZEZZF/N\A—-BZH
EERBFIITHENRFIFRIITHREZ
ZAEESERETIRI —BRAEHRR
RET 8l (EDEREEERATRER
BE) ZETEzETRERERASEEHZ
R BHERSEBEH Z5%E7.5%
RGBT B 2 R BATEIKE
ZIRF o ZATEIXHAEEATRE  fFE
ETEAEEcEEDFERE - £2 85T
EmtFR BEUEZE2IEEM
MBEAEELZNFUZAZEBEMRK
B AIR 50% Z 518 E 90% ©

ZERAEBE MY ES IR EMRFEKRST
EoEBENITHEET » HERBES
CREIMEAB SRRSO 2 mAEE z =
FIMEAESE ([RFEELAESETE]) -
BEEAELE A —EREHRIEBIRET
2 ABEEERETATE - RIBEWEIM
PEEHE AEEREESBARES
BEWA (EBEKWAZE A LR A30000
TL) Z 5% Est B o EEEIME A S
Bl 2 HERENEFERE -

REIRMEHE QR 2 EBEHI R EBAR
N2 HPREBREHEZRE - ARERR
BEME 2B TEDLLEFRBRASE
HH o BEANREHES - ARERPRE
KEFEMARITZE-—SEERAFTRR
REFTEIEHPIE 2 HB MK - BT &I
T2 HARREERE -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

(iii)  For employees in Australia, contributions made by the
Group to a registered superannuation fund for its employees
increased from 10.0% to 10.5% of the employees’ salaries
since 1st July 2022 (2022: from 9.5% to 10.0% of the
employees’ salaries since 1st July 2021). The assets of the
scheme are held separately by an independently administered
fund. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans

At 31st March 2023, the Group recognised employee retirement
benefit liabilities in respect of the following employee retirement
benefits:

22 {EERKEFR (@)

(a) REMHFERMNKETE @)

(i) BMNESHE AEEE-EAHESH
LOHMEKES I HEE-S-—&F+t
A—HREREEH® 2 100%EE 10.5%
(B @B —FtA—HB%®
BEFE 2 95%BE 100%) - SHEEE
HMBYEEsESSBEE - XA
ZLERENRS BRI o

(b) FREEFEIKETE

R-—BE-=H=F=+-—0 ~AEERTIES

RAENEREERAENAS

Employee retirement benefit liabilities

BERMKENEE

- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(i))

- RARE (BRE22(c)(i)

- long service payments (note 22(d))

- REIRIE S (FfizE22(d))

2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-CF
$'000 Tt $000 ¥t

244
5,978
6,222

(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR, who
have completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined
the Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement gratuities
upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the employee’s last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (‘the Plan”), was
established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan is administered by
an independent corporate trustee, with assets held separately from
those of the Group. The Plan is funded by contributions from the
Groupinaccordancewithanindependentactuary’srecommendation.

(c)

RBKE

REBEEBETHRERRMSTHE 2
EERBFEEI -REEZKREMRENEE
BHZAMAAREE A RERRKAFRITE
HERAE - SR TEEKERAAAFRBBEF

REBBRARE R —IREBRERFIRMAGE
- HNEREEERARRERNGE ([ZEh
2 - ZETEHBEEEEAER  HEEH
REBZEEDRER - ZetEBHARERRER
MR ZEZRERER o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March 2023
and was prepared by independent professionally qualified actuaries
at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit method.
The valuation indicates that over 93% (2022: 99%) of the Group's
obligation under this defined benefit retirement plan is covered by
the plan assets held by the trustee.

(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

22 (EERIKEF @)

() EBKE @

SHE B EEGENR-E=-=F=8
S+ FHEREN B S A EEBE
BIES BN EE AT - FRGEEBRAEER
BEREEFRING B ABT 2 EETETRB
93% (ZB==F : 99%) ZETABEZHEE
EEARFE o

(i) PESYBRRRERZESHOT -

Present value of wholly funded obligations

EHEBEEZRE

Fair value of plan assets

SEBEEZARE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFEE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
$’000 Tt $'000 F 7T

57,508 60,338
(53,725) (60,094)
3,783 244

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members and future
contributions to the plan will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to pay
$1,697,000 in contributions to defined benefit retirement plan
during the year ending 31st March 2024.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

FEH b e B EHNER —FRIEE - A
HRTEREEEZEZEREINR AR 2 E
HETERTFEIRBHERBEERR AR ZEE
ME @ BASLRBEERRTZEARNESZ2
SHETHBTTATT AEERPREZE=Z
—HE=A=1+—-ALFERRERAENRZ
S AHEFR 1,697,000 7T °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(ii) Plan assets consist of the following:

22 (EERIKEF @)

() RBHKE @)
(i) FEEERETIEE:

2023 2022
—E-= —EC-_—F
$'000 Tt $'000 ¥t
Plan assets with quoted price in active market
RiEEMISHREZTEEE
Equities
S
- Financial
10,778
- B
- Consumer discretionary
REDTHES = 6,907
- EMNEEER
- Industrials
_T 4,155
- Consumer staples
R EDSIED =] 2,893
- BEHER
- Other
18,841
- Hith
43,574
Bonds
- Corporate bonds
» 7,834
- NAEfER
- Government-related bonds
» 7,794
- BFHEEES
15,628
Cash, current assets and current liabilities 892
e RBEERRBEME
Total I
otal quoted plan assets 60,094

CSREFHEERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(iii)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

22 (EERIKEF @)

() EBKE @
(i) REBANETZHEZEBWNT :

2023 2022
—m—= —m——

—=<—= e

$'000 T3t $'000 F 7T

At 1st April
REUA—H

Remeasurement:

EEE

- Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions

60,338 70,496

P, . N 16
- BAOSGTHRER N E I 2 B EE B
- Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial and experience assumptions (3763)
- BB RAEREBR B M EE RS ’
Benefits paid by the Plan
oo _ 9,725
it BIE (R e
Current service cost
X 2,498
BERB A
Interest cost
X 816
FE A
At 31st March
o 60,338
M=B=+—H

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligationis 5
years (2022: 7 years).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(iv)  Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

22 (EERIKEF @)

() EBKE @

(iv) FEEEZLAAEEBHUT :

2023
—m—

—_———

$'000 Tt

At 1st April
RUA—H

Contributions paid to the Plan
EERE (At

Benefits paid by the Plan
ZEtEESEF

Administrative expenses paid from plan assets

MBI EEX N ZITREN

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

FFEIEERR - TEERMSWRA

Interest income

FEWA

60,094

3,000

(5,919)

(98)

(4,613)

1,261

At 31st March
A=B=+—H

53,725

2022
—EC-_—F
$000 Ft

69,696

3,345

(9,725)

(98)

(3,949)

825

60,094
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 {EERAKEF &
(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) () EBKE @
(v)  Net expense recognised in the consolidated statement of (v) REtBEZERHEMEERERERZEAX
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows: FEWT
2023 2022
—g== —E-F
$'000 F it $'000 F 7t
%“,ggé‘ggge Gos 2,183 2,498

Administrative expenses paid from plan assets 98 98

M BIEEX N ZITHER

Net interest on net defined benefit liability

REBRAEBEFRFFE (9)

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss

B TR 2 105 2,587
Qggﬁég gamne (3,747)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 3949
sSEIEERR - AEEFEWRA ’
Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 202
REMEEWNRER 2L
Total defined benefit expense 2789
RERFAEBAX :
The current service cost and the net interest on net defined benefit AERANEBEFHECREREXARFINEER
liability are recognised in the following line items in the consolidated FEBRRPETIISERR
statement of profit or loss:
2022
—EC-_F
$000 Tt
Cost of sales
THER A 564
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 822
Administrative expenses 822
THER
Other operating expenses 379
Hitig= B
2,587
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 EERIKREF (@)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) (c) EHKE @

(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are (vi) BERBEBRERSBEIFTOT :
as follows:

Discount rate

iR %

Future salary increases

R 1R

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in the
significant actuarial assumptions:

2023
—m——

—_———

Increase in Decrease in
A Tk
0.5% 0.5%
$’000 Tt $'000 Tt

Discount rate

RS

(1,341) 1,399

Future salary increases

R & B8

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

4.0% per annum

2022
B _F

3.0% 2.1%

3.0% per annum

BF4.0% BF3.0%

UT 2B ERNEEEEABERR0.5%
gmEA (T :

1,474 (1,425)

2022
—E-F

Increase in Decrease in
EF T Bk

0.5% 0.5%
$'000 F it $000 F 7T
(1,978) 2,080
2,148 (2,062)

LSRR MU BREERR 2B 2 E B
BEEBRAEE  ARIBEZBEEMRZHE
ZEERE -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(d) Longservice payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not
set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

The Government of the Hong Kong SAR gazetted the Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) in
June 2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’ mandatory contributions under the MPF Scheme
to offset severance payment and long service payment (“LSP”) (the
“offsetting arrangement”).

The Amendment Ordinance has prospective effect from a date
to be announced by the Government. In particular, (i) employers
may continue to use the accrued benefits derived from their MPF
contributions (irrespective of the contributions made before, on or
after the transition date, and irrespective of mandatory or voluntary
contributions) to offset employees’ pre-transition portion of LSP; (ii)
the pre-transition portion of LSP due to employees will be calculated
on the basis of the employee’s final month’s salary immediately
preceding the transition date and the years of service as at the
transition date. Currently, the Group does not have any separate
funding arrangement in place to meet its long service payment
obligation. The Government is expected to introduce a subsidy
scheme to assist employers after the abolition of the reduction.

As the amount of offsettable accrued benefits under the MPF
Scheme is expected to decrease once the abolition of the offsetting
arrangement takes effect, the expected reduction in the related
negative benefitsinthe future has been attributed to eachemployee’s
past and current service periods. This leads to an adjustment for the
past service cost of $15,530,000 and a recognition of the current
service cost of $728,000 in the year of enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

22 (EERIKEF @)

(d REEBRH

RETE(RBEED)  AEEEEETHERTH
IHEARESAEERBELLF 2RBRERFERK
EXN—FBIFR - MAXNZEBRTEER
BIFEFERBBFEME - LHRAEERAK
SETRBRAEEEHRARZ BT ER - A%
B3I AR FEBEMEEARETEMRGEERE
FEzES -

BEREBHTHRERAR-ZE-_F~AHE
(2022 FEE MR BUES) (KR HE) (1BRT)
1RB) ([ZAERTIRBI]) - BUBEREEREEE
EETEMFHEBIMEAMES 2B ES  LUE
HEREBERRPBRBE ([EhRH]) -

ZIETRPIBEBRF A MEBREN - AEME -
(VEETHERHEBBESHNR (THESFAH
ZAl - BRRZRATEZERR - IR mEsI s
BEMER) EE 2R RS - UIKHESSE
FEMD 2 REBRBE  ((EFEEZRBR
BeEHMRI S RESEREET R BARE—
BAFERESH 2ERFHFAE - Bal - A&
B3 AR B N BB T BB T RIEIBRH £
I o FRTBUS A REUE BB R R i —IH R
SRR EERMEY -

MBUEEP R AR MBS EIT 2 KR
SHRANESEARSERD - Bt RREEAHE
NEMBRLERARSEEBERBAERF
B mEBHEZRETRIBEMEFARBHE
AR % M < 15,530,000 7T » I 52 & 8 AR 75 B A
728,000 7T °©
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(d) Longservice payments (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March 2023, by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method.

(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position is the present value of unfunded obligations
and its movement are as follows:

22 (EERIKEF @)

(d REBR%E @
REBRBETIN-_2-=F=A=+t—-HHAER
B ZBYERSERBEMRABTELREE
RETREME -

() RESUBRRREAZSHEABEYE
E2RE  HEBHAOT :

2023 2022
—m—= —m——

—=<—= e

$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

At 1st April
REUA—H

Remeasurement:

EEE

- Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial
and experience assumptions

- BB R ERBRAB A ZBE RS

Benefits paid by the Group
AEECFEF

Current service cost

BAERBRA

Past service cost - scheme amendments

BIERBERA - FHEUER

Interest cost

RB B

5,978 6,661

(46) (837)

(1,249) (1,076)

1,171

59

At 31st March
R=B=+—H

5,978

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practical to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the
retirement benefit payable will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions.

A E S ER D NEE - FRBME - A
HRENRABATERFETIRBRREER
RABRZEHME - HHLHEERK T @A
NS AT 2 SRR BRI T AT ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(d) Longservice payments (Continued)

(ii) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are

as follows:

22 (EERIKEF @)

(d)
(ii

REBHE @
EAREBRRRBBHEINUWT

2022
B _—F

Discount rate

iR %

Future salary increases

RIS & 1R

3.0% 2.1%

4.0% per annum 3.0% per annum

BF4.0% HF 3.0%

The below analysis shows how the long service payment obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in the

significant actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate

ke

Future salary increases

RIS =B R

2023
—m—

—_——

Increase in
E#
0.5%
$'000F

(1,163)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial

assumptions.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

UTaMBRREBRBEEFREABERR

Decrease in

$’000 F7T

05%EBmMLEH  (TK) :

2022
—E-_F

Increase in Decrease in

T 7 Tk
0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
$'000 T 7T $000 T 7t

1,264 (161) 174
(vip)) 165 (181)

LR U BRRBERR 2B 2B
BEEEBARAEE  ARIEZBEEMRZHE
ZEHERR -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEN  UBETE)
23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(a) Share option scheme

The Company adopted share option schemes on 4th September 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and 28th August 2012 (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme and the 2012 Share Option Scheme were terminated
on 28th August 2012 and 27th August 2022 respectively. At the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30th August 2022,
ordinary resolutions were passed for the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2022 Share Option Scheme”). As at 31st March
2023, there were no outstanding options to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme. Subject to their respective exercisable
periods, all outstanding options granted under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme will still be valid and exercisable after the expiration
of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31st March 2023, no options were granted under the 2022
Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors of
the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one share in the Company.

23 LRBHBNRERZXS

(a) MBARMESHE

$®ﬂﬁzggiﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ%
(=22 -FRREFE]) RRZF-ZFN
AZ+N\BRMBRESSE ([= i—_iﬂﬁﬂﬁ
EErEll) - Bt - AR T2 EBSRRERNBEFE
REEZEE (@%ﬁ’ilbﬁ'ﬂfﬂ"jz§$)
EMNBRELIABALAEER  — ST °FB
REFER-—Z-—_FBRESEIFIECRZ
E-ZHFNAZFTNBR=ZZZZFNA=+L
BRI -REZBZZHENAZ+THETZEALH
RRBFERS L BBT BERNHERETS
(=2 FRBRESE]) 2BBRER - R

—EC=FZRAE=T—H BERB-ZEZCF
BRESTERTEMRTENBRE - REHES
BITEHR - IERBE-Z-—FRRESER
2 RITEBRER -2 - FRRETEHIR

EmERDABRE A FITE

R-ZZBZ=5=A=+—-0 BERE-T-
FRRES SR B EMBRE -

BREZTEERAQXDESEE  AUTZR

BE (RONREEH (EALEREHER)
B FTeES 2 W E 5 R (i) BRI RBERE A

IR A& % B EB R SRS 2 FIIWTHE -

BREZITERTES E&ET*&EIHH#_“I'2+¢°
BEHBEREZEBAGAEREIB-RAR
% o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URBANRERZ2RKS (8)
(Continued)

(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) EBRESE @

(i)  The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised (i REIR B 2 K Em R RITEEIRRE Z R
share options at the end of the reporting period are as follows, RIGHENT  FrEBRESDURGDZEY
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares: RUEEE -

2023 2022
“BC=E “E-CE
Contractual life
of options Exercise Remaining Number of Remaining Number of
Date of grant Exercise period BiRE ([ contractual life GO contractual life options
RHAS T ANES DUl HRANEN  BREZHE Wl (]
$TT '000 FH& '000 &
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to £ 30/8/2022 10years F 6.400 5months A 706
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to Z 8/9/2023 10years F 9.370 5months A 1year & 1,704
10/9/2014 10/9/2015to £ 9/9/2024 10years F 10.080 1yearf 2years 1,792
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to £ 25/6/2025 10years F 13.600 2 years JyearsF 18
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to Z 13/9/2025 10years F 13.600 2 years Jyears F 1,588
24/6/2016 24/6/2017 to & 23/6/2026 10years & 14792 3JyearsF 4yearsE 208
6/9/2016 6/9/2017 to & 5/9/2026 10years & 14792 3JyearsF 4yearsE 1,420
26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to & 25/6/2027 10years & 16.296 dyears§ Syears 1,548
19/6/2018 19/6/2019t0 £ 18/6/2028 10years & 25.100 5 years £ 6yearsE 1,648
28/1/2019 28/1/2020to £ 27/1/2029 10years F 30.350 6 years 7yearsE 320
21/6/2019 21/6/2020to £ 20/6/2029 10years F 44810 6 years 7yearsE 1,222
22/6/2020 22/6/2021 to £ 21/6/2030 10years F 30.200 A 8years 1,684
24/8/2021 18/6/2022 to £ 23/8/2031 10years F 19.500 8 years 9years 2,526
4/7/2022 4/7/2023t0 £ 3/7/2032 10years F 14.140 9 years - -
16,384
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URBANRERZ2RKS (8)
(Continued)
(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) IBRHERTE (@)
(i) (Continued) (i) (%)
Except for the options granted on 28th January 2019 which will be BMRZEBE—NE—AZ+N \BELZEREER
50% vested after the first anniversary from the date of grant and BEHBHETEEBFRESORREB N éﬁtﬂ H
50% vested after the second anniversary from the date of grant and R BAFERESO% B URA T —F
the options granted on 24th August 2021 which are subject to a NAZ+HAREZEBREER _T__F<A
vesting scale in tranches of 25% each per annum starting from 18th TNBREFTUEFE25% 2tb R MEE » W=
June 2022 and are fully vested on 18th June 2025, all the options ERFABTNBEEEBI > FAIEAFITE
are exercisable progressively and the maximum percentage of the ZEIREHB TIELSEN > MESEERTEER
options which may be exercised is determined in stages as follows: EZAEDEE ERAT -
Percentage of
options granted
LEREREZEDL
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant 25%

R AR —BERAR

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

R A BT MBERAR

another % 25%

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

FH AR = BFRER

another 5 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

Kb B BF AR

another 5 25%

During the year, 706,000 options (2022: 2,116,000 options) were FR > 706,00017IE (ZFE=-2F : 2,116,000
exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, and 10,000 options DIERE) RE-_ ST _FERETICETE
(2022: 706,000 options) were exercised under the 2012 Share K 10,0007 R E (ZFE=Z=F : 706,00017 &
Option Scheme. BRRE) RIBE-ZZE - —FRREEICETE -
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(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 LIRMRABARERZRS (&)
(Continued)

(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) EBRESE @

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) BREZHE RNEFHTEBSDT :

options are as follows:

2023 2022
—Egq-= —E_F

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
NERIGTERE BRECHE iR EeEd BIREHE
$T '000 T k% $T '000 F A%

Outstanding at 1st April
R 19.265 16,384 18.130 17,448
R A — B EARITE

Exercised during the year

RERTE (716) 8.712 (2,822)

Granted during the year

3,428 19.500 2,704
RERFE L

Forfeited on termination of employment of
eligible participants or lapsed during the

30.482 (946)
year
& E%SE & B A F R U &
Outstanding at 31st March
o — N2 e g 19.265 16,384
R=ZBA=+—HERTHE
Exercisable at 31st March
o = 11,555
R=A=+—Bu{T#
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share BITFEZERERFRZITER B2 MELIIR
options exercised during the year was $11.743 (2022: $20.380). BH 11743 (ZE==F 1 20.3807T) °
The number of options granted during the year divided by the FRREZERESBRUFEANSZITRMD 20N
weighted average number of issued shares for the year was 0.32% FEFHEB032% (ZFE-ZF : 0.25%) °

(2022: 0.25%).
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(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)  Share option scheme (Continued)

(iii)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

Fair values of share options and assumptions:

23 LIRBHANRER XS (8)

(a) MERESTE W

(i) BREZDAERRR
REBURHBRERES2RE2ZARE TI
SECRHEBREZQAAENE - CRHUBRE
ST ARBUZEXMEEXTE - BREZ
SHNFHREZERN 2 —EBAZH - BRRST
THEZEHEFASEAMERN 2R -

BREZAARBERRR :

Date of grant
RERH

9/9/2013  10/9/2014  26/6/2015  14/9/2015  24/6/2016  6/9/2016  26/6/2017  19/6/2018  28/4/2019  21/6/2019  22/6/2020  24/8/2021  4/7/2022
Fair value at measurement date _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - -
N 2247 20821 $3038m  S2248m  S2795m  $36%9:m  $33W:m 9L §130m  $607m $7651m 5083w 44907
RTERBZARE
Share price _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -
b 999507 999207 $136007  $11840;m  $13700; 152207 $160807m  $25.1007 9303507 9387507 $30200m  $19.460%  $13500%
H
Exercise price _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - -
- $93707c  $100807  $136007  $136007  $147927  $147927  $162967m  $25.400%  $30350T  $44810%  $30200%  $195007  $14.1407
H
Expected volatility
o 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% % 2% 25% 25% 2% 29% 30%
RHRiE
R OyersE  fyeast  Oyeask  OyeasE  Opeask OyeasE Oyt OyeasE  yeasE Oyeask Oyt peas WyearsE

. ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears ears

EHEREYENE ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ y ¥ ¥ ¥ Y
Expected dividends

40% 35% 30% 30% 25% 25% 25% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 15%
LS
Risk-free interest rate

2400% 1940% 1750% 1730% 1050% 0.950% 1.240% 2.230% 1850% 1490% 0.570% 1030% 2770%

BERTE

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There was no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

ARIERELRBEE - YREQFAAITEER
FUARFOR MR 2 A FEH R T ULAZ - RHIRE
BEELREEE TEBABRRZEBHAHLIR
BZfAFELEEREE -

BREERBRBEAMRE - LIRFAETE
gk zonE (REEHAEH BREERZ
B o BB RAEIWEM A D ISR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

Share award scheme

(b)

On 22nd March 2021, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) under which the Company may, at
its discretion, select any eligible participant to participate in the
Share Award Scheme as an award holder, and such award holder
may be granted an award of restricted shares, performance shares,
restricted share units or performance share units. The Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years from 1st

July 2021 unless terminated earlier by the Board.

The terms and conditions of the share awards granted during the
period are as follows, whereby all awards are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

23 LIRBHANRER XS (8)

(b) BRipZRENETE
R-EBEZ—F=AZ+=H XAFRCEH—E
RDEERETE > B NATJIRERIEE - &8
BEENEERSHEURBEEANEHSER
DEREFE MEERBFEATERTIZRS
BB RERD  ZREBOEBEMIRBRMDE
NZEERE - R REFtER—FE-_—F+A—H
BEN BRHATF (EHRESSRALLER
Gh) o

RAERR N 2 RBRG 2 RRRARET - B
BREIURMD 2 BNRBES

Number of shares awarded

RERAHA
Fair Asat Asat
value per 1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
award 2021 during during during 2022
Date of grant Vesting period Note BHh%EHe RIZ=-F the year the year theyear RZBZZf
RiHAH GEH Hizt M MA-B  RERRE RERBE  REREN ZA=T-A
$7T '000 F % '000 F A& '000 A& '000 F A& '000 T
24/8/2021 24/8/2021 to £ 18/6/2025 (i) 18.220 - 748 - (49) 699
20/12/2021 20/12/2021to £ 20/12/2023 (ii) 16.010 - 188 - - 188
1/2/2022 1/2/2022t0 £ 18/6/2025 (i) 14.460 - 225 - - 225
- 1,161 - (49) 1,112
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(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URBANRERZ2RKS (8)
(Continued)
(b) Share award scheme (Continued) (b) MKfpHRENFHE (&)
Number of shares awarded
RERAZHE
Fair Asat Asat
value per 1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
award 2022 during during during 2023
Date of grant Vesting period Note — B3%Ez R-F-Z theyear the year theyear [t iy
REAS BB [if3 DR mA—H REREE REARE REARY B
$7T 000 4% 000 F % 000 % '000 T '000 T
24/8/2021 24/8/2021 to £ 18/6/2025 (i) 18.220 699 - (162) (69) 468
20/12/2021 20/12/2021to £ 20/12/2023 (ii) 16.010 188 - (94) - 94
1/2/2022 1/2/2022 to Z 18/6/2025 (i 14.460 225 - (56) = 169
4/7/2022 4/7/2022t0 £ 4/7/2026 (iii) 13.003 - 1,467 - (47)
1,112 1467 (312) (116)

The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price

per share at the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the
dividends during the vesting periods as the grantees are not entitled
to dividends during the vesting period.

The number of awards granted during the year divided by the
weighted average number of issued shares for the year was 0.14%
(2022:0.11%).

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The share awards are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 25%
each per annum starting from 18th June 2022 and are fully vested on
18th June 2025.

The share awards are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 50%
each per annum starting from 20th December 2022 and are fully
vested on 20th December 2023.

The share awards are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 25%
each per annum starting from the first anniversary of the date of
grant and will be fully vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of
grant.

REROZAAEDERRE BB Z2E8RKTE
REEBHRNZREAABEFARE  BEARAL
TEMAEEZARE -

FRARHZRBHEBRUFERD BITRME 2 NHE
FHEHAE014% (ZEZ2F 1 0.11%) °

MisE
BERMBE_ZE__F-A+/\BEBEREE2% 2

LEEAMBEE  IR—Z_HFAB+NB2HE
B

(i)

HERRABE_E-_F+ A=+ HEREF50%
ZHESMEE YN -—FB-=F+-A=+HZ
SR ©

(ii)

RBROBRE M BAFRREF 25% XD
MBS - LENREARNEFENREE -

(iii)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position

(a) Currenttax recoverable/(payable) in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

24 HAEMBRRRZEAEHR

(a) FHREPBMRRZEY " (EM)

BYHEW T -

2023
——

—

$'000 T3t

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year

REEFBNEHERE

Provisional Profits Tax paid

AN 2 BARER

(17,270)

26,848

Balance of Profits Tax relating to prior years

B2 11 F EARRE 2 IS BIFIR

Taxation outside Hong Kong

BBLIMEERIR

9,578

(3,585)

(697)

5,296

Summary

M=

2023
——

—

$'000 T

Current tax recoverable

FEU R BT IR

Current tax payable

FES IR AR E

19,528

(14,232)

5,296

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

2022
B _—F
$'000 F 7t

(24,725)

42,545

17,820

7,735

25,555

(12,334)

25,555
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 24 EFEEMBEARRRZEAIEH (@)
financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CRIBELEHEEE (BF):
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the NEEMBRRREAZELERBEE, (AF)
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements ZHERBORERZEBOT :

during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the related Future
depreciation benefit of Employee Withholding
BHEEH tax losses retirement taxon Cashflow
REZRE T EEZ benefits Provisions dividends hedges Total
it KRFR  EEEWET e REFENHE  ReR=HR @t
$'000F 7T $000F T $'000F 7t $'000F T $000F 7t $'000F 7T $000F 7t
Deferred tax arising from:
KEUTEEZEEHE
gf;@r_” éo% i (114702) 29,867 1017 126487 (19.218) (210) 23241
Exchange adjustments
ElgE (1,789) 1,926 - 4223 - - 4,360
Credited/(charged) to profit or
loss 8,465 115,838 (58) 20414 10,311 - 154,970
WERETA/ (H18)
Credited/(charged) to reserves B ) } B
RERITA/ (1) (64 8 2
’g@;@"@gﬁ%@ 1 g (108,026) 147,631 895 151,124 (8907) (126) 182591
Deferred tax arising from:
KEUTEBZELHE
selalle st (108,026) 147,631 895 151,124 (8907) (126) 182,591
Fé‘g‘%"g diRe 5413 (9,289) - (10,633) - - (14,509)
Credited/(charged) to profit or
loss 16,531 26,321 2,328 (34,009) 4,863 - 16,034
RERHA/ (418)
e I B60B) 164663 3908 106482 (4084 B4 184578
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial
position

24 HAEMHRRRZEAEH (8

(b) ERIBELEHEEE " (RE) :
(%)

HERIBMR I EE R

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position
REEMBERRRER ZIELERIEEEFE

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position

REFEPBARRRER ZIELERIRE EFHR

2023 2022
== —E-_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

260,693 281,707
(76,115) (99,116)
184,578 182,591

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses and other temporary differences of $546,686,000 (2022:
$339,992,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses and other temporary differences can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of $59,366,000
(2022: $84,928,000) which can be carried forward up to twenty
years from the year in which the loss originated, and an amount of
$269,334,000 (2022: nil) which can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss originated. The remaining
balance of $217,986,000 (2022: $255,064,000) does not expire
under current tax legislation.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

() FERZEZEMEEE

RIEMEE 1) FTE 2 F5THE - AEELEER
BB KERE R EE R ERE546,686,0007T (=
T :339,992,0007T) ZIELEMIEBEE
BERERERAR B LIEEER BRI AT
ERREFFEFIRETHACERAEERE
hEREER o

AERABREEEPE59,366000T (ZE==
% :84,9280007T) ¥ BEBEEEZFERLE
HES-+45  %269,3340007T (ZE=—4f :
&) BT EFBELECFEREERSEF - H
£2217,986,0007T ( = & = = % : 255,064,000
7)) T ERBBRITEEER



/é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 BAR - FEREKRE

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REZARZBD 2B

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBSREEZRARIBN 2 ENEFEREHRZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the HIRENGSERE TR - NOT)ERERIAR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes PR ENRERZSEFIEEIINT :

in the Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company ¥/ N/NY=T|
Shares held
for share Share-based
award compensation
Share scheme Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital - RO reserve reserve RHER reserve profits equity
Note & BEzRkf BRGf ] EIEG Hrdif RE&A ERER

iz $000Fx  $000F7w  $000Fk  $000FET  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F%

Balance at 1st April 2021
W-2--£MA-AER

984,030 :

1
w
~
~
=
(=}

~
NS
o~
—
w

~
—
(9%
o
=
o
o~
~

1,703,574 2775807

Changes in equity for the year:

AEECRRET:

Transfer from capital reserve toretained
profits 25(e)li) -
BEAREERZREEA

(1218) = = = 1218 >

Shares issued on exercise of share options

HTEBRETRRE 25ci 299 - . - (4413) - - U

Equity settled share-based transactions ) i i i i )
BB ENEE %S 13484 13484
Transfer from share-based compensation

reserve toretained profits - - - - (2,508) - 2508 -
ERMERRERBEERZRERA

Shares purchased under share award
scheme 25(d) - (10,002) - - - - - (10,002)
RERAEETHEERR

Final dividend approved in respect of the
previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - - (310,158) (310,158)
HEBRL-EECRBRE

Total comprehensive income for the year

REERANGER . - - - - (427) 215518 215091

Balance at 31st March 2022

H-B--E=A=f-pep 1013028 (10,002) 31522 2261 58,701 637 1,612,660 2,708,807
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 25 BAXR - RERKE (@)
(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) RERENIDZEE (@)
The Company (Continued) AR E] (&)
Shares held
for share Share-based
award compensation
Share scheme Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital  FR{REERDEHE reserve reserve RipEH reserve profits equity
Note Ry BE2kp BRfiE —fRfie HHBfE Hinfits REEA Exag

it $oo0Fx  $o00fm  $000Fxm  $o00Fx  So00Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FR

Balance at 1t April 2022
R=B--FMA-RER

1,013,028 (10,002) 31,522 2,261 58,701 637 1612660 2,708,807

Changes in equity for the year:

AEE2RERY

Transfer from capital reserve toretained
profits 25(elfi -
HEMGREERERERT

(1,218) > > = 1218 =

Sharesissued on exercise of share options

A ERRRTRARY 25l 5412 - - - (14) - S sk

Sharesissued on vesting of share awards

ABERAERTRIRY 25(cli 3088 - - - o) : ) )

Vesting shares of share award scheme

SERARES RS 2 - 2776 - ] : %) )

Equity settled share-based transactions

B = - : > 25,549 = = 25,549
HRHANFEEZRS

Transfer from share-based compensation
reserve toretained profits - - - - (982) - 982 -
BRAERREREERZRERA

Interim dividend declared inrespect of the
current year 25(b)i) - - - - - - (13916) (13916)
ERAEEZTHRE

Total comprehensive income for the year

AEERANEAE

111 113,091 114,202

Balance at 31st March 2023

I 1,021,45 7,226 304 2,261 77121 1,74 1,713,647 2,839,308
R-B-=E-R=+-R&R 3 (7,226) 30, 8 8393
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

25 BAR - #ERERE @)

(b)) BRE
() B FEALARERFEAZERFER

CA

2023 2022
== —E-_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

Interim dividend declared and paid of 1.3 cents
per ordinary share (2022: nil)

EERREXNZHHRE -SREBER 1.3 (Z=2=2F : #)

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
of 1.4 cents per ordinary share (2022: nil) (note 25(f))

REHRBRBKRKHRE - BREBER 1440 (Z2=ZF © ) (F¥RE25(f)

The final dividend proposed after the end of 31st March 2023
reporting period is based on 1,072,099,023 ordinary shares, being
the total number of issued shares at the date of approval of the
financial statements.

The final dividend proposed after the end of 31st March 2023
reporting period was not recognised as a liability at 31st March 2023.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

R-BZ=F=ZA=+—-HEHRBEEBERZX
HRENRNEMERREOCHITRMOEAE
1,072,099,023 R L @BARETE o

RZB-=F=-A=+-—-HEHRBERKRZRHY
BER-_ZE_=F=A=+—BUEXERAAE
& o

(i) BRE—HEKFE  FLRFAMRER
X TR AREFEAZETRE

2022
—E-F
$000 Tt

No final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year (2022: 29.0 cents per ordinary share)
BEBN L —BFELAFRMERIFZ
RERE (Z2==F : §REERKR 29.01L)

310,158
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

2023
Number of
shares
[2vg 2=
'000 T A&
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
EBRTREHMEZER -
At 1st April
1,070,010
AEA—H

Shares issued on exercise of share options

FAAT BB AR A T 3R AT MR 4D

Shares issued on vesting of share awards

FLER B M40 SR B T B AT ARAD

At 31st March
MR=B=+—H

1,070,899

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(ii)  Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 716,000
(2022: 2,822,000) ordinary shares in the Company. The net
consideration of $4,666,000 (2022: $24,585,000) was credited to
share capital. $746,000 (2022: $4,413,000) was transferred from
the share-based compensation reserve to the share capital account
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(r)(iv).

228 | Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t B EIBS AR A A

25 BAX - RERRKRER (@

(I %N
(i) EBETKRA

2022
—E-F
Number of
Amount shares Amount
£ BHEE ot |
$’000 F T '000 F A% $'000 F 7t
1,013,028 1,067,188 984,030
5,412 2,822 28,998
3,013 - -
1,021,453 1,070,010 1,013,028

EBERZFEBEATTERARERZKRE - L ATH
KARZRELHBRBOZE—ZREE -
RARZNBREEMNS MEEBEBREZEESHE
A o

(i) IRIZIEIRERS BT .2 IR

FR > AJRE716,0008% (ZF =4 : 2,822,000
BR) RATEBERZEBRERITE REFES
4,666,000 (ZE -4 : 24,585,0007t) M2
BAR 746,000t (ZEZ 4 : 4,413,000
70) SRBMIEE 1) (iv) el 2 BER B R B
EREER AR -
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B ER R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEBEHAN » LUBKTHE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Shares held for share award scheme

Movement of the Company’s shares held for share award scheme is
set out as below:

2023

:g:z
Number of
shares
BiEE
'000 Fi&
At 1st April
500
REAE—H

Shares purchased for share award scheme

AP R BT BB E 2 4D

Vesting shares of share award scheme

BERMREEZRD

(139)

At 31st March
R=A=+—H

Shares held for share award scheme includes shares issued by
the Company and the Company’s shares purchased through the
trustee of the share award scheme from the open market. During
the year ended 31st March 2023, no share has been acquired (2022:
approximately $10,002,000 was paid to acquire the shares) and
deducted from shareholders’ equity. The shares purchased by the
Company that are not yet vested for this share award scheme were
recorded as treasury shares of the Company.

As at 31st March 2023, there were 361,000 (2022: 500,000) treasury
shares held through the trustee of the share award scheme.

(e) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another property.
A total gain, representing the difference between the historical
carrying value of the property disposed of and the fair value of the
consideration received, resulted from such transaction.

25 BAX - RERRKRER (@

(d) KRORBFTEFEEZRE
RATRB DT EISE 2R D2 2EHE TN
T

2022
—E-_F
Number of

Amount shares Amount
&8 &gz =] -t
$'000 F it '000 F A% $000 F 7T
10,002 - =
500 10,002
(2,776) = =
7,226 500 10,002

BROEETEFE2RABEADIBRTZRMG
RADTEBROZEAFABZIHARAHTSE
AZERRBR P - BE=ZZE-=F=H=+—H
LEE > SEBATARNG (ZZE==F : 5B
BRM AL 10,002,000 T) » HE BREES
R o RATRMAR M EBTEBEEHAKE
BzBROEAERQBEFRMALR

NIEZ=F=A=+—H ROEEEz2Z
FEAFFE 361,0008 (ZF = =4 : 500,000 %)
EFRG

(e) REBZMERAR

() BXGHE

ERAREER-NNREZ AT 2EA 2
1 AATRE—-FEANELTAHE—EMR K
BURERS —ENESN  HERZRZEELER
Wi o BIFFHEME 2 ELRAERCD WRER
REZERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (Continued)

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and the
fair value of the property received (“the property”). The unrealised
gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised on depreciation of
the property. During the year, $1,218,000 (2022: $1,218,000) was
transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

(i) Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoy
Foshan, Vitasoy Wuhan, Vitasoy Shanghai and Vitasoja (Macau)
Limitada, in accordance with regulations in Mainland China and
Macau SAR respectively.

(ili)  Other reserve

The other reserve arose from the equity transactions with the non-
controlling interests of Shenzhen Vitasoy and Vitasoy Foshan in
2011, Vitasoy Dongguan in 2019 and VAP in 2023.

(iv) Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments used
in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged
cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash
flow hedges in note 1(u).

(v)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries
and the joint venture established outside Hong Kong and the foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the
joint venture established outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

(vi)  Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options and share
awards granted to eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note
1(r)(iv).
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25 BAX - RERRKRER (@

(e) REZIMERAZE @)

(i) EX#fE (&)
ZHEXZzWRZCWREEeRYE ([W£]) A
REZEHAEBRERKRBREIG o REFUW
WO ABRGHE  WNRTEYWEINERER -
RER 1,218,000t (ZF == : 1,218,000
L) BERRBEREZREET -

(i) EEF T

BERREBEIRIN MDD - FhILAEMYD - EUEEM
7 bkl R4l CRFI) BRA T D5
REE P B SR R BT B 2 AR AL ©

(iii) BEubrEE
HMREEELENR =S ——FE57YI4t 5 R E# L
MM s RZE - N EERZHEMPURR-E
“=EEVAPEHIFERER CERERS °

(iv) #FhtE

WA REREESHRREME 1) FrEH
BERBYHFRAZ ST BREIYIRERE
ZREREFHZEH P T AN AARBRTFEE
ZENES o

v) EX#E
ERRECSVESTBUIMEER L ZHE L H
REERRIZHMBHRREEZHMEMNEE L =8
RBEFBUIMER L 2HMBARREE DR
BEBRREFHE SN 2EBHEEELEZINE
BE 5 = 8E o 2R EASIRIBIEE 1w) T8l 5T
RERHE o

i) RUOOEEFEZE
BROERBERBBELSRTSERZREZER
FAETFBEZERITEBRERRORB 22
18 - THRIEMIEE 1(r)(iv) PR AR 10 BB 2 1
FERA 2 ST BUR MRS ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(f)  Distributability of reserves

At 31st March 2023, the aggregate amounts of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated
under the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was $1,715,908,000 (2022: $1,614,921,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final
dividend of 1.4 cents per ordinary share (2022: nil), amounting to
$15,009,000 (2022: nil) (note 25(b)(i)). The dividend proposed after
the end of 31st March 2023 reporting period was not recognised as
liabilities at 31st March 2023.

(g) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at areasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of bills payable, bank
loans and lease liabilities, and adjusted capital as all components of
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended
31st March 2022, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio below 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

25 BAX - RERRKRER (@

(f) A2 IRFEE
NZZBEZ=F=ZA=1+—H  BEFB(2ATK
B BOH2AFNTE 2 I HAIRFARQ B RE
BB A2 #E48%851,715,908,000 7T (Z&E==
£ :1,614,921,000 7T) °

REHRA%Z EEEBRBAYREESRSER
1AL (ZEZZF : 8) - #4505 15,009,000
T F E) (EE25(0)) c RZEBEZ=HF
—A=1+—-HAEHAZBRKZRER=-ZT==
ZA=t+—RYAEIAEE -

() EBEAXEE
FEEEEREAR 2 EEBRARBASERE
SEEEWRS - BRRERRRBNERITR
HERABNKTREZSERASERE - £H
REEERSRREHERRSEMANEAEALIE
A -

AEEEBRERHHEARBETRIRER
DAEESRREBAEMTRSEEXTEER
BEXRA TR 2 BEZRRERIEFE - WEE
EBERE 2 BICHERRBFHREE -

REERNES  AREUEEHEHBREAR LR
EREEHERRBZEE -FULBEH  AKE

R KRBRELT DR PTBARIMRIER
FHEERAR S, ©

REBCEKBEBEZ T _F=A=1t—HLt
FERFETE  BEEHEHBERLRERFR
B0% LT - BREGAHREBL R XEBHE
AEORRKGZREESHE - BITHRG - AR
REMER  BEHMEEREINHEEEURE

afE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHBEIN » LUBKHE)
25 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(g) Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March 2023 and
2022 was as follows:

25 BAX - RERRKRER (@

(g) EXREE @)
AEBRZE=FR-E-_"F=A=+—H
2 EEHERARERLRNT :

2023 2022
—E2== —ECCF
$'000 T3t $'000 F T

Current liabilities:
TEEE -

Bills payable
BAEE

Bank loans (note 20)
RITER (FIFE20)

Lease liabilities (note 21)

HESE (MEE21)

91,712 176,748

409,633 489,829

84,665 96,901

Non-current liabilities:

FRBEE -

Bank loans (note 20)
RITER (FiEE20)

Lease liabilities (note 21)

HESE (ME21)

586,010 763,478

115,053 =

51,521 90,856

Total debt
BEQE

752,584 854,334

Total equity
RSB

Less: Proposed dividends (note 25(b)(i))
W BORIRE (FEE 25(b)())

3,100,590 3,569,099

(15,009) =

Adjusted capital
REREER

3,085,581 3,569,099

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
BEEHKHEERLLE

24% 24%

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to fulfilment of
covenants which include maintaining the Group’s debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio below a certain amount and maintaining the Group’s net
worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for the above, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposures to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management consider
the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade
and other receivables)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments, when due, and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade debtors and bills receivables
are generally due within one to three months from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
industries or countries in which the customers operate. Significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 19.0% (2022: 15.5%) and 45.0% (2022: 37.6%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

26 HHEBREEREMIAZR
sifE

FEBE-REBBETFECE RBES -
NEREREAR AEEHKE2ABRBRASE
EREEZERARARA Y ERREZBRRE
ERIBLIT -

(a) EERB
FERRERZTERESGHNEIMENAIER
B E R 2 b o

FEEZFERBEEREBYEIRARHER
R EEEREFENER  MTHKR2BREEE

BB EFEZ R -

REBZzBERBITERDEFRRE RFEEF
ReerkE EEERARTEEERZEER
@ RE o

AEETERHEMESAEEEREERR
PR o

PRI R ENELE (EBRERERRI K
At ERFA)
FBEERBERBERESH 2T PIYRETER
SEFE c ZETEETREFBEZIBER
HRIRFERED  TEZREFPZHEER
UREREFEEME KBRS - BUIRRR
ERRE-RRBEEREFT—EZ=EAREIH -
—RME  AEETEREFEFIGERR

AEEBREFREEBRFTEZITERBRLEE
REFEERR EAKEFEERAKRFIENRAEAE
EEEENEE 2 EXRREHIE - RERB
AEERAEERAEKREFE 2R Bk EW
Rk EMENRBEIEZ190%(ZE ==
15.5%) } 45.0% (ZZFZZ%F : 37.6%) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade
and other receivables) (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

Thefollowing table provides information about the Group’s exposure
to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills receivable:

2023
p—

—_———

Gross
carrying
amount
IREAAE
'000 F T

Current (not past due)

BUER (RIEER) 712,720

Less than one month past due

,217
B DR — (88 66

One to three months past due

. _ 5,101

BH—Z=1@8

More than three months but less than
twelve months past due

BHEA=EAEBLIR+=@EA

More than twelve months past due

BEEB+ @A 1,165

793,462

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR

S8 (@)

(a) FERER @

FERIRA R EW Z 1% (B BIERERRAR
At ERFA) ()

ARG PR W BRI FE W SR A5 2 IS R R — AR AR
ERAEAFHRNZEREERE (RAREE
EH) <8 E - HRAKBBEEEFE
ERUBRBRNTREFIMZBEEXFEEAR
Z2  WRBEABRRA EEER BRI EL AR
SETREFHEFE-TED -

TREHBERSE BRI EWRETE
e EERREAREESREZEN

2022
—E- &
Gross
Loss carrying Loss
allowance amount allowance
EiERE BRMEAE gt
$'000F T '000 F 7T $000 F 7t
716,025 =
70,928 (1,441)
11,384 (757)
8,132 (904)
2,335 (1,206)
808,804 (4,308)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade
and other receivables) (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivable during the year is as follows:

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR

S8 (@)

(a) FERER @
FERIRA R EW Z 1% (B BIERERRAR
At ERA) ()

FEWERF R EWEE 2 BRI ERNERNZEE
mE

Balance at 1st April
RO A — B 48k

Exchange adjustments
[E 5 A

Impairment losses recognised

HRRERER

Uncollectible amounts written off

R B 4 5

Balance at 31st March
R=B=+—H#&k

2023 2022
== —E-_F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

4,308 2,238
(235) 52
1,278 2,097
(846) (79)
4,505 4,308

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management for daily operation, including placing
short term cash deposits and raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
Cash surplus over operating needs are closely monitored and
managed by the Group’s central cash and treasury management
system. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. The Group’s exposures
to the liquidity risk and its policies for managing such risk were
unchanged from the year ended 31st March 2022.

(b) REIEEEB
AEBENCEEREEHEAREEFEC2REE
B BREHRESRSERREBEAERURETE
HRESER  HMEERBEETHEABEE ZRE
KE BIBERARESSHE BBALERE
ZHEBHRBAERTRESRIHEEHER
PERREE AEBEBERDEHERER
ESFEERHBTERRZHEZER  UBRAE
EHZZEESHEREZESBEERGEIRE
BEHACZES  UENEEHRRBCRBESTE
E-HEE-E-__F=-A=+—HLEE#® "
AEEHEZRBESRREEEEEEARZ
BRI o
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at

the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR

S8 (@)

(b) REBEZEE ()
TREIWAEEZEHEERERB 2B TELH
HRR - WIRBENRITRAERE (BERSE
WAZR . RNBEFERERBBITFAERAEZ
FMEMAR) URASEER

BEAERIAZERHA

based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the BAED AT -
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2023
ot St -
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BNRTRRALTL
More than More than
Within ~ oneyearbut twoyearsbut
one year or less than less than
ondemand two years five years After Carrying
—FRg  SR-FE  SHWEE five years Total Amount
RER DRTE PREF L% st RAEE
$000F 7t $000F 7T $'000F T $000F 7t $000F 7t $'000F 7t
Trade and other payables (excluding receipts in advance and
customer deposits)
N . 1,695,182 - - 9,483 1,704,665 1,704,665
eI R At
(TEREBYTEREFES)
Bank loans
Py 416,584 121,679 - - 538,263 524,686
RITER
Lease liabilities
- 86,108 36,176 11,088 19,352 152,724 136,186
HEafk
2,197,874 157,855 11,088 28,835 2,395,652 2,365,537

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR
S8 (@)

(b) REBEZEE ()

2022
—E-CE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERRFRBA LR

More than More than

Within ~ oneyearbut  twoyearsbut

one year or less than less than
ondemand two years five years After Carrying
—-ERE,  ZR-FE ZRWEE five years Total Amount
REX DIWE DREE LER b REE

$000F 7T $000F 1T

$000F 7t $000F 7t $000F 7t $000F 7

Trade and other payables (excluding receipts in advance and
customer deposits)

0 ! 2072191 : . 10240 2082431 2082431
FEATBRT R E B3

(TEREREREFRSE)
Bank loans

e og 490,395 - - - 490395 489,829
RITER
LRI 98,293 65,181 22739 19,248 205461 187,757
Heas ' ' ' ' ' '

2660879 65,181 22739 29488 2778287 2760017

(c) Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
borrowings, bank deposits and cash at bank. The Group monitors
the level of its fixed rate and variable rate instruments. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

(c) FIZmE
NEARESRIAZ ARBRKRELRER
RIS E R B TRE > Ak o

AEEAEABRIERENEHEE - BITEHR
REGES FEFEREEERILTAK
T o AEEREERER S HEERRATXE
(i) -
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table details the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing instruments at the end of the reporting period:

Interest
rate range
FIEEE
%

Fixed rate instruments:
FETAH:

Bank deposits maturing after three months 0.10
FRHBB=EA ZRITEX :

Bank deposits maturing within three months 0.50 - 4.98
FREBR=EA R ZBITER =50 - 4.

Lease liabilities
HEaE 1.70 - 5.43

Variable rate instruments:
HETAH :

Cash at bank
RITER

0.00 - 4.05

Bank loans
SRITER 3.30 - 6.77

Total net instruments

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group's profit (2022:
loss) after taxation and decreased/increased (2022: increased/
decreased) retained profits by approximately $1,882,000 (2022:
$142,000).

238 | Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t B FR EEE AR A A

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR

S8 (@)

() F=Emb (&)

() FIEEH
TRMIAEENKET ARERD 2 FER
R

2022
—E__—F
Interest
raterange Amount
&8 SIEL Ex
$'000F T % $'000 F 7t
507 0.10 498
295,007 0.20-2.20 133,570
(136,186) 1.70-5.00 (187,757)
159,328 (53,689)
259,778 0.00-1.73 487,795
(524,686) 0.79 - 3.90 (489,829)
(264,908) (2,034)
(105,580) (55,723)

(i)  BUEEIEZHT

A_E_=F=A=+—H  H5FAEZEL
FATHR-—ERELY EHEHMTEFHREE
REFEZBRT  AEERBEEERN (=F
ZZEER) BRLED ENRREENE
HEED Em(ZE=—F  #&mn /W) 8
1,882,000 7T (Z&E==% : 142,0007t) °
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits in respect
of theexposuretocashflowinterestrateriskarisingfromfloatingrate
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The
impact on the Group’s profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change ininterest rates. Management assumed that certain interest-
bearing borrowings maturing during the next reporting period will be
rolled over upon the maturing for daily operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation. The fixed rate
instruments of the Group are insensitive to any change in market
interest rate. A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2022.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which give rise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and lease liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars (‘USD”), Australian
dollars (“AUD”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”), Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and
Euros (“EUR”).

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), all sales and purchases are denominated in either HKD
or USD, except for certain transactions with group entities and
purchases that are denominated in AUD, SGD, RMB and EUR. Given
the HKD is pegged to the USD, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated with such USD
denominated transactions.

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR
S8 (@)

() F=Ek @

(i) SEIETHT ()
RS TR AEERERAFE ZFE
METHSIFAEEHARRERENRER 2
BRBRER, (B18) RREEF BT -
FEBRBRER (BB RRESFMZY
& DEAXSHHINEIBFETER
it EEERRERT —ERSHEIN 25 TH
ERERIHPBSEEUEEEEEZR -

AEBIESEMESTRRDAETELTTA
B BEARETEFERTESR T AHTES
BER - AEEZELR T AT AT ST EES
TR - EFRA 2R REHW AL EES o

BE-Z-__F-A=t-HLEFEZIWR
SRARE AL AEEAT -

(d) E¥mERE
FEEHRzENRRTERBEEEREEM
EECZRUK - B  REEHRESEE
ZEBRB RN (RZFSEE 2N
LIshc E%) sHE - EXBARERARCERETESR
Erxn(lExl) B ([Br]) K& (MK
1) AR® (TAR¥]) KRBT (T8T]) °

FIREERRBE (B ]) 2EBEBME -
BrE TEEEBRET IR RRBLURT - 1
¥ ARBRBTEEN  MEEEGRBER
EUEHE - AR B R THY - EEERNE
AZEUEATEZRZABENEREER
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency other than
HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with group entities
and certain borrowings from group entities that are denominated
in HKD, most of the other transactions are denominated in their
functional currencies.

The Group’s policies for managing such risk were unchanged from
the year ended 31st March 2022. During the year ended 31st March
2023, the Group uses bank balances to hedge its currency risk arising
from the purchase of raw materials that are denominated in foreign
currency and classifies these as cash flow hedges as set out in note
18(a).

In respect of other trade receivables and payables denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

Thefollowingtable details the Group’s significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in HKD, translated
using the spot rates at the year end. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint
venture outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency,
the exposure arising from the borrowings from group entities that
in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the
bank balances that are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign
currency risk of highly probable forecast transactions or committed
future transactions are excluded.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR
S8 (@)

(d) BEmEkE @
MUEERE /BRI 2 ER 2 REERMS
BRETHERESEERETZRZURERH
BREzETEERBEEN  HOEABHXZ
IR HINREEREHE -

HEE-Z-—F=A=+—RHLFE#L K&
EEEEERER s BRI ESY REE-Z
—=F=ZA=1+—HLEEE FEEINBLRTE
GETHEHBEBLIMNHEZEMBEREEZE
MR o WA 18(a) FTEKZERITE TS
HABRESREY -

PN EHE 2 M B W RS R BARRME
FEEEEEERRNMERZEINE - UEE
FHIRERER  BAFRARTEFRATERKX

7 o

() FEZzZEEEE
TRHAVAEERERBUEHAER 2 NEER
BN EBHEZERREERRERELEZE
RE® R - BREARBAEZSHEDRFEZH
HERGERBEEZIN A - MEFBUSME
ENEARREE LR ZUBRERBFTEEHZZ
JIEmMEL 28 REEEERFEE (B
ERERMEARZREFEZ -0 2R
% LURIEE RS AR ERBR T EETZ
RS Y CHEEET ZRER Z 2 SNE R B 2 $RAT
EEATEEER -
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of 26 BEEMEEREMTIAEZA
financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

S8 (@)

(d) EWER )
() RAZEZEHEE ()

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

HERRAE (NERHE)
2023 202
-t “ECCE
usb EUR SGD HKD RMB AUD Usb EUR SGD HKD RMB AUD
#n0 Bn g% EM OARR  En i En #E #%  AR®  En
$000  $000  $000  $000 000  $000  $000  $000  H000  $000  $000  $000
fr fr fr fr fT T fx fr T fTx T *n
Cashand bank deposits
s 12811 - - 121 79949 123 59% 1 - 4065 152870 614
RERETEN
Amount due from/{to) group companies
N 10036  (1342) 2567 (303286) 563495 45994 6500 - 1742 (769127) 50659 9524
A/ (34 $B4B0TEE ot R )
Trade and other payables
. . 25,267 529 419 - (18152)  (1,190) (13679 9 939 - 739) (1034
RHERREREAS (25267 (529)  (419) (18152  (L190) (13679) @ %) (739)  (1034)
Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and iabilities (24200 (1871) 2148 (303159) 625292 44927  (1183) ] 803 (765062 202790 9,104

BRIAEREREL ARARER
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of 26

financial instruments (Continued) fE (@)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EPb @)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SR MEZHT

Thefollowingtable indicates the instantaneous change inthe Group’s
profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the USD against other currencies.

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in foreign taxation and
exchange retained profits
rates PRBiZ T
EELH RRE &R
(F¥) EFH (Ti)
$’000 F T
usD (97)
ET 97
EUR
&t
SGD
I B

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

BREREEREMIAZRD

TRIFREFRAASESEREHE RRZ
EXNZAHREH RS EERRRER
/ (B18) RIRE BRI Z B2 E (R M
R HBEZESTE)  BUWE - DRE
BEEITCHBERTERXITAAMER 2

FAEEEZLHMIINEALE -

B

2022
—E-_F
Decrease/
(increase)
inloss

after taxation

and increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in retained
in foreign profits
exchange BRI EEE
rates T (LEF)
ExLtH RARE &R
(T EX) A (FE)
$'000 F 7t
5% (239)
(5)% 239
5% -
(5)% -
5% 34
(5)% (34)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of 26 BEEMEEREMTIAEZA

financial instruments (Continued) fE (@)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EE @
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) SREMEZHT (48)
2022
—E__F
Decrease/
(increase)
in loss

after taxation
Increase/ and increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in retained
in foreign taxation and in foreign profits
exchange retained profits exchange PRELZEE
rates ¥ i& iR rates T (LF)
ExLH RARB T EzEH KRG &R
(F¥) EH (FH) (TR)  EH (TR
$'000 Tt $'000 F T

HKD (15,160) 5% (38,374)

B 15,160 (5)% 38,374

RMB 30,402 5% 8,640

AR (30,402) (5)% (8,640)

AUD 2,202 5% 456

BT (2,202) (5)% (456)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/(loss) after taxation measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are denominated
ina currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint
venture outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency,
the exposure arising from the borrowings from group entities that
in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the
bank balances that are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign
currency risk of highly probable forecast transactions or committed
future transactions. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

26 HIBEREEREMIAZR
S8 (@)

(d) BEmEkE @

(i) SEIETHT ()
EREMZAMERBRAEESTERAZAY
REEWMHECBRBREER, (BB)  RE®RASE
TrEXRBREDBELUMES R BRBEEE -

HRMUES T EREZSDREARENTELE
EREHRAFESASEEHEMNERE 2ZEE
BITAE BFAKEXTABUERARERAZ
WEEE UM ERHEZBARRERR - 2
MAEEEREFTBUMERBLAARSGE R
AZHBRERATEEZ2INEEMEEZE
B RESEEEZFE (EEBERKEBELR
ZREFHE B0 MEEZERE  UREE
RS AEERBRAIRET 2R IR EHS
ETZRRR G ZINERBRZRITERT - BEZ
R CE-A=T-HEFEZSHIIRRER
BT o
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27 Commitments

(a)  capital commitments outstanding at 31st March 2023 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

27 R

(a) R-ZT-=#=A=+-0 KEHER
RAPBE RN EAREMNT ¢

2023 2022
—m—= —m——

—=<—= —F——F

$'000 T3t $'000 F 7T

Contracted for

SHIES

Authorised but not contracted for

ERBERTHN

30,176 89,892

184,592 263,146

214,768 353,038

As at 31st March 2023, the Group is committed to certain contracts
for the purchase of factory machinery and equipment.

(b)  The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint venture
not included above are as follows:

RZZBZ=5=ZA=+—0  ~5ERHETHE
TREIREENRBZAH

(b) FEHALYAEFEESEATZER
EEWMT

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-_F
$'000 FiT $'000 F 7T

Authorised but not contracted for

ERBERTN

86 311

28 Equity transaction with non-controlling
interests

On 13th February 2023, the Group acquired the remaining 49%
equity interest in Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) from
National Foods Holdings Ltd. (“National Foods”) for AUD51,000,000
in cash (equivalent to approximately $280,345,000), increasing the
Group’s equity interest in VAP from 51% to 100%. The fair value for
the shares acquisition was determined by an independent valuer
jointly appointed by both parties. At the date of acquisition, the
carrying amount of VAP’s net assets amounted to $261,290,000.
The acquisition resulted in a decrease in non-controlling interest of
$128,032,000 and an increase in other reserve of $152,313,000.

28 EAFEREZSZEERS

AZEZ=H=-H+ =01 &&E H National
Foods Holdings Ltd. ( [ National Foods] ) LAIR &
51,000,000 7T (18 & 7 £ 280,345,000 7T) W
% Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. ([VAP])
BRT49%RE > FAREENRVAPHREHS1%
BANZE 100% ° BB DA ABEBHTHNAFHE
ZRENBLGEEMEE - RIKEEE R > VAPF
EEREES261,290,0007T @ U iEE 3k
2 IR #E 35 R 4> 128,032,000 7T+ H 1t £ 5 1 A0
152,313,000 JT °
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29 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a)
(i)

(iii)

Transactions with related parties

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by a
related party (non-controlling interests of the Company’s
subsidiary up to 12th February 2023) and a management fee
is charged for the provision of services. The management fee
is calculated based on a pre-determined percentage of the net
sales of products distributed by the related party. On 13th
February 2023, the entity ceased to be a related party of the
Group after the equity transaction disclosed in note 28 and the
agreement was terminated. Total management fees charged
by the related party for the year amounted to $25,371,000
(2022: $31,070,000). The amount due to the related party as
at 31st March 2022 amounted to $8,015,000.

On 29th July 2013, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiaries up to 12th February 2023)
in New Zealand pursuant to which the related party agreed
to distribute the products of the Group in New Zealand. A
management fee is charged for the provision of services. The
management fee is calculated based on a pre-determined
percentage of the net sales of products distributed by the
related party. The distribution agreement with the related
party was terminated effective from 1st October 2021 and
the entity ceased to be a related party of the Group on 13th
February 2023 after the equity transaction disclosed in note
28. No management fee was charged by the related party
for the year (2022: $3,209,000). No amount was due to the
related party as at 31st March 2022.

The Group has entered into a distribution agreement with a
joint venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply soya related beverages and raw materials to
the joint venture. Total sales to the joint venture for the year
amounted to $23,117,000 (2022: $13,345,000). The amount
due from the joint venture as at 31st March 2023 amounted
to $10,452,000 (2022: $4,919,000).
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29 EAHEALIXRS

BRREMBREEZBERBEZRE REHN A&
B VUTEREEALRS °

(a)
(i)

(iii)

HEEALTZRS

AEBCZERH—BEEAL (AEXAT
MEBARZEEREREEZE S _=F_
B+=H) WEBEMNDEHE  ZATHIEHER
KB EBER SEERARAAEEZ
ZEEBEANLTDHEREEFE2E L
E-R-EBE-=F"A+=H ZEBE
M 28 TN B EE R R TBANER
ZBEEBEAL  EHBELAEKRILE-FR &
BEALTWRZEEE RS 25,371,000
T (ZZB= =% :31,070,0007T) - R=F
—HE=A=t+-—HESTFEZBREALZ
FIEA 8,015,000 7T ©

RZE—=FtA=Z+NAB  FAEEHE—
ZREALT (AXRATMEBLAR ZIEER
BREZ-_ZE-_=F"A+T=-H) RHFA
BRI —BOHHE Bl ZEBEAL
EERFEEIEAEBZER - ZEE
ATHEEREUNEEER - SEER
BRIEAEECZBEAL I HEREEF
BHeBoHE - EHEZBEEALIIZS
HmBEER-—ZE-_—F+HA—H&L ™
ZEBCEMIT28IEBECERR B ER
—EC=E-RAt=BTEALREECE
BAL -FR TEZHEALWRZE
BERH(ZZTZZF:32090007) ° B
—E_—F=RA=+—-HHEENTZE
BALTZHIE-

AEECH-BFRESE QAT —E
DEHE B AEERERZEE R
FHEASHEESRRRESE - £ 0 @
ZEENEMER ZEE4% 523,117,000
7T (ZZF = = :13,3450007) c A=
E-=F=A=+-HEWKZAEELT
2 IE 510452000 (ZEZ ZF .
4,919,000 7T) °
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(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

29 Material related party transactions
(Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(iv)  The Group has entered into a loan agreement with its joint
venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group agreed
to provide a loan to finance the business activities of the joint
venture. The loan bears interest at 4.75% per annum and is
unsecured, and was capitalised during the year. No interest
income was received from the joint venture for the year (2022:
$894,000).

Therelated party transactions inrespect of (i) and (ii) above constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (the “Chapter 14A”). However, they are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A as they are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

Equity transaction disclosed in note 28 constitutes a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in
note 7 and certain of the highest paid individuals as disclosed in note
8, is as follows:

29 EXBAEALRS (@)

(a) EHEEALTZRS (@)

(iv) AEBCHHEFFESEQAL—HEHE
NHZE Bt AEERRREMH 25
N AZAERARZERTHRE - ZE
RIRFEBE475%TE - WEIKE - BRF
AWERL - RFER > BRKERBEZE
ENRZFEWA (ZFE==F : 894,000
JT) °

LA BEEENR()RZBEALRZEBH LT
RAUF AT ([FUAE]) FIREZFHERE
R o R BRZFRZIERE 14A76(1) 1%
REFHE  AHERRBITEUAT ZRERE

MEE28 I E 2 R RZEMRE AATMRE
ZBRERS  UWRABTHERAESHRE  HER
RBTEAARTRT 2ER - BUMBERRR
RHLERE o

(b) FAREEAEZME
FEERREEAESCHE (BEWE7MIKE
BARBES N 2 HREARMESFIRER A
THREFALTZMNZRE) 0T :

Short-term employee benefits

HHESRERN

Post-employment benefits

BERRAEA

Equity compensation benefits

RAFEERER

2023 2022
—EF-= —E-_F
$’'000 T+t $'000 F 7t

40,959 38,263

1,406 1,451
15,227 7,715
57,592 47,429

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

BMEEFT A TETHRAI(RHEESD)) °
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30 Company-level statement of financial

position

Note
MIEE

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment

Y% - BMERRE

- Investment properties
-REYHE

- Right-of-use assets

-EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment

- Bt - BENRE

Interest in subsidiaries

REE ARz R

Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant

and equipmen

t
BEYE BEERREZTT

Employee retirement benefit assets

BERMKMENEE

gurrent assets
MENEE

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

P AR R B HL At PR WK

Amounts due from subsidiaries

FEUS B B A BIFRIE
Current tax recoverable

FE W IR 2R T 18

Cash and bank deposits
BERRTER

Current liabilities
REIAE

Trade and other payables
FEBRFA R Bt AR

Bank loans
RITER

Amounts due to subsidiaries

FEAS B 2 R FRIR

Lease liabilities

Net current assets

BRBEE

Total assets less current liabilities

BEENRBEE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

30

DEIEEZ M BRI R

—m— =

— —

$'000
T

196,367
511,879
632,513

10,482

425,550

1,776,791

637,920
100,000
254,201

50,477

1,042,598

$'000
Fit

3,123
61,507

481,442

546,072

1,646,958

2,193,030

734,193

2,927,223

2022
—E_F

$'000 $'000

T T

3,250

105,302

542,197

650,749

1,507,711

102

170

2,158,732
179,831
492,528
485,627
18,114
394,388
1,570,488
639,737
109,000
88,214
62,918
899,869

670,619

2,829,351
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30 Company-level statement of financial

position (Continued)

Note
MIEE

Non-current liabilities

ERBAR

Lease liabilities

HERE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERKEFERE

Deferred tax liabilities

EERIERE

NET ASSETS

BEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BARRGEE

Share capital

@S

Reserves

A

TOTAL EQUITY

RS

25(a)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th

June 2023.

Winston Yau-lai LO
BERE
Director

EZ

30 ATREEZBFKLE (8

2022
—E-_F
$'000 $000
T T
55,937
64,607
87,915 120,544
2,839,308 2,708,807
1,021,453 1,013,028
1,817,855 1,695,779
2,839,308 2,708,807

REBZ=ZFXA-+HEESSHES RER

Roberto GUIDETTI
i8S
Director

EF
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(BREEFHBI - LUBKEGHH)

31 Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in
note 25(b)(i).

32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31st March
2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2023 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

31 BEAFHARZEHRBESE

ESNERAREBRBERBRE - E—HFE
JRBEE 25(b) (i) PIKEE ©

32 EBHEMEHMKRBEZT-=
FZA=+—HLFEEHZ
85T - #METERI R BT HER
B2 &

BEZEUBERRTIRZE  FESFTMASC
BEHBE—Z-=F=A=T-HLEFEHRE
M TEEZEMBRREA 2 BUEH T SER
TR EREETIWREREEERE 2B
K

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

R T 51 A
> ERA
ErtHAR £
HKFRS 17, Insurance agntracts 1st January 2023
(EBMBHREER) 2 175 [REAH | —E==f—F—f
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice Statement

2, Making mategglity judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies . 1st January 2023
(BBETER) B 195 [ BHFZ 225 | R(BBYBRELENERRSE) 2R [FHE —ZE-=%—A—H

AHE : EFEFERE ] 2185
Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors:

Dgfinigion of acggruntin esi.:imates o o o o — ilsi ?%ﬂ%zgzé
(ERBBTEA) FE8 | BFHE B2 RERZEE @ Bit1tit2TE | 2155 -
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arisin,

froma fiqéle transaction 5 N . . . R s — ils_t J:ar#ui’y 222E:|;
(CERBEFEA) F 125 [ Fr8H - HEBEXGELZEERBERE ZELFHE | 2155] =
Amendments to_ HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1st January 2024

current or non-current . . . . —E—mE—HJ—A
(CERBTEA F1RK [FBFHEEXZZ25 - HEESEAREHITE | 2155 -
Ar?g‘r/grgﬁtr;ts to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities with ~ il st January 2024
(BERBFTEA) F1K [HHBHEEXZZ2S - FEEFEZIEREERE | 2155 —F-RF-A—-H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group concluded that the adoption of
any of the above amendments or new standard is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7
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@9 Five Year Summary

IEMBHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB ¥+ E)

2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-CF —E-—F —EBIRE —E—hE
Note FfizE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Results
%5
HR;}’\e””e 2 6,340,559 6,501,215 7,519,817 7,232,641 7,526,495
Profit/(loss) from operations
@EF (B518) 1,2 103,593 (212,851) 843,471 707,433 977,160
Finance costs
. 1,3 (32,547) (23,071) (11,770) (10,932) (2,086)
Share of losses of joint venture (22,253) - (22,242) (17433) (19,236)
it a&E N REE ’ ’ ’ ’
Impairment loss on interest in joint
venture = (42,800) - _
BEDNAER ZHERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation
BRBIRL (BiE) 48,793 (235,922) 766,659 679,068 955,838
ITERITC 1,2,3 (27,736) 74,541 (177,151) (109,477) (208,143)
e
Profit/(loss) for the year
REERF/ (BHE) (161,381) 589,508 569,591 747,695
Attributable to:
THIALFE :
- Equity shareholders of the
Company 45,721 (158,750) 548,346 535,878 695,907
- RARREREA
- Non-controlling interests
SRR (24,664) (2,631) 41,162 33,713 51,788
Profit/(loss) for the year
REERF/ (BHE) (161,381) 589,508 569,591 747,695
Assets and liabilities
BERARE
Property, plant and equipment
M« R E 1 3,392,122 3,968,218 4,142,718 3,712,005 2,939,306
Other non-current assets
MR EEE 261,112 282,739 163,942 181,288 163,852
Net current (liabilities)/assets
ERE (BE) AR 1 (275,637) (475,424) (114,224) (185,794) 488,007
Total assets less current liabilities
BEERTHAR 1 3,377,597 3,775,533 4,192,436 3,707,499 3,591,165
Non-current liabilities
ETEE 1 (277,007) (206,434) (235,562) (289,395) (121,605)
;\;E.é%SSETS 3,100,590 3,569,099 3,956,874 3,418,104 3,469,560
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Five Year Summary

TEUBRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB ¥+ E)

the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation, from 1st April 2018. As a result, the Group changed its
accounting policies in relation to financial instruments. As allowed
by HKFRS 9, the Group did not restate information relating to
prior years. There was no difference in the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9. Figures in years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance
with the policies applicable in those years.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t 5B PR SE @A R 2 7

2022 2021 2020 2019
IR B ZEEEF —E-NE
Note fizE $'000 F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T $'000 F 7t
Capital and reserves
BARK f#E
Sl 1,021,453 [EERGEIL 984,030 939,328 898,961
RIS 2,3 1,963,262 2,244,885 2,632,023 2,189,062 2,266,451
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the CO"IP?_DZ’ 2,984,715 3,257,913 3,616,053 3,128,390 3,165,412
KARRERE AL ESARE
omsaniroling interests 115,875 311,186 340,821 289,714 304,148
Tmea Y ROl 3569099 3956874 3418104 3,469,560
Earnings/(loss) per share
BRER (F5E)
- Bga%'xc RPN YT (14.9centsfll)  51.5centsfll 504 centsfll  65.6 centsAll
- Diluted
_ CRACOT (14.9 centsqli) 51.0centsfll  49.9centsfli  65.0centsfli

Notes to the five year summary RFRERERE

1 As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1st 1 HREME —ZE—-hENA—BRBERZ (BB
April 2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect BmELA) B16KTHE] AEEEEFHEK
of the lessee accounting model. In accordance with the transitional AR ZEFECR - RIBZER ZBIE MK
provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were X B BRzEBERAZ T NABBHONEH
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to recognise right- FARZAANUBRZANR-_ZE-—NENA—B2FERAE
of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1st April 2019. After initial EERHESE NIOTHIZSEEREER
recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group as a lessee is AEE (FAEBEAN) ERIATVESEREEEH
required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding EEZAESEBRRFEAEEENE  MFREBET
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use ZHERUEGAEERREHANCEHEEE2HA
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses TEA - CEEFUAINETREABFENE
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease ABEE5 -
term. Figures in years earlier than 2020 are stated in accordance with
the policies applicable in those years.

2 As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts 2 HREMNE - N\ENAE—AREMZ(FEY
with customers, with effect from 1st April 2018, the Group changed BMELA) BISKEFEHUA L REER
its accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition. Figures in FERARABRRZEBER - —2—AFURINE
years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies FREBABEENBRAEERZ7 -
applicable in those years.

3 The Group adopted HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including 3 AEEE-—Z—N\FNA—ABREA(EBHKR

HEA) BN EHMTA] BE(EBUBRS
HR) BN ABEREFERMEZAMNNE] 2B
FeEE AXEECHEERERTANSR
B RB(EBYBRSERN) 95 AEEL
BEIEAFE2ER - RN (FBHBMSER)
BNV EEYERMEERSHEBERAELR
EZ8 o ZE-NFUAINHTREEBEFENER
BERED
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